HEARING DATE AND TIME: February 3, 2011 at 9:45 a.m. (Eastern Time)
RESPONSE DEADLINE: January 27, 2011 at 4:00 p.m. (Eastern Time)
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Stephen Karotkin

Joseph H. Smolinsky

WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP
767 Fifth Avenue

New York, New York 10153
Telephone: (212) 310-8000
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UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

_______________________________________________________________ X
Inre Chapter 11 Case No.
MOTORS LIQUIDATION COMPANY, et al., 09-50026 (REG)
f/k/a General Motors Corp.,etal.
Debtors. (Jointly Administered)
_______________________________________________________________ X

NOTICE OF HEARING ON THE DEBTORS’ (1) OBJECTION TO PROOF OF CLAIM
NO. 19633 FILED BY LARONDA HUNTER AND ROBIN GONZALES AND, IN
THE ALTERNATIVE, (1) MOTION TO ESTIMATE PROOF OF CLAIM NO. 19633

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that upon the annexed Objection, dated December 17,
2010 of Motors Liquidation Company (f/k/a General Motors Corporation) and its affiliated
debtors, as debtors in possession (collectively, the “Debtors”), to the allowance of Proof of
Claim No. 19633 filed by LaRonda Hunter and Robin Gonzales (the “Putative Class Claim”),
all as more fully set forth in the Objection, a hearing will be held before the Honorable Robert E.
Gerber, United States Bankruptcy Judge, in Room 621 of the United States Bankruptcy Court for
the Southern District of New York, One Bowling Green, New York, New York 10004, on

February 3, 2011 at 9:45 a.m. (Eastern Time), or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard.
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PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that any responses or objections to this
Objection must be in writing, shall conform to the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and
the Local Rules of the Bankruptcy Court, and shall be filed with the Bankruptcy Court (a)
electronically in accordance with General Order M-399 (which can be found at

www.nysh.uscourts.gov) by registered users of the Bankruptcy Court’s filing system, and (b) by

all other parties in interest, on a CD-ROM or 3.5 inch disk, in text-searchable portable document
format (PDF) (with a hard copy delivered directly to Chambers), in accordance with the
customary practices of the Bankruptcy Court and General Order M-399, to the extent applicable,
and served in accordance with General Order M-399 and on (i) Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP,
attorneys for the Debtors, 767 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York 10153 (Attn: Harvey R.
Miller, Esq., Stephen Karotkin, Esq., and Joseph H. Smolinsky, Esq.); (ii) the Debtors, c/o
Motors Liquidation Company, 401 South Old Woodward Avenue, Suite 370, Birmingham,
Michigan 48009 (Attn: Ted Stenger); (iii) General Motors, LLC, 400 Renaissance Center,
Detroit, Michigan 48265 (Attn: Lawrence S. Buonomo, Esq.); (iv) Cadwalader, Wickersham &
Taft LLP, attorneys for the United States Department of the Treasury, One World Financial
Center, New York, New York 10281 (Attn: John J. Rapisardi, Esg.); (v) the United States
Department of the Treasury, 1500 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Room 2312, Washington, D.C.
20220 (Attn: Joseph Samarias, Esq.); (vi) Vedder Price, P.C., attorneys for Export Development
Canada, 1633 Broadway, 47th Floor, New York, New York 10019 (Attn: Michael J. Edelman,
Esg. and Michael L. Schein, Esq.); (vii) Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP, attorneys for the
statutory committee of unsecured creditors, 1177 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York
10036 (Attn: Thomas Moers Mayer, Esg., Robert Schmidt, Esg., Lauren Macksoud, Esqg., and

Jennifer Sharret, Esq.); (viii) the Office of the United States Trustee for the Southern District of
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New York, 33 Whitehall Street, 21st Floor, New York, New York 10004 (Attn: Tracy Hope
Davis, Esq.); (ix) the U.S. Attorney’s Office, S.D.N.Y., 86 Chambers Street, Third Floor, New
York, New York 10007 (Attn: David S. Jones, Esq. and Natalie Kuehler, Esq.); (x) Caplin &
Drysdale, Chartered, attorneys for the official committee of unsecured creditors holding
asbestos-related claims, 375 Park Avenue, 35th Floor, New York, New York 10152-3500 (Attn:
Elihu Inselbuch, Esg. and Rita C. Tobin, Esq.) and One Thomas Circle, N.W., Suite 1100,
Washington, DC 20005 (Attn: Trevor W. Swett 111, Esqg. and Kevin C. Maclay, Esq.); (xi)
Stutzman, Bromberg, Esserman & Plifka, A Professional Corporation, attorneys for Dean M.
Trafelet in his capacity as the legal representative for future asbestos personal injury claimants,
2323 Bryan Street, Suite 2200, Dallas, Texas 75201 (Attn: Sander L. Esserman, Esg. and Robert
T. Brousseau, Esg.); and (xii) La Ronda Hunter and Robin Gonzales, by and through their
attorneys of record, Ira Spiro, Esg. and Mark Moore, Esg., Spiro Moss Barnes Harrison & Barge,
LLP, 11377 W. Olympic Boulevard, Fifth Floor, Los Angeles, California 90064-1683, so as to
be received no later than January 27, 2011 at 4:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) (the “Response

Deadline”).
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PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that if no response is timely filed and

served with respect to the Objection, the Debtors may, on or after the Response Deadline, submit

to the Bankruptcy Court an order substantially in the form of the proposed order annexed to the

Objection, which order may be entered with no further notice or opportunity to be heard offered

to any party.

Dated: New York, New York
December 17, 2010
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[s/ Joseph H. Smolinsky
Harvey R. Miller
Stephen Karotkin
Joseph H. Smolinsky

WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP
767 Fifth Avenue

New York, New York 10153
Telephone: (212) 310-8000
Facsimile: (212) 310-8007

Attorneys for Debtors
and Debtors in Possession
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Relief Requested
Jurisdiction
Relevant Factual Background to the Putative Class Claim

The Relief Requested by the Debtors Should Be Approved by the Court
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TO THE HONORABLE ROBERT E. GERBER,
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY JUDGE:

Motors Liquidation Company (f/k/a General Motors Corporation) (“MLC”) and
its affiliated debtors, as debtors in possession (collectively, the “Debtors”) respectfully
represent:

Relief Requested

1. The Debtors file this objection (the “Objection”) pursuant to section 502
of title 11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”), Rule 3007(d) of the Federal
Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure (the “Bankruptcy Rules™), and this Court’s Order Pursuant to
Section 502(b)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rule 3003(c)(3) Establishing the
Deadline for Filing Proofs of Claim (Including Claims Under Bankruptcy Code Section
503(b)(9)) and Procedures Relating Thereto and Approving the Form and Manner of Notice
Thereof (the “Bar Date Order”) [ECF No. 4079], establishing November 30, 2009, as the bar
date (the “Bar Date”). Through this Objection, the Debtors seek entry of an order disallowing
and expunging Proof of Claim No. 19633 (the “Putative Class Claim”) filed by LaRonda
Hunter and Robin Gonzales (collectively, the “Plaintiffs”), individually and on behalf of a class
that consists of California sub-class members (the “Putative California Sub-Class’) and
nationwide sub-class members (the “Putative Nationwide Sub-Class™) (collectively, the
“Putative Classes™). A copy of the Putative Class Claim is annexed hereto as Exhibit “A.”

2. Attached to the Putative Class Claim is the Fourth Amended Complaint
For: (1) Violation of California’s Consumer Legal Remedies Act (“CLRA”), Civil Code § 1750
et seq.; and (2) Violation of California’s Unfair Competition Act (“UCL"), Bus. & Prof. Code §

17200 et seq. (the “Putative Class Complaint”) on behalf of the Putative Classes. The Putative
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Class Complaint alleges causes of action for violation of the CLRA and violation of the UCL.
(See Putative Class Compl. 11 104-44.)

3. These claims purportedly arise from the Debtors’ marketing and sale of
certain 1999-2005 model year trucks and sport utility vehicles containing allegedly defective
parking brake systems (the “Debtors’ Products”). (See id. § 5.) The Putative Class Complaint
alleges that Debtors’ Products were defective and that despite having knowledge of this fact, the
Debtors made false, misleading, and unlawful representations to consumers, including Plaintiffs
and others similarly situated, about the parking brakes installed in certain of MLC’s trucks and
utility vehicles. (See id.q1 1-3.)

4, Ultimately, Plaintiffs seek, through the Putative Class Complaint, inter
alia, (1) to certify the Putative Classes, (2) actual damages, (3) restitution and disgorgement, (4)
statutory damages, (5) injunctive relief, and (6) punitive damages. (See id. at 52.) The Putative
Class Claim states that the amount of the claim is “unknown,” and the Putative Class Complaint
does not allege an estimated amount of damages or monetary relief sought. (See generally id.;
Putative Class Claim at 1.) The Putative Classes were not certified before June 1, 2009 (the
“Commencement Date”), when each of the Debtors commenced a case under chapter 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the
“Bankruptcy Court”), and Plaintiffs have not sought class certification from this Court.

5. As discussed below, whether to permit a class claim to proceed lies within
the sound discretion of the Court. In exercising their discretion, courts consider, among other
things, whether (i) the claim satisfies the strict requirements of Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure (“Rule 23”), and (ii) the benefits that generally support class certification in civil

litigation are realizable in the bankruptcy case.
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6. Here, the Putative Class Claim should be disallowed in its entirety
because, inter alia, (i) Plaintiffs have failed to satisfy the basic procedural requirements of
Bankruptcy Rule 9014, (ii) the Putative Classes do not satisfy Rule 23, (iii) even if the Putative
Classes did satisfy Rule 23, the benefits that generally support class certification in civil
litigation are not realizable in these chapter 11 cases, and (iv) certain of claims have been settled
and released. Among other reasons, the Putative Class Claim does not satisfy Rule 23 because
Plaintiffs are neither typical of the Putative Classes nor adequate class representatives. Although
Plaintiffs seek to represent persons who purchased vehicles with two distinct parking brake
systems — the PBR and TRW Systems (defined below) — they lack standing to represent those
with TRW Systems because neither Plaintiff had a vehicle with a TRW System. Further,
Plaintiffs’ claims on behalf of those they arguably might have standing to represent — the
members of the Putative Classes with PBR Systems and automatic transmissions — have been
largely mooted by the prior class action settlement between the Debtors and Boyd Bryant,
individually and as class representative of a class of persons with 1999-2002 1500 series trucks
and pickups with automatic transmissions and PBR Systems (the “Bryant Settlement”). In
addition, the need for injunctive relief has been mooted and would provide no deterrent effect
here, as the Debtors no longer operate a business and are liquidating.

7. Further, despite notice by publication of the Bar Date to the putative class
members encompassed by the Putative Class Claim, other than the claim filed by Plaintiffs, and
the claims filed in connection with the Bryant Settlement, there have been no claims filed in this

Court seeking damages or requesting relief in connection with the Debtors’ Products." Because

! Because the Putative Classes were not certified before Commencement Date, the members of the Putative Classes
could not rely on the Putative Class Claim to absolve them from compliance with the Bar Date Order to preserve
their claims. See In re Jamesway Corp., No. 95 B 44821 (JLG), 1997 WL 327105, at *10 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. June 12,
1997) (denying motion for class certification of class claim where “[n]o class was pre-certified such that purported
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the Debtors have provided such notice, it would be unfair and unnecessary to burden the
Debtors’ estates with the additional cost and associated delay of providing these potential
claimants with a second opportunity to assert claims as class claimants. Further, litigation of the
Putative Class Claim would further deplete the pool of assets available for distribution to the
Debtors’ creditors. As a result, the Court should (i) disallow the Putative Class Claim in its
entirety, or (ii) in the alternative, allow the Putative Class Claim to proceed only as an individual
claim on behalf of Plaintiffs and not as a class claim.

Jurisdiction

8. This Court has jurisdiction to consider this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
88 157 and 1334. This is a core proceeding pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 157(b).

Relevant Factual Background to the Putative Class Claim

A. The Bar Date Order

9. On September 16, 2009, this Court entered the Bar Date Order which,
among other things, established November 30, 2009, as the Bar Date and set forth specific
procedures for filing proofs of claims. The Bar Date Order requires, among other things, that a
proof of claim must “set forth with specificity” the legal and factual basis for the alleged claim
and include supporting documentation or an explanation as to why such documentation is not
available. (Bar Date Order at 2.)

B. The Putative Class Claim

10.  On November 4, 2009, LaRonda Hunter and Robin Gonzales filed a proof
of claim attaching the Putative Class Complaint. The Putative Class Complaint sets forth causes

of action for violations of the California’s CLRA and UCL on behalf of the Putative Classes,

class members who did not choose to file a proof of claim should or could have had any reasonable expectation that
they need not comply with the Bar Date Order”).
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which consist of a Putative California Sub-Class and a Putative Nationwide Sub-Class. (See
Putative Class Compl. 1 95.) Specifically, the sub-classes are defined as:

“Putative California Sub-Class”: The California Class that
Plaintiffs seek to represent [] consists of all persons and entities
who purchased or leased, or will purchase or lease, a Subject
Vehicle in California.

“Putative National Sub-Class”: The National Class that
Plaintiffs seek to represent [] is defined to include all persons and
entities who purchased or leased, or will purchase or lease, a
Subject Vehicle in the United States. 2

(1d.)

11.  The Subject Vehicles® include at least ten different models of manual and
automatic transmission vehicles from varying ranges of model years, but all between model
years 1999-2004, and involve two different brands of parking brake systems: (1) those designed
and manufactured by supplier PBR International (the “PBR System”), and (2) those utilizing
parking brake systems designed by supplier TRW Automotive (the “TRW Systems”). (See id.
122.) The Putative Class Complaint alleges that the PBR and TRW Systems are defective
because they are subject to premature wear, which could cause premature parking brake failure.
(See id. 1 26.) Notably, the PBR and TRW Systems were designed independently from one

another by different suppliers, were used in different vehicles, and employ distinct configurations

2 The Putative California Sub-Class and Putative National Sub-Class specifically exclude (i) “any claims seeking
damages for personal injuries or property damage resulting from defects,” (ii) “Defendants, any parent, subsidiary,
affiliate, or controlled person of Defendants, as well as the officers, directors, agents, servants, or employees of
Defendants, and the immediate family member of any such person,” and (iii) “any judge in this case who may
preside over this case.” (ld.)

® Plaintiffs allege the “Subject Vehicles” include “at least the following: 2002-2003 Cadillac Escalade, Escalade
EXIST, 2003 Cadillac Escalade ESV, 1998-2003 Chevrolet Blazer, 1999-2003 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 Series
(trucks), 2000-2003 Chevrolet Suburban, Tahoe (1500 Series), 2002-2003 Chevrolet TrailBlazer, Trailblazer
EXIST, 1998-2003 GMC Jimmy, 1999-2003 GMC Sierra 1500 Series, 2000-2003 GMC Yukon 1500 Series, 2002-
2003 GMC Envoy, Envoy XL, 2002-2003 Chevrolet Avalanche 1500 Series Models, and 1998-2003 Oldsmobile
Bravada.” (Seeid. {5.)
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to effectuate vehicle immobilization. Neither of the named Plaintiffs owns a vehicle with the
TRW System.

12. The Putative Class Complaint asserts that the Debtors violated the CLRA
by (i) misrepresenting that the subject vehicles conform to all applicable U.S. Federal Motor
Vehicle Safety Standards; (ii) representing that the subject vehicles have characteristics and
benefits that they do not have; (iii) representing that the subject vehicles are of a particular
standard, quality, or grade that they are not; (iv) advertising the subject vehicles with an intent
not to sell them as advertised; (v) misrepresenting that a transaction confers or involves legal
rights, obligations, or remedies of Plaintiffs and other members of the Putative Classes
concerning the Subject Vehicles when they do not; (vi) representing that the Subject Vehicles
were supplied in accordance with previous representations when they were not; and (vii)
inserting an unconscionable provision in the contract/warranty that was provided along with the
sale of each Subject Vehicle. (See id.  108.) The Putative Class Complaint also alleges that
these acts, omissions, and misrepresentations resulted in violations of California’s UCL, as they
constitute “unlawful, unfair, fraudulent, untrue and/or deceptive” advertising. (See id.  131.)

13. Plaintiffs seek, through the Putative Class Complaint, inter alia, (1) to
certify the Putative Classes, (2) actual damages, (3) restitution and disgorgement, (4) statutory
damages, (5) an order enjoining the Debtors from “continuing to falsely market and advertise,
conceal material information and conduct business via the unlawful and unfair business acts and
practices complained of herein, and ordering [the Debtors] to engage in corrective notice,” (6)
punitive damages, (7) attorneys’ fees and costs, and (8) pre-judgment interest. (See id. at 52.)

C. Procedural History
14.  The original complaint was filed on November 14, 2004, in the Superior

Court of California, in the County of Los Angeles, Central District (the “California Court™). It
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was amended four times, and the Putative Class Complaint is the live pleading in that action (the
“Lawsuit”). Plaintiffs filed a motion for class certification on January 28, 2009. GM filed a
response in opposition to the motion for class certification on February 16, 2009, and Plaintiffs
filed their reply on March 2, 2009.

15.  The California Court, however, never ruled on the issue of class
certification. In recognition of a parallel Arkansas state court case that included a class
definition that significantly overlapped with the definition of the Putative Classes, on March 3,
2009, the California Court stayed the Lawsuit with respect to all PBR System-related claims, and
on April 3, 2009, vacated the trial setting. Shortly thereafter, on June 8, 2009, the Lawsuit was
stayed pursuant to the automatic stay.

16.  Thus, the Putative Classes were not certified before the Commencement
Date, and Plaintiffs have not sought class certification from this Court.

D. Plaintiffs’ Experience

17. Ms. LaRonda Hunter. In February 2002, Ms. Hunter purchased a 2001

Chevrolet Yukon 1500 Series with an automatic transmission from Justice Auto, a used car
dealer formerly located in Carson, California. (See Deposition of LaRonda Hunter (“Hunter
Dep.”) at 30:17-32:23, annexed hereto as Exhibit “B.””) Ms. Hunter admits that she did not see
or hear any of the purported misrepresentations alleged in the Putative Class Complaint. (Id.
36:20-23; 37:7-13, 49:23-50:3, 58:5-19.) Although Ms. Hunter asserted during discovery in the
Lawsuit that she bought her vehicle “new” with only 1,800 miles, she later produced a title
certificate reflecting that the vehicle had 19,255 miles when she purchased it used. (ld. 32:19-
20; Certificate of Title, annexed hereto as Exhibit “C”’; Supp’l Resp. to First Set of Special
Interrogs. at 5, annexed hereto as Exhibit “D.””) Thus, Ms. Hunter has paid no money to GM or

the Debtors, directly or indirectly, in connection with her vehicle purchase.
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18.  Ms. Hunter has testified that as of the time she filed suit, she had not
experienced any problem with the PBR System in her vehicle. (See id. at 76:17-22.) She further
testified that it was not her idea to start the underlying lawsuit, and that she never saw the
original complaint, or the first, second, or third amended complaints. (See id. 103:3-104:11,
119:19-20; 122:6-9.)

19.  After filing suit, Ms. Hunter sent a letter to General Motors Corporation
(“GM”) and demanded that it repair her vehicle. (See Ltr. from I. Spiro to R. Lutz dated Jan. 12,
2005 at 2, annexed hereto as Exhibit “E.””) On February 10, 2005, in response, GM offered to
inspect Ms. Hunter’s vehicle, repair it if necessary, and provide a loaner vehicle during the
inspection and repair, free of charge. (See Ltr. from K. Landan to I. Spiro, dated Feb. 10, 2005 at
2, annexed hereto as Exhibit “F.””) Ms. Hunter ignored GM’s offer.

20. Thereafter, in April 2005, Ms. Hunter claims the ABS and parking light in
her vehicle came on, and that caused her to take the vehicle to a mechanic for repair. (See
Hunter Dep. at 77:18-78:9, 80:5-14.) Ms. Hunter testified that she had not experienced any
problem with the parking brake, just that the ABS and parking brake lights were allegedly
activated. (Id. 76:17-77:21.) Ms. Hunter testified that she incurred costs of $260 to have her
vehicle repaired by an automotive facility not affiliated with GM, (id. at 106:14-18), rather than
notifying GM or taking advantage of GM’s offer to inspect and potentially repair her vehicle free
of charge. Further, she admits that Power Chevrolet (an independent dealer) repaired the ABS in
her vehicle on several occasions before and after she filed suit, but claims Power Chevrolet
would not fix the parking brake, or explain to her whether anything was wrong with it, and, if so,
why they would not fix it. (Id. at 77:22-80:4.)

21. Ms. Hunter claims that it was not until December 2008, after she had the
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allegedly defective parking brake replaced and more than four years after she filed suit, that she
allegedly first experienced her vehicle “roll” with the parking brake set. (Id. at 84:2-85:2.)"

22. Ms. Robin Gonzales. Ms. Gonzales purchased a 2001 Chevy Silverado

with a PBR System and an automatic transmission in July 2001 from Anaheim Chevrolet, an
independent GM dealer. (See Deposition of Robin Gonzales (“Gonzales Dep.”) at 48:3-16,
58:10-13, annexed hereto as Exhibit “G.”) Ms. Gonzales testified that she did not talk to the
dealer about the brakes on the truck before buying it, and that nothing that the salesperson said
induced her to buy it. (Id. at 49:8-18, 52:9-17.) Ms. Gonzales never saw any ads or other
representations from GM related to the parking brake, and she did not read the Owner’s Manual
when she bought the truck. (Id. at 121:6-9, 121:21-122:4.) When asked if she would buy a
different truck if she knew what she knows now, Ms. Gonzales testified that she would not. (Id.
45:8-11.)

23. At some point in 2004 or 2005, after her three-year warranty expired, Ms.
Gonzales claims that she experienced parking brake failure when she conducted an experiment in
her driveway at home. (Id. at 59:10-23.) Ms. Gonzales testified that for reasons she could not
recall, she decided to put her automatic transmission in neutral in her driveway and engage the
parking brake (which is not a recommended way of immobilizing the vehicle). (Id. at 61:1-
62:20, 63:16-64:3.) Ms. Gonzales never had a problem with the parking brake when used as

directed in her Owner’s Manual with the transmission in park. (Id. at 64:3-6.)

* When asked to describe how far the vehicle allegedly “rolled” when this happened, Ms. Hunter gestured several
inches. (Id. at 85:5-11, 92:1-9.) Ms. Hunter’s description is not consistent with the “roll away” concerns that have
been investigated in the past by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration.
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24.  When Ms. Gonzales had her parking brake replaced in November 2005, it
was her attorneys who recommended the repair shop where she took her vehicle, and her
attorneys paid the $417 to repair her parking brake. (ld. at 90:11-91:1, 92:18-20, 93:9-94:4.)

E. The Bryant Settlement

25.  On November 3, 2010, this Court entered a judgment (the “Judgment”)
approving the Bryant Settlement between the Debtors and Boyd Bryant, individually and as class
representative of a class of persons with 1999-2002 1500 series trucks and pickups with
automatic transmissions and PBR Systems (the “Bryant Settlement Class”). (See Judgment
[ECF No. 70], Bryant v. Motors Liquidation Co., et al., Adversary No. 09-00508 (REG)
(S.D.N.Y. Nov. 3, 2010).) The class definition in the Bryant Settlement overlaps with the
definitions of the Putative Classes, as both include persons who owned 1999-2002 1500 series
pickups and trucks with automatic transmissions and PBR Systems. (Compare Judgment § 3
with Putative Class Compl. §5.) Pursuant to the Bryant Settlement and the Court’s Judgment,
the members of the Bryant Settlement Class have settled and released their claims against the
Debtors. (See Judgment {1 12-15.)

The Relief Requested by the Debtors Should Be Approved by the Court

l. As an Initial Matter, Certain Members of the Putative Classes Have Settled and
Released Their Claims

26. Preliminarily, to the extent Plaintiffs seek to represent members of the
Bryant Settlement Class, these claims have been settled and released. Pursuant to this Court’s
Judgment, notice of the Bryant Settlement has been provided to the members of the Bryant
Settlement Class, and any members of the Bryant Settlement Class who submitted claim forms

have released their claims against the Debtors.
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1. Application of Bankruptcy Rule 7023 to a Class Proof of
Claim Is Discretionary and Should Be Denied In This Case

27. There is no absolute right to file a class proof of claim under the
Bankruptcy Code. See In re Bally Total Fitness of Greater N.Y., Inc., 402 B.R. 616, 619 (Bankr.
S.D.N.Y)), aff’d, 411 B.R. 142 (S.D.N.Y. 2009); In re Sacred Heart Hosp. of Norristown, 177
B.R. 16, 22 (Bankr. E.D. Pa. 1995) (noting that class action device may be utilized in appropriate
contexts, but should be used sparingly). Application of Bankruptcy Rule 7023 to class proofs of
claim® lies within the sound discretion of the court.® In determining whether to exercise
discretion and permit a class proof of claim, courts primarily look at (i) whether the class
claimant moved to extend the application of Rule 23 to its proof of claim; (ii) whether the
benefits derived from the use of the class claim device are consistent with the goals of
bankruptcy; and (iii) whether the claims which the proponent seeks to certify fulfill the
requirements of Rule 23. See In re Bally Total Fitness, 402 B.R. at 620; In re Woodward, 205

B.R. at 369; see also In re Ephedra Prods. Liab. Litig., 329 B.R. 1, 5 (S.D.N.Y. 2005) (“In

> Part V11 of the Bankruptcy Rules, which includes Bankruptcy Rule 7023, only applies to adversary proceedings.
See Fed. R. Bankr. P. 7001. Bankruptcy Rule 9014, however, adopts certain of the rules from Part V11 for
application in contested matters. Bankruptcy Rule 7023 is not among them. See Fed. R. Bankr. P. 9014. Thus,
plaintiffs seeking the application of Bankruptcy Rule 7023 (and by implication, Rule 23) to a class proof of claim
are required to move under Bankruptcy Rule 9014 for a court to apply the rules in Part VII. Fed. R. Bankr. P. 9014;
accord In re Woodward & Lothrop Holdings, Inc., 205 B.R. 365, 369 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1997) (stating that “[f]or a
Class Claim to proceed . . . the bankruptcy court must direct Rule 23 to apply™). See, e.g., Reid v. White Motor
Corp., 886 F.2d 1462, 1470 (6th Cir. 1989), cert. denied, 494 U.S. 1080 (1990); In re Charter Co., 876 F.2d 866,
?/876 (11th Cir. 1989), cert. dismissed, 496 U.S. 944 (1990) (holding that proof of claim filed on behalf of class of
claimants is valid, but that “does not mean that the appellants may proceed, without more, to represent a class in
their bankruptcy action. Under the bankruptcy posture of this case, Bankruptcy Rule 7023 and class action
procedures are applied at the discretion of the bankruptcy judge.”).

® See, e.g., In re Bally Total Fitness, 402 B.R. at 620 (“[C]ourts may exercise their discretion to extend Rule 23 to
allow the filing of a class proof of claim.”); In re Thomson McKinnon Sec. Inc., 133 B.R. 39, 40 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y.
1991) (Bankruptcy Rule 7023 and Rule 23 “give the court substantial discretion to consider the benefits and costs of
class litigation™) (citing In re Am. Reserve Corp., 840 F.2d 487, 488 (7th Cir. 1988)), aff’d, 141 B.R. 31 (S.D.N.Y.
1992); accord In re United Cos. Fin. Corp., 277 B.R. 596, 601 (Bankr. D. Del. 2002) (“Whether to certify a class
claim is within the discretion of the bankruptcy court.”); In re Kaiser Group Int’l, Inc., 278 B.R. 58, 62 (Bankr. D.
Del. 2002) (same); Reid, 886 F.2d at 1469-70 (stating that “Rule 9014 authorizes bankruptcy judges, within their
discretion, to invoke Rule 7023, and thereby Fed. R. Civ. P. 23, the class action rule, to ‘any stage’ in contested
matters, including, class proofs of claim.”); In re Charter Co., 876 F.2d at 876 (“[u]nder the bankruptcy posture of
this case Bankruptcy Rule 7023 and class action procedures are applied at the discretion of the bankruptcy judge.”).
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exercising that discretion, the bankruptcy court first decides under Rule 9014 whether or not to

apply Rule 23, Fed. R. Civ. P., to a ‘contested matter,” i.e., the purported class claim; if and only

if the court decides to apply Rule 23, does it then determine whether the requirements of Rule 23

are satisfied.”).

28.  When evaluating these requirements, courts have considered a variety of

factors, including, inter alia:
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whether claimants are in “compliance with the Bankruptcy
procedures regulating the filing of class proofs of claim in a
bankruptcy case,” see, e.g., In re Thomson, 133 B.R. at 41
(disallowing class proof of claim where named plaintiff failed to
file Rule 9014 motion requesting that Rule 7023 apply);

whether the debtor intends to liquidate, see In re Thomson, 133
B.R. at 41 (noting that context of liquidating chapter 11 plan
supports rejection of class proofs of claim);

whether or not a purported class was previously certified, see,
e.g., In re Bally Total Fitness, 402 B.R. at 620 (refusing to allow
class proof of claim where class was not certified pre-petition); In
re Sacred Heart Hosp., 177 B.R. at 23 (classes certified pre-
petition are “best candidates” for class proof of claim);

whether the class claim device will result in “increased
efficiency, compensation to injured parties, and deterrence of
future wrongdoing by the debtor,” see In re Woodward, 205 B.R.
at 376; accord In re Thomson, 133 B.R. at 40 (“Manifestly, the
bankruptcy court’s control of the debtor’s affairs might make class
certification unnecessary.”);

whether the entertainment of class claims would subject the
administration of the bankruptcy case to undue delay, see, e.g., In
re Ephedra Prods. Liab. Litig., 329 B.R. at 5 (“[A] court sitting in
bankruptcy may decline to apply Rule 23 if doing so would . . .
‘gum up the works’ of distributing the estate.”); and

whether or not adequate notice of the bar date was afforded to
potential class members, see In re Jamesway Corp., 1997 WL
327105, at *10 (refusing to certify class where adequate notice of
bar date was afforded to potential class members, and thus to
certify class would be “unwarranted, unfair, and possibly violate

12



the due process rights of other creditors”) (internal quotations
omitted).

“If application of Bankruptcy Rule 7023 is rejected by the bankruptcy court in an exercise of
discretion . . . the result will be that class claims will be denied and expunged.” In re Thomson,
133 B.R. at 40-41. As set forth below, the Court should exercise its discretion to reject the
application of Bankruptcy Rule 7023 and to disallow the Putative Class Claim.

A. Plaintiffs Failed to Comply With Bankruptcy Rule 9014

29. A plaintiff who seeks to bring a class proof of claim must comply with the
applicable procedural requirements. See, e.g., In re Am. Reserve Corp., 840 F.2d at 494 (noting
the applicability of Bankruptcy Rule 9014 and its procedural requirements); see In re Ephedra
Prods. Liab. Litig., 329 B.R. at 6-7 (same). These procedural requirements are not complicated.
Because a claim “cannot be allowed as a class claim until the bankruptcy court directs that Rule
23 apply,” the putative class representative must file a motion with the bankruptcy court
requesting the application of Rule 23. In re Woodward, 205 B.R. at 368, 370. (“Rule 23 does
not say who must make a timely motion, but the duty ordinarily falls on the proponent of the
class action.”).

30.  The requirement that a class claimant timely move under Bankruptcy Rule
9014 to incorporate Rule 23 is intended to protect a debtors’ estate from undue delay of the
debtors’ plan process. See In re Thomson McKinnon Sec., Inc., 150 B.R. 98, 101 (Bankr.
S.D.N.Y. 1992). In In re Woodward, another case in which there was no pre-bankruptcy class
certification, the court stated that the class claim should be disallowed if the putative class
representative did not expeditiously move in the bankruptcy case for certification of its class
claim, as a lengthy certification battle could delay the administration and distribution of the

bankruptcy estate. See In re Woodward, 205 B.R. at 370; see also In re Ephedra Prods. Liab.
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Litig., 329 B.R. at 5 (disallowing class products liability claim because “it is simply too late in
the administration of this Chapter 11 case to ask the Court to apply Rule 23 to class proofs of
claim”). As of the date hereof, approximately a year and a half after the Commencement Date
and more than a year after the Bar Date, Plaintiffs have not sought permission of the Court to file
a class proof of claim or moved for certification of the class. The Debtors have already filed
their proposed plan, the disclosure statement has been approved, and a confirmation hearing is
planned to occur soon. If allowed to proceed, the Putative Class Claim will unduly delay the
administration of the Debtors’ estates and the Debtors’ ability to consummate a plan of
liquidation (“Plan’) because the adjudication of the claim and its attendant class-certification
issues could take months to conclude. See In re Sacred Heart Hosp. of Norristown, 177 B.R. at
24 (disallowing class claim where allowance would cause “very substantial and apparently
unwarranted disruption to the administration of the Debtor’s bankruptcy case, in which there is
presently a plan before us for imminent confirmation”); In re Ephedra Prods. Liab. Litig., 329
B.R. at 5 (disallowing class claim where liquidating plan was already submitted and “[a]pplying
Rule 23 to class claims now would initiate protracted litigation that might delay distribution of
the estate for years™); In re Musicland Holding Corp., 362 B.R. 644, 656 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 2007)
(Bernstein, J.) (refusing to allow class claim where it would “seriously delay the administration
of the case” because debtors had already filed confirmation motion and court had approved
disclosure statement); see also In re Tronox Inc., No. 09-10156 (ALG), 2010 WL 1849394, at *3
(Bankr. S.D.N.Y. Mar. 6, 2010) (Gropper, J.) (refusing to enlarge time to file class proof of
claim where such claim could “likely result in substantial delay and expense and compromise the
parties’ efforts to formulate a plan on the present timeline”). Accordingly, this Court should

enforce these procedural requirements and disallow the Putative Class Claim. See, e.g., Inre
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Woodward, 205 B.R. at 369-71; In re Thomson, 150 B.R. at 100-01; In re Thomson, 133 B.R. at
41; In re Zenith Labs., Inc., 104 B.R. 659, 664 (D.N.J. 1989); In re Ephedra Prods. Liab. Litig.,
329 B.R. at 6-7.

B. Allowing the Putative Class Claim to Proceed as a
Class Action Will Not Be Effective or Efficient

31. For a class action to proceed, “the benefits that generally support class
certification in civil litigation must be realizable in the bankruptcy case.” In re Woodward, 205
B.R. at 369 (citing In re Mortg. & Realty Trust, 125 B.R. 575, 580 (Bankr. C.D. Cal. 1991)). In
this case, neither the purported class nor the Court would benefit from recognizing a class proof
of claim and allowing a class action to proceed.

32. The Putative Class Claim does not provide for the most effective or
efficient means of determining the rights of the members of the Putative Classes. First, a class
proof of claim is not appropriate if individual issues of fact predominate over questions common
to the members of the purported class. Here, the Putative Classes allege claims for deceptive and
fraudulent advertising and misrepresentation. (See Putative Class Compl. §108.) The court in In
re Woodward, in considering putative class claims for false advertising and misrepresentation,
found that a class action is “generally not appropriate to resolve claims based upon common law
fraud.” In re Woodward, 205 B.R. at 371.

33.  Second, in general, the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rules can
provide the same benefits and serve the same purposes as class action procedures in normal civil
litigation. See id. at 376 (“a bankruptcy proceeding offers the same procedural advantages as the
class action because it concentrates all the disputes in one forum”); 6 Herbert Newberg & Alba
Conte, Newburg on Class Actions8 20.1 at 581 (4th ed. 2002) (commenting that “bankruptcy

proceedings are already capable of handling group claims, which operate essentially as statutory
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class actions”); see also In re Standard Metals Corp., 817 F.2d 625, 632 (10th Cir.), reh’g
granted, 839 F.2d 1383 (10th Cir. 1987), cert. dismissed, 488 U.S. 881 (1988). Although
members of the Putative Classes can no longer file their claims because the Bar Date has passed,
they had ample notice of the Bar Date and opportunity to take advantage of these bankruptcy
procedures.
34. Third, the bankruptcy claims process is, in some respects, superior to class

action procedures. As the court observed in In re Woodward:

[W]hile the class action ordinarily provides compensation

that cannot otherwise be achieved by aggregating small

claims, the bankruptcy creditor can, with a minimum of

effort, file a proof of claim and participate in distributions.

In addition, there may be little economic justification to

object to a modest claim, even where grounds exist.

Hence, a creditor holding such a claim may not have to do
anything more to prove his case or vindicate his rights.

205 B.R. at 376 (citations omitted). Here, notwithstanding the chance to do so, none of the
members of the Putative Classes, save for the named Plaintiffs, filed a claim against the Debtors.
35.  The facts of the instant case are similar to the facts of In re Woodward,
where the Honorable Judge Bernstein exercised his discretion to deny the class claim, finding
that “the class claim will not deter an insolvent, non-operating debtor’s management or
shareholders, or induce them to police future conduct [where] . . . the debtor has . . . a liquidating
plan that wipes out equity. The managers have moved on to other jobs — the debtor has closed its
doors — and the prosecution of the class action will [] not affect how they act in the future.” 205
B.R. at 376. Here, the Debtors have discontinued the sale of the Debtors’ Products and have
subsequently sold substantially all their assets. The Debtors are no longer operating a business.
For these reasons, the benefits that generally support class certification are not present here, and

the Court should deny application of Bankruptcy Rule 7023.
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C. The Putative Class Claim Was Not Certified
Prior to the Commencement Date

36. A number of courts have held that class proofs of claim are generally
inappropriate where a class representative was not certified prepetition in a non-bankruptcy
forum. See, e.g., In re Trebol Motors Distrib. Corp., 220 B.R. 500, 502 (B.A.P. 1st Cir. 1998);
In re Sacred Heart Hosp., 177 B.R. at 23; In re Ret. Builders, Inc., 96 B.R. 390, 391 (Bankr.
S.D. Fla. 1988); In re Ephedra Prods. Liab. Litig., 329 B.R. at 5. The court in Sacred Heart
Hospital held that use of the class proof of claim device in bankruptcy cases may be appropriate
in certain contexts, but “such contexts should be chosen most sparingly.” In re Sacred Heart
Hosp., 177 B.R. at 22. Specifically, the Sacred Heart Hospital court noted that cases where (i) a
class has been certified prepetition by a nonbankruptcy court, or (ii) a class action has been filed
and allowed to proceed as a class action in a nonbankruptcy forum for a considerable time
prepetition, may present appropriate contexts for recognizing a class proof of claim. See id.
However, the Debtors have been unable to find a single case within the Second Circuit in
which a pre-bankruptcy certification class claim was allowed.

37.  The Putative Classes were not certified at the time of the Debtors’ chapter
11 filing, and they remain uncertified today. For this reason alone, the Putative Class Claim
should be disallowed and expunged.

D. Adequate Notice of the Bankruptcy Case and the
Bar Date Was Provided to the Putative Classes

38.  One of the principal goals of the Bankruptcy Code is to ensure that
creditors of equal rank receive equal treatment in the distribution of a debtor’s assets. The
Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rules, therefore, require creditors to file proofs of claim
before a bar date. See 11 U.S.C. 8 502(b)(9); Fed. R. Bankr. P. 3003(c)(3). Regardless of how
worthy their claims may be, claimants who fail to file before an applicable bar date “shall not be
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treated as a creditor with respect to such claim for the purposes of voting and distribution.” Fed.
R. Bankr. P. 3003(c)(2). These same procedural hurdles must be met by all creditors.

39. In determining whether a class proof of claim should be allowed, courts
consider whether adequate notice of the bar date was afforded to potential class members. See In
re Jamesway Corp., 1997 WL 327105, at *8. As that court stated:

The proper inquiry is whether [the debtor] acted reasonably
in selecting means likely to inform persons affected by the
Bar Date and these chapter 11 proceedings, not whether
each claimant actually received notice . . . [a]s to those
plaintiffs who might not have received actual notice of the
Bar Date, we find that by complying with the terms of the
Bar Date Order, mailing a Claim Package to every known

creditor and publishing notice of the Bar Date, [the
Debtor’s] actions satisfy due process.

Id. (internal citations omitted).

40. In this case, the members of the Putative Classes received proper notice of
the Debtors’ chapter 11 cases and the Bar Date in accordance with the provisions of the Bar Date
Order. At great expense to their estates, the Debtors published notice of the Bar Date nationwide
in The Wall Street Journal (Global Edition — North America, Europe, and Asia), The New York
Times (National), USA Today (Monday through Thursday, National), Detroit Free Press, Detroit
News, LeJournal de Montreal (French), Montreal Gazette (English), The Globe and Mail,
(Canada), and The National Post. (See Bar Date Order at 7.) Providing individual notice to all
owners of the Debtors’ Products would be impossible or, at minimum, prohibitively expensive,
as customers regularly resell their vehicles and the Debtors would have no way to know the
identities of the current owners of their products. Providing notice of the Debtors’ bankruptcy
cases and the Bar Date by publication, however, constituted a viable alternative to the
impracticability, or perhaps even impossibility, of identifying and providing individual notice to
each of the consumer purchasers of the Debtors” Products. Additionally, in this case, in
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particular, one would be hard-pressed to find a handful of Americans who were not aware of the
chapter 11 filing of General Motors Corporation.

41. No member of the Putative Classes (save for Plaintiffs and those related to
the Bryant Settlement) has filed a claim, and members of the Putative Classes who failed to file
proofs of claim could not be said to have relied on the filing of the Putative Class Claim because
the Putative Classes were not certified as of the Commencement Date. See In re Jamesway
Corp., 1997 WL 327105, at *10 (denying motion for class certification of class claim where
“In]o class was pre-certified such that purported class members who did not choose to file a
proof of claim should or could have had any reasonable expectation that they need not comply
with the Bar Date Order”). Further, no similar suits have been filed in California since the
inception of the underlying litigation in 2004. Moreover, there is significant overlap between the
Putative Classes and the class involved in the adversary proceeding styled Boyd Bryant v. Motors
Liquidation Co., et al., Adversary No. 09-00508 (REG), which involves purchasers of model
year 1999-2002 1500 Series trucks and pickups with automatic transmissions and PBR Systems,
which has been settled with the Debtors.

42. Because the Debtors have provided notice by publication to the members
of the Putative Classes encompassed by the Putative Class Claim, it would be unfair and
unnecessary to burden the Debtors’ estates with the additional cost and associated delay of
providing potential claimants with a second notice. Further, the only type of notice the Debtors
could reasonably provide today would be another publication notice, effectively duplicating the
notice they have already provided and extending the Bar Date for a particular sub-group of
general unsecured creditors who are not entitled to special treatment under the Bankruptcy Code.

Since not a single member of the alleged Putative Classes filed an individual claim, it is highly
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unlikely that many, if any at all, would file claims if given a second opportunity, but the estate
would suffer greatly from the unnecessary costs of duplicative notice.

I11.  The Putative Class Claim Cannot Satisfy the Requirements of Rule 23

43. Even if this Court were to permit Plaintiffs to file class claims, the
Putative Class Claim would not satisfy Rule 23. To proceed as a class claim, the Putative Class
Claim must meet all four requirements of subsection (a) of Rule 23, as made applicable to
bankruptcy cases by Bankruptcy Rule 7023. See Moore v. PaineWebber, Inc., 306 F.3d 1247,
1252 (2d Cir. 2002); In re Woodward, 205 B.R. at 371. Rule 23(a) provides:

(@) Prerequisites to Class Action. One or more members of a class may
sue or be sued as representative parties on behalf of all only if:

(1) the class is so numerous that joinder of all
members is impracticable;

(2) there are questions of law or fact common to
the class;

(3) the claims or defenses of the representative
parties are typical of the claims or defenses of
the class; and

(4) the representative parties will fairly and
adequately protect the interests of the class.
Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a).

44, In addition, to proceed as a class claim, the Putative Class Claim must
satisfy subsections (b)(2) and (b)(3) of Rule 23, as the Putative Class Claim seeks injunctive
relief and monetary damages. See In re Drexel Burnham Lambert Group, Inc., 960 F.2d 285,
290 (2d Cir. 1992), cert. dismissed, 506 U.S. 1088 (1993). (See Putative Class Compl. at 52.)
Rule 23(b)(2) provides, in relevant part:

(2) the party opposing the class has acted or refused to act
on grounds that apply generally to the class, so that

final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory
relief is appropriate respecting the class as a whole.
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Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2). In addition, Rule 23(b)(3) provides, in relevant part:
(3) the court finds that the questions of law or fact common
to the members of the class predominate over any
questions affecting only individual members, and that a

class action is superior to other available methods for
the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy.

Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3).

45.  As set forth below, numerous individual issues of fact would predominate
over any common questions in the Putative Class Claim because Plaintiffs are neither typical of
the members of the Putative Classes nor adequate class representatives. Further, class treatment
is neither efficient nor superior in these circumstances. As discussed below, Plaintiffs’ claims
raise a host of individual issues of fact regarding each putative class member’s right to recovery.
These individual issues would require mini-trials as to each class member’s right to relief, a

result that courts have repeatedly found requires denial of class certification.’

" Debtors anticipate that Plaintiffs will argue that their Putative Classes should be certified because they are a subset
of the class that was certified in the parallel Arkansas state court case subject to the Bryant Settlement, and since that
court certified the case, this Court should too. See Gen. Motors Corp. v. Bryant, 285 S.W. 3d 634 (Ark. 2008), cert.
denied, 129 S. Ct. 901 (2009). But the class in Bryant was certified under Arkansas law pursuant to Arkansas Rule
of Civil Procedure 23. While the Arkansas class certification requirements are facially similar to their federal
counterparts, the certification analysis conducted by federal courts is significantly more stringent that that employed
by Arkansas state courts. Specifically, federal courts are required to conduct a “rigorous analysis” of whether the
requirements for class certification are met. Gen. Tel. Co. of Sw. v. Falcon, 457 U.S. 147, 161 (1982); In re Initial
Pub. Offering Sec. Litig., 471 F.3d 24, 33 (2d Cir. 2006), decision clarified on denial of reh’g, 483 F.3d 70 (2d Cir.
2007). The Arkansas State Court was not required, and expressly declined, to conduct a “rigorous analysis” to
determine if the Arkansas Action was appropriate for class certification. (See Findings of Fact and Conclusions of
Law Regarding Class Certification, and Order Certifying Class, dated Jan. 11, 2007 (the “Certification Order™)
127 (“Importantly, the Arkansas Supreme Court requires no such rigorous analysis . . . . GM’s attempt to engraft a
rigorous analysis requirement on to the elements of class certification under Ark. R. Civ. P. 23 is not well taken and
is rejected.”) (internal quotes omitted), annexed hereto as Exhibit “H.””) Despite the likelihood that the class in
Bryant would require application of the laws of many, if not all, states, which would render a class action
unmanageable and uncertifiable, the Arkansas state court declined to undertake a choice of law analysis, relying
heavily on the fact that courts have broad discretion to decertify class actions. (See Certification Order 1 31.)

On June 19, 2008, the Arkansas Supreme Court affirmed the Certification Order. Although the Arkansas
Supreme Court acknowledged that “it is possible that other states’ laws might be applicable to the class members’
claims,” it held that a choice of law analysis is not a prerequisite to certifying a multi-state class action because,
among other things, “a class can always be decertified at a later date if necessary.” See Bryant, 285 S.W.3d at 641
(emphasis added). The Arkansas Supreme Court also concluded that requiring a choice of law analysis prior to class
certification would require Arkansas state courts to conduct the “rigorous analysis” only required under federal class
action law. Id. at 638.
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A. Neither “Commonality” nor “Typicality”
Can Be Established by Plaintiffs

46. To proceed as a class claim, Rule 23(a)(2) and Rule 23(a)(3) require that
the putative class representative also demonstrate commonality and typicality. To establish
typicality, Plaintiffs must show that they are situated similarly to class members.? The Court
cannot “presume” that Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of other claims. See Gen. Tel. Co. of Sw.,
457 U.S. at 158, 160 (“actual, not presumed, conformance with Rule 23(a) remains, however,
indispensable™).

47. First, neither Ms. Hunter nor Ms. Gonzales own a vehicle with a TRW
System, so they do not have standing to represent owners of vehicles equipped with that parking
brake, nor are their claims typical of them, because the issues surrounding the PBR- and TRW-
designed systems are distinct. See Gonzalez v. Proctor & Gamble Co., 247 F.R.D. 616, 622
(S.D. Cal. 2007) (denying certification where hair product purchaser did not have claims typical
of purchasers of 28 other products); Deiter v. Microsoft Corp., 436 F.3d 461, 465-68 (4th Cir.

2006) (plaintiffs’ claims were atypical of portions of putative class that had purchased a different

Accordingly, the Arkansas court’s Certification Order in Bryant has no bearing on this Court’s
determination to certify the Putative Classes under Rule 23. Cf. Reid, 886 F.2d at 1470-71 (upholding bankruptcy
court’s refusal to certify a class under Rule 23 that had previously been certified in state court); In re Friedman’s,
Inc., 363 B.R. 629, 634 (Bankr. S.D. Ga. 2007) (decertifying class action and noting “the fact that a state court
rendered the class certification order in 2004 does not curtail this Court’s authority to reassess the matter today
under Rule 23(c)(1)(C)”); E. Maine Baptist Church v. Union Planters Bank, N.A., 244 F.R.D. 538, 540-41 (E.D.
Mo. 2007) (analyzing class certification under Federal Rule 23 and partially granting decertification motion where
state court had originally certified class pursuant to state rule of civil procedure); In re Worldcom, Inc., 343 B.R.
412, 418, 427-28 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 2006) (Gonzalez, J.) (“This Court has previously held that the Court should not
rely on the state court’s certification and must make its own determination whether to certify the class” and
decertifying nationwide class asserting state-law based claims because of significant variations in the laws of the
applicable states).

8 See Marisol A. by Forbes v. Giuliani, 126 F.3d 372, 376 (2d Cir. 1997) (typicality “requires that the claims of the
class representative be typical of those of the class, and ‘is satisfied when each class member’s claim arises from the
same course of events, and each member makes similar arguments to prove the defendant’s liability’””) (quoting In
re Drexel, 960 F.2d at 291); see, e.g., Mace v. Van Ru Credit Corp., 109 F.3d 338, 341 (7th Cir. 1997) (“The
typicality and commonality requirements of the Federal Rules ensure that only those plaintiffs or defendants who
can advance the same factual and legal arguments may be grouped together as a class™).
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type of software than named plaintiffs); In re Worldcom, Inc., 343 B.R. at 420 n.8 (subscriber to
a single long-distance calling plan lacked standing to represent subscribers to other plans on
misrepresentation claims, and failed typicality and commonality tests as to other plans).

48. Second, neither Ms. Hunter nor Ms. Gonzales gave pre-litigation notice to
GM of their CLRA claims for damages. Accordingly, neither is an appropriate representative of
a class asserting CLRA claims. See CaL. Civ. CoDE § 1782(a).

49, Third, Plaintiffs fail to satisfy the typicality requirement because they are
subject to unique defenses. See Dunnigan v. Metro. Life Ins. Co., 214 F.R.D. 125, 137 (S.D.N.Y.
2003) (“[C]lass certification is inappropriate where a putative class representative is subject to
unique defenses which threaten to become the focus of the litigation.”) (quotations and citations
omitted); Kaczmarek v. Int’l Bus. Machs. Corp., 186 F.R.D. 307, 313 (S.D.N.Y. 1999)
(representative plaintiffs fail to satisfy typicality requirement because of unique defenses
defendant may have against them). Specifically, Ms. Hunter’s claims are not typical of even the
PBR System vehicle owners. Ms. Hunter bought her vehicle secondhand from a used car dealer
— she had no dealings with GM or any GM dealer with respect to her purchase, fatally
undermining her omissions theory of liability. (See Hunter Dep. at 30:17-32:23.) Likewise, GM
has no money of Ms. Hunters’ to “restore” to her — eliminating any chance of recovery on her
UCL claim. What is more, even if Ms. Hunter could have asserted a claim under the CLRA, she
is subject to a unique defense in that she ignored GM’s offer to inspect and repair her vehicle
free of charge. And, Ms. Hunter testified that she never actually experienced the defect alleged
in the complaint — instead, her vehicle allegedly first “rolled” several inches years after she had

the purportedly defective parts replaced.
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50. Ms. Gonzales’s claims are not typical for several other reasons. To
demonstrate causation on behalf of the class, Plaintiffs will have to demonstrate that the alleged
omission was material. Buckland v. Threshold Enters., Ltd., 155 Cal. App. 4th 798, 809 (2007).°
Materiality is judged by a “reasonable consumer” standard. Belton v. Comcast Cable Holdings,
LLC, 151 Cal. App. 4th 1224, 1241 (2007). However, Ms. Gonzales admitted at her deposition
that the parking brake problem would not have changed her decision to purchase the car. (ld.
45:8-11.) By definition, then, the alleged omission was immaterial. Caro v. Procter & Gamble
Co, 18 Cal. App. 4th 644, 668 (1993) (citing Lacher v. Superior Court, 230 Cal. App. 3d 1038,
1049 (1991) (“A misrepresentation of fact is material if it induced the plaintiff to alter his
position to his detriment.”)). Additionally, Ms. Gonzales has no damages — her lawyers paid to
have her parking brakes replaced — making her claims atypical for yet another reason. And,
having been on notice of the issues with her parking brake since she purchased her truck in July
2001, both of her claims are barred by the statutes of limitations, as the case was filed in
November 2004 and she joined in December 2005. See CAL. Civ. CoDE § 1783; CAL. Bus. &
PROF. CODE § 17208.

51.  Fourth, each Plaintiff’s claim arises from certain of the Debtors’ Products
that Plaintiffs claim to have purchased allegedly in reliance upon defendants’ representations
regarding the parking brake system. (See Putative Class Compl. at 5-8.) Yet, the Putative
Classes would include plaintiffs who witnessed different representations about the parking brake

system; had different information regarding the parking brake system at the time they purchased

° Nor are Hunter or Gonzales typical with respect to any alleged misrepresentation claims on behalf of a class —
neither of them saw or heard any alleged misrepresentations. (Gonzales Dep. at 121:6-9, 121:21-122:4; Hunter Dep.
at 36:20-22, 37:7-13, 49:23-50:3, 58:5-19); In re Paxil Litig., 218 F.R.D. 242, 246-47 (C.D. Cal. 2003) (a person
“who has not been affected in any way” by allegedly deceptive statements cannot adequately prosecute an action to
enjoin such statements).
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their vehicle; and who purchased vehicles under a variety of different factual circumstances. See,
e.g., Lundquist v. Sec. Pac. Auto. Fin. Servs. Corp., 993 F.2d 11, 14 (2d Cir.), cert. denied, 510
U.S. 959 (1993) (typicality defeated by plaintiff’s broad definition of class as all individuals who
signed similar automobile lease agreements).

52. Finally, Plaintiffs’ claims cannot be typical of those of all members of the
Putative Classes because the bases of the unfair and deceptive trade practices claims vary
greatly. The claims are based on a variety of allegedly deceptive marketing practices, including,
but not limited to, the Debtors’ representations that the vehicles at issue “had a “technically
advanced braking system,”” “were ‘Engineer[ed] [] to the highest standard,”” and were *“the most
dependable, longest lasting trucks on the road ** Dependability based on longevity,” “were
‘Certified” to comply with “all applicable U.S. Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards,’”
“Iwere] designed and tested with top-quality GM brake parts,” “were equipped with a “complex”
“braking system,” and had “tough technology, designed to bring you a more dependable, longer
lasting truck.” (Putative Class Compl. at 2-3.) Each member of the Putative Classes might base
his or her unfair and deceptive trade practice claim on one or more of the foregoing assertions,
might have seen or been induced to purchase by one or a combination of statements, and might
have considered some, all, or none of the foregoing assertions to be material. On the face of the
Putative Class Claim, there could be no “typical” plaintiff for the unlimited permutations of
factual predicates for the claims alleged.

B. Plaintiffs Are Not Adequate Representatives

53.  To establish that they will adequately represent the proposed class,
Plaintiffs must have common interests with the unnamed members of the class, and it must
appear that Plaintiffs will vigorously prosecute the interests of the class through qualified

counsel. See, e.g., Edwards v. McCormick, 196 F.R.D. 487, 495 (S.D. Ohio 2000). The required

US_ACTIVE:\43425027\15\72240.0639
25



elements that the plaintiffs have “claims or defenses typical of the class” and that they can
“adequately represent and protect the interests of other members of the class” are intertwined: “to
be an adequate representative, plaintiff must show that his claims are typical of the claims of the
class.” Caro, 18 Cal. App. 4th at 669 (“[T]o be an adequate representative, plaintiff must show
that his claims are typical of the claims of the class.”) (quoting Stephens v. Montgomery Ward,
193 Cal. App. 3d 411, 422 (1987)). Here, as described above, there can be no “typical” plaintiff
and, thus, no adequate representative for the Putative Classes.

54.  Additionally, Plaintiffs have demonstrated a lack of adequate
understanding of, and control over, the Lawsuit, such that they do not qualify as adequate
representatives for the Putative Classes. For example, Ms. Hunter admitted at her deposition that
it was not her idea to start the Lawsuit; she did not recognize any of the first three complaints;
and she does not know what claims are being made against the Debtors or GM. (See Hunter
Dep. at 117:23-118:22, 122:6-7, 122:19-20, 123:1-5, 103:14-104:11, 105:11-14.) She further has
a false sense of her stakes in claim: she testified in the Lawsuit that she hopes to recover $260 in
repairs and “the $33,000 that | paid for the vehicle.” (Id. 106:4-18.) More importantly, Ms.
Hunter has already given false testimony during discovery, initially claiming that she bought her
vehicle new with 1,800 miles, when in reality she bought a used vehicle that had been driven for
nearly 20,000 miles. Saddling the Putative Classes with a representative whose credibility will
be an issue does not serve the interests of any of the members of the Putative Classes. Similarly,
Ms. Gonzales testified that she had never seen the complaint prior to her deposition. (Gonzales
Dep. at 159:20-24.) She had her parking brake replaced shortly before joining the case at a

mechanic recommended by counsel, and her lawyers paid for her repairs; as a result, she
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personally has incurred no loss with respect to the alleged defect in this case. (Id. at 90:11-91:1,
93:9-94:4.)

55. Moreover, the burden to move expeditiously for class certification and
recognition within a bankruptcy proceeding, in compliance with Rule 23(c)(1), falls on the class
representative and “the class representative’s failure to move for class certification is a strong
indication that he will not fairly and adequately represent the interests of the class.” In re
Woodward, 205 B.R. at 370. As the Putative Class Claim fails to meet the requirements of Rule
23, the Court should not allow it to proceed as a class claim, and it should be disallowed.

C. The Members of the Putative Classes Are Not Properly Identifiable

56. Finally, inherent in Rule 23 is the requirement that a proposed class be
“identifiable” or ascertainable. In re Methyl Tertiary Butyl Ether (“MTBE”’) Prods. Liab. Litig.,
209 F.R.D. 323, 336-37 (S.D.N.Y. 2002). This requirement is not satisfied if a court must
conduct a merits inquiry merely to determine who is included in the proposed class. Courts have
determined that proposed classes are not identifiable when class definitions are “overly broad,
amorphous or vague.” In re Fosamax Prods. Liab. Litig., 248 F.R.D. 389, 396-97 (S.D.N.Y.
2008) (rejecting class certification because class was defined to broadly) (citing Perez v.
Metabolife Int’l, Inc., 218 F.R.D. 262, 269 (S.D. Fla. 2003)); see also In re Ford Motor Co.
Ignition Switch Prods. Liab. Litig., 194 F.R.D. 484, 490-91 (D.N.J. 2000) (class member cannot
succeed on product liability-based claim unless that specific class member suffered damages as a
result of the alleged defect), reconsideration denied, No. Civ. A. 96-1814 (JBS), 2001 WL
1869820 (D.N.J. Feb. 8, 2001); Sanneman v. Chrysler Corp., 191 F.R.D. 441, 449-50 (E.D. Pa.
2000) (same). Here, the Putative Classes are too broad to be identifiable as they seek to include
all owners of any 1999-2005 model year vehicle sold or leased in the United States equipped

with PBR or TRW parking brake systems, and impermissibly includes persons: (i) who have
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never experienced the alleged defect and therefore have no claim, (ii) who had their vehicles
repaired under warranty, (iit) who as lessees, do not own their vehicles and therefore cannot be
harmed by any alleged diminishment in their residual value, (iv) who are not “consumers” under
the CLRA because they acquired their vehicle for business rather than “for personal, family, or

household purposes,”*°

and (v) who are purchasers of used vehicles or who received their
vehicles as a gift."* (See Putative Class Compl. at 33-34.) Plaintiffs’ class definitions also
inappropriately extend to every single purchaser and lessee within a vehicle’s chain of title. See,
e.g., Commander Props. Corp. v. Beech Aircraft Corp., 164 F.R.D. 529, 534 (D. Kan. 1995)
(“Class certification is definitely not appropriate for a class which includes all owners in the
chain of title.”).

57. Moreover, in order to determine class membership for the Putative
Classes, the Court would, thus, need to first determine: (i) whether each individual’s vehicle has
the subject parking brake system; (ii) whether any repair of the parking brake system was paid
for by MLC in full or in part; (iii) whether the class member properly maintained the parking
brake equipment; (iv) whether the class member actually received a representation regarding the
parking brake equipment, the details regarding that representation, where the representation was
made, and whether it was made by a person with authority to legally bind MLC; (v) whether the

class member reasonably relied on MLC’s alleged misrepresentations regarding the parking

brake equipment; (vi) whether such alleged misrepresentations were material; and (vii) whether a

195ee CAL. CIv. CoDE § 1761(d).

! These individuals paid no money to GM for their vehicles, and therefore could not have relied on alleged
misrepresentations by GM. Nor may they recover restitutionary damages under the UCL, as restitution is only
available under § 17200 when the defendant acquired money or property from the plaintiff. See Korea Supply Co. v.
Lockheed Martin Corp., 29 Cal. 4th 1134, 1149 (2003).
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class member’s claims are barred by the statue of limitations or other affirmative defenses such
as comparative negligence.

58.  Accordingly, the members of the Putative Classes are not properly
ascertainable under Rule 23, and the Putative Class Claim should be disallowed. See In re Vioxx
Prods. Liab. Litig., No. 05-1657, 2008 WL 4681368, at *9-10 (E.D. La. Oct. 21, 2008) (“Where
it is facially apparent from the pleadings that there is no ascertainable class, a district court may
dismiss the class action on the pleadings.”), aff’d, 300 F. App’x 261 (5th Cir. 2008); Brazil v.
Dell Inc., 585 F. Supp. 2d 1158, 1167 (N.D. Cal. 2008); Barasich v. Shell Pipeline Co., LP, No.
Civ. A. 05-4180, 2008 WL 6468611, at *4 (E.D. La. June 19, 2008).

D. The Injunctive Relief Sought by the Putative Class
Claim Under Rule 23(b)(2) Is Mooted by the Debtors’ Liquidation

59. First, the Putative Class Claim cannot meet the requirements of Rule
23(b)(2), as any claim for injunctive relief is mooted because the Debtors do not presently
operate a business and are liquidating. See In re Ephedra Prods. Liab. Litig., 329 B.R. at 9 n.5
(“Insofar as the class claims seek injunctive relief against Twinlabs under Rule 23(b)(2), they are
moot now that Twinlabs has gone out of business and existence.”). As a result, the Debtors
cannot be compelled to, inter alia, issue corrective notices, repair or replace the allegedly
defective brake parts, or be permanently enjoined from the alleged “wrongful acts and practices”
or their alleged “unlawful, unfair, fraudulent, and deceitful activity” as sought by Plaintiffs. (See
Putative Class Compl. 11 120, 141, 145.)

E. Numerous Individual Issues Predominate Over Any Common Questions

60.  Plaintiffs also fail to satisfy Rule 23(b)(3) because individual issues

predominate over common questions and a class action is not a superior method of adjudicating

the Putative Class Claim.
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a. Variations in the Law of 51 Jurisdictions Defeat Predominance

61. Federal courts have made it clear time and again that before a court can
analyze whether the factors under Federal Rule 23 are satisfied, the court must determine which
state’s or states’ substantive law governs the underlying claims. See, e.g., In re Prempro Prods.
Liab. Litig., 230 F.R.D. 555, 561 (E.D. Ark. 2005) (“Not only must the choice-of-law issue be
addressed at the class certification stage — it must be tackled at the front end since it pervades
every element of [Federal Rule] 23.”); Chin v. Chrysler Corp., 182 F.R.D. 448, 457 (D.N.J.
1998). This is logical because it would be impossible to determine whether there are questions
of law common to the class, for example, without first determining the substance of the
applicable law. Both federal case law and the Constitution mandate that this Court perform a
choice-of-law analysis before determining whether this case is properly certified as a class
action. See Phillips Petroleum Co. v. Shutts, 472 U.S. 797, 821 (1985), remanded to, 732 P.2d
1286 (Kan. 1987), cert. denied, 487 U.S. 1223 (1988).*2

62.  This requirement begets the question of which state’s or states’ law should
apply to the class claims when a class is comprised of individuals living, and allegedly injured by
the defendant’s conduct, in every state in the nation. Federal courts in this jurisdiction and
across the country have consistently answered this question by holding that where a purported
class action would involve class members from more than one state “the court will apply the law

of each of the states from which plaintiffs hail.” In re Ford Motor Co. Ignition Switch Prods.

12 As discussed supra, the Arkansas court in Bryant declined to undertake a choice of law analysis because Arkansas
state law, unlike federal law, does not require a “rigorous analysis™ with respect to class certification requirements.
This Court has previously noted the differing approach federal courts take from some state courts in certifying class
actions. In In re Worldcom, 343 B.R. at 418, n.3, this Court cited Schwartz, Behrens and Lorber, Tort Reform Past,
Present and Future: Solving Old Problems and Dealing with “New Style™ Litigation, 27 Wm. Mitchell L. Rev. 237,
264 (2000) for the observation that “[f]ederal courts are required to perform a rigorous analysis of requests for class
certification. State courts on the other hand, often take a laissez-faire attitude toward certifying statewide or even
nationwide-classes.”
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Liab. Litig., 174 F.R.D. 332, 348 (D.N.J. 1997); In re Rezulin Prods. Liab. Litig., 210 F.R.D. 61,
70-71 (S.D.N.Y. 2002), reconsideration denied, 224 F.R.D. 346 (S.D.N.Y. 2004); Kaczmarek,
186 F.R.D. at 312-13; Feinstein v. Firestone Tire & Rubber Co., 535 F. Supp. 595, 605
(S.D.N.Y. 1982). To hold otherwise and apply only the forum state’s substantive law to the class
certification analysis would violate Constitutional principles of due process and federalism. See
Allstate Ins. Co. v. Hague, 449 U.S. 302, 312-13, 335-36 (1981), reh’g denied, 450 U.S. 971
(1981)." This is particularly applicable here, where the Putative Class Claim asserts causes of
action based on the California UCL™ and CLRA on behalf of a nationwide class. California
courts have determined that a nationwide class cannot be certified for UCL and CLRA claims
arising from conduct that occurred outside of California. See Cohen v. DIRECTV, Inc., 101 Cal.
Rptr. 3d 37, 42, 47 (2009) (citing Norwest Mortg., Inc. v. Superior Court, 85 Cal. Rptr. 2d 18
(1999)).

63. Compliance with the Constitutional requirement of applying every state’s
law to the claims in a nationwide class action is fatal to class certification when the applicable
laws differ from state to state. This Court and countless others have repeatedly held that “the

need of a court to apply diverse laws and varied burdens of proof to the individual class

3 The Supreme Court expressly admonished a state court for applying its state’s substantive law to a nationwide
class action filed within its borders, noting that the state “may not take a transaction with little or no relationship to
the forum and apply the law of the forum in order to satisfy the procedural requirement that there be a ‘common
question of law.”” Phillips Petroleum Co., 472 U.S. at 821. The Phillips Petroleum Court concluded that the forum
state’s “lack of ‘interest’ in claims unrelated to that State and the substantive conflict with” other jurisdictions
rendered the application of the forum state’s law to every claim in the nationwide class action “sufficiently arbitrary
and unfair as to exceed constitutional limits.” 1d. at 822.

% The Purported Class Complaint alleges that predicate unlawful acts in violation of the UCL include the violation
of brake laws of the states (excluding Hawaii and the District of Columbia). (Purported Class Complaint at 46-48.)
However, the various laws cited differ greatly in what is required and what standards are applied, reinforcing the
failure of predominance. Compare Mich. Comp. Laws § 257.705 (“The same brake drums, brake shoes, and lining
assemblies, brake shoe anchors, and mechanical brake shoe actuation mechanism normally associated with the
wheel brake assemblies may be used for both the service brakes and parking brakes.”) with Cal. Veh. Code § 26451
(no regulation regarding the same).
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members’ claims defeats the predominance requirement of Federal Rule 23(b)(3).” Inre
Worldcom, Inc., 343 B.R. at 427; In re Laser Arms Corp. Sec. Litig., 794 F. Supp. 475, 495
(S.D.N.Y. 1989) (“In the absence of a single state law governing each entire common law claim,
common questions of law would not predominate over individual questions.”), aff’d, 969 F.2d 15
(2d Cir. 1992); In re Bridgestone/Firestone, Inc., 288 F.3d 1012, 1015 (7th Cir. 2002), cert.
denied, 537 U.S. 1105 (2003) (“No class action is proper unless all litigants are governed by the
same legal rules.”); Henry Schein, Inc. v. Stromboe, 102 S.W.3d 675, 698-99 (Tex. 2002) (citing
dozens of federal and state cases that have “rejected class certification when multiple states’ laws
must be applied”).

64. Plaintiffs have the burden of establishing that variations in the laws of the
jurisdictions do not “swamp any common issues and defeat predominance.” Castano v. Am.
Tobacco Co., 84 F.3d 734, 741 (5th Cir. 1996). Here, Plaintiffs cannot meet this burden as
courts have repeatedly determined that variations in the causes of action at issue in this case —
inter alia, violations of various state consumer protection statutes — have made certification of
nationwide class actions impermissible.

65.  Courts have repeatedly denied certification of nationwide classes based on
multiple states’ consumer fraud statutes because “state consumer-protection laws vary
considerably.” In re Bridgestone/Firestone, 288 F.3d at 1018 (recognizing that “state consumer-
protection laws vary considerably” and holding that “because [the plaintiffs’ consumer fraud]
claims must be adjudicated under the law of so many jurisdictions, a single nationwide class is
not manageable”); see In re McDonald’s French Fries Litig., 257 F.R.D. 669, 671, 674 (N.D. Ill.
2009) (denying class certification of claims of “violations of various states’ consumer protection

statutes” because “[nJumerous courts, including the Seventh Circuit, have dealt with this
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question. Overwhelmingly, those courts have found material conflicts among the fifty states’
laws on the claims plaintiffs bring in this case and have denied class certification, at least in part,
on that basis.”); Pilgrim v. Universal Health Card, LLC, No. 5:09CV879, 2010 WL 1254849, at
*4 (N.D. Ohio Mar. 25, 2010) (“[T]he Court agrees with the extensive analysis put forth by
[defendant] demonstrating that consumer laws and the law on unjust enrichment vary
significantly from state to state. Courts have likewise accepted this argument.”); cf. Schnall v.
AT & T Wireless Servs., Inc., 225 P.3d 929, 935 (Wash. 2010) (“Based primarily on the burden
of applying multiple states’ laws, an overwhelming number of federal courts have denied
certification of nationwide state-law class actions.”) (internal quotation marks omitted).

66. Because the Court must apply the substantive laws of all jurisdictions
from which the members of the Putative Classes hail, and such application results in conflicting
laws, the Putative Class Claim cannot be allowed.

b. Necessity of Individual Fact Determinations Destroys
Predominance

67.  Courts also deny certification where “individualized issues of fact
abound.” In re MTBE, 209 F.R.D. at 349; see also In re Worldcom, Inc., 343 B.R. at 427, n.26
(“the need to evaluate factual differences along with divergent legal issues defeats the
predominance requirement under Rule 23(b)(3)”) (internal quotes and citations omitted). Courts
have specifically held that class actions alleging motor vehicle product liability claims and
seeking economic loss damages should not be certified because individual questions of fact will
predominate:

... the need to establish injury and causation with respect to each class

member will necessarily require a detailed factual inquiry including

physical examination of each vehicle, a mind-boggling concept that is

preclusively costly in both time and money. We will not certify a class

that will result in an administrative process lasting for untold years, where
individual threshold questions will overshadow common issues regarding
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Defendant’s alleged conduct. Accordingly, we conclude that Plaintiff has
not adequately shown that common issues predominate over individual
issues. . .. Courts are hesitant to certify classes in litigation where
individual use factors present themselves, such as cases involving
allegedly defective motor vehicles and parts. The administrative burdens
are frequently too unmanageable for a class action to make sense in such
cases.

Sanneman, 191 F.R.D. at 449 (emphasis added).

68. The “preclusively costly” “administrative burdens” warned about in the
Sanneman case would certainly be present here, where the Putative Classes consist of, among
other things, all owners or lessees of any General Motors vehicle containing a PBR or TRW
System for a more than six-year period, not simply those owners or lessees whose vehicles
experienced a malfunctioning parking brake. Thus, the issue of whether a particular class
member’s parking brake malfunctioned as a result of the alleged defect would alone lead to a
sharp divergence in the factual underpinnings of each claim, especially considering that the
Subject Vehicles include at least ten different models of manual and automatic transmission
vehicles. Such an individualized analysis is crucial because a class member cannot succeed on a
product liability-based claim unless that specific class member suffered damages as a result of
the alleged defect. See In re Ford Motor Co. Ignition Switch Prods. Liab. Litig., 174 F.R.D. at
490-91, Sanneman, 191 F.R.D. at 449-50. Individualized factual inquiries would need to be
performed to address the issues of if, or when, any parking brake malfunctioned; the cause of any
malfunction; whether the parking brake was covered by warranty; whether the parking brake had
already been repaired by MLC (or someone else); whether MLC and/or the consumer had
knowledge of the alleged parking brake malfunction; whether the class member relied on MLC’s
alleged misrepresentations/omissions regarding the parking brake; whether such alleged

misrepresentations/omissions were material; whether a class member’s claims are barred by the
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statue of limitations or other affirmative defenses such as comparative negligence; and what the
appropriate remedy should be for any particular class member.

69. The individualized fact inquiries will further include facts related to
individual vehicle usage and maintenance, which are the primary influence over whether a
parking brake will experience excessive wear. Factors that may cause or contribute to excessive
wear of parking brakes may include: lack of inspection and maintenance, improper service of the
vehicle, use on rough road conditions, driving habits that include sharp turns at excessive speeds,
overloading the vehicle beyond the rear gross axle rating, failing to disengage the parking brake
before moving the vehicle, using the parking brake as a service brake while in motion, excessive
dirt and debris entering into the brake, and owner modification to raise the truck. These
nonexclusive lists provides a mere sampling of the myriad of factual differences that will
“overshadow common issues.” See In re MTBE, 209 F.R.D. at 349. When coupled with the
variations in law relevant to determining the foregoing facts, Plaintiffs cannot meet their burden
of satisfying the predominance requirement and, thus, the class fails to meet the requirements of
Rule 23.

70. Moreover, courts in the Second Circuit and elsewhere have specifically
held that the predominance requirement cannot be satisfied for fraud or misrepresentation based
claims because the several issues, including reliance and causation, are not susceptible to
generalized proof and require an individualized inquiry. See, e.g., McLaughlin v. Am. Tobacco
Co., 522 F.3d 215, 223-30 (2d Cir. 2008); Kottler v. Deutsche Bank AG, No. 08 Civ. 7773
(PAC), 2010 WL 1221809, at *3 (S.D.N.Y. Mar. 29, 2010) (finding predominance not satisfied
because varied misrepresentations preclude class certification in a fraud claim); Sikes v. Teleline,

Inc., 281 F.3d 1350, 1362-66 (11th Cir.) (certification of fraud class action vacated because
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individual issues of reliance and causation predominated), reh’g denied, 35 F. App’x 859 (11th
Cir.), cert. denied, 537 U.S. 884 (2002); Andrews v. Am. Tel. & Tel. Co., 95 F.3d 1014, 1024-25
(11th Cir.), reh’g denied, 104 F.3d 373 (11th Cir. 1996) (same); Castano, 84 F.3d at 737, 745
(denying certification in action where claims included “violation of state consumer protection
statutes” and “disgorge[ment]” of profits, holding that class action “cannot be certified when
individual reliance will be an issue”); In re Rezulin Prods. Liab. Litig., 210 F.R.D. at 68-69
(individual issues would predominate on claim for restitution of purchase price arising from
alleged undisclosed product dangers); Chin, 182 F.R.D. at 455-57 (denying class certification in
case asserting latent product defect in light of many individual issues of fact, including
ascertainable injury, causation, reliance and privity); In re Ford Motor Co. Bronco Il Prod. Liab.
Litig., 177 F.R.D. 360, 372-75 (E.D. La.), reconsideration denied, No. Civ. A. MDL 991, 1997
WL 191488 (E.D. La. Apr. 17, 1997) (same); In re Ford Motor Co. Ignition Switch Prods. Liab.
Litig., 174 F.R.D. at 342-44 (same); Truckway, Inc. v. Gen. Elec., No. Civ. A. 91-0122, 1992
WL 70575, at **5, 7 (E.D. Pa. Mar. 30, 1992) (individual issues predominated in state consumer
fraud action “[b]ecause not all members of the class would have relied on the alleged fraudulent
material omissions and misrepresentation . . . and because a determination of whether each
member of the class was defrauded . . . would require each class member to individually prove
the issue of reliance and fraud on a case by case basis”); see also Hurd v. Monsanto Co., 164
F.R.D. 234, 240 n.3 (S.D. Ind. 1995) (“The necessity of proving reliance by each class member
upon the alleged fraudulent misrepresentations causes individual issues to predominate.”);
Sunbird Air Servs., Inc. v. Beech Aircraft Corp., Civ. A. No. 89-2181-V, 1992 WL 193661, at *5
(D. Kan. July 15, 1992) (“individual issues of causation and reliance as to each class member

would predominate over the common issues of liability”); Strain v. Nutri/System, Inc., No. Civ.
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A. 90-2772, 1990 WL 209325, at *6 (E.D. Pa. Dec. 12, 1990) (class certification denied where
“each class member [would have] to narrate a story which includes individualized proof of which
advertisements he saw and whether they indeed enrolled in reliance of those advertisements™).

71. Looking just at the issues related to the Putative Class Claim based, in
part, on misrepresentation, it is evident that individual fact issues defeat predominance. Those
questions raise a host of individual issues of fact that render class treatment wholly
unmanageable, including individual questions as to: the fact of product purchase or ownership;
the differing marketing or statements; whether each class member was exposed to allegedly
deceptive marketing or statements; whether each class member purchased products as a result of
such marketing or statements; the details regarding that representation, where the representation
was made, and whether it was made by a person with authority to legally bind MLC; whether the
class member relied on MLC’s alleged misrepresentations regarding the parking brake; and
whether such alleged misrepresentations were material. See In re Woodward, 205 B.R. at 372
(holding issue of fraud as common question of law or fact under Rule 23(b)(3) would require a
showing of reliance on the part of each class member, and “[lJacking in this case [where reliance
on an advertisement is at issue] is the single set of operative facts that can be applied on a class
wide basis . . . . Because the incidents did not occur in a single place, at the same time, or under
identical conditions, individualized issues of causation arise.”). Accordingly, individualized
issues regarding reliance alone would prohibit certification.

72. Further, given the absence of any objective evidence of who purchased
such products or relied upon any of the Debtors’ alleged misrepresentations, the Court would be
required, at the threshold, to make a series of individual credibility determinations as to who is

and is not a member of the Putative Classes. See In re Phenylpropanolamine (PPA) Prods. Liab.
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Litig., 214 F.R.D. 614, 618 (W.D. Wash. 2003) (motion to certify class asserting consumer fraud
claims on behalf of non-injured consumers of PPA products denied primarily because of
difficulty in determining who had even purchased products at issue). The need for
individualized proof is evident from Plaintiffs’ own testimony; both testified — contrary to the
allegations in the Putative Class Complaint — that they had not heard specific representations
about parking brakes and did not review their Owner’s Manuals. (See Gonzales Dep. at 121:6-9,
121:21-122:4, 124:15-24; Hunter Dep. at 36:20-22, 37:7-13, 49:23-50:3, 58:5-19.)

73. Numerous individual issues also exist as to whether any alleged
misrepresentation caused each particular class member to purchase any product, precluding class
certification. For this reason, courts routinely reject class certification of cases claiming unfair
trade practices and other claims similar to those alleged here—including in cases in which
plaintiffs allege a cause of action based on a misrepresentation—because of the overwhelming
number of individual issues relating to reliance, causation, and materiality. See Kottler, 2010
WL 1221809, at *3 (finding predominance not satisfied because varied misrepresentations
preclude class certification in a fraud claim); Castano, 84 F.3d at 737, 745 (denying certification
in action where claims included “violation of state consumer protection statutes” and
“disgorge[ment]” of profits, holding that class action “cannot be certified when individual
reliance will be an issue”); Truckway, 1992 WL 70575, at *5, *7 (individual issues predominated
in state consumer fraud action).

74, Finally, determination of whether each class member suffered “actual
injury,” would require an individualized inquiry into the degree of efficacy of the product for that
particular class member—an inquiry that would, once again, swamp any common issues and

render class treatment wholly unmanageable.
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F. Plaintiffs Cannot Establish that a Class
Action Is Superior to Other Available Methods for
Fairly and Efficiently Adjudicating this Controversy

75. In addition to the requirement that common questions of law or fact must
predominate over individual issues, Plaintiffs must also establish “that a class action is superior
to other available methods for fairly and efficiently adjudicating the controversy.” Fed. R. Civ.
P. 23(b)(3). Given the vast number of individual variations of law and fact that would be
involved in allowing this case to proceed as a nationwide class action, the action would be
unmanageable as a single trial. The issue of MLC’s liability would have to be litigated in
thousands of trials which, even if logistically feasible, would violate the constitutional mandate
that “entitles parties to have fact issues decided by one jury, and prohibits a second jury from
reexamining those facts and issues.” Castano, 84 F.3d at 750 (denying certification for lack of
superiority); see also In re Rhone-Poulenc Rorer, Inc., 51 F.3d 1293, 1303 (7th Cir.), cert.
denied, 516 U.S. 867 (1995) (same); In re Masonite Corp. Hardboard Siding Prods. Liab. Litig.,
170 F.R.D. 417, 427 (E.D. La. 1997) (same). Given that a class action is not manageable in this
case, it is not superior to other available methods for fairly and efficiently adjudicating the
controversy, and thus, the class cannot meet the requirements of Rule 23.

IV.  Alternatively, If the Putative Class Claim Is Not Expunged, It Should Be Subject to
an Immediate Estimation Proceeding

A. Estimation of Claims

76. In the event that the Court finds it appropriate to permit the Putative Class
Claim to proceed as a class claim in whole or in part, the Debtors request an expedited procedure
be established in this Court to quickly liquidate the unliquidated claims of the Putative Classes
and an expedited hearing to estimate the Putative Class Claim pursuant to section 502(c) of the
Bankruptcy Code.
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77. Section 502(c) of the Bankruptcy Code mandates the estimation of all
contingent or unliquidated claims which, if otherwise fixed or liquidated, would unduly delay
administration of a debtor’s case. 11 U.S.C. § 502(c) (“There shall be estimated for purposes of
allowance under this section — (1) any contingent or unliquidated claim, the fixing or liquidation
of which, as the case may be, would unduly delay the administration of the case...”) (emphasis
added); see also In re Chateaugay Corp., 10 F.3d 944, 957 (2d Cir. 1993); In re Thomson
McKinnon Sec., Inc., 143 B.R. 612, 619 (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 1992). The estimation process is an
expedient method for setting the amount of a claim that may receive a distributive share from the
estate. In re Thomson, 143 B.R. at 619 (citing In re Brints Cotton Mktg., Inc., 737 F.2d 1338,
1341 (5th Cir. 1984); Bittner v. Borne Chem. Co., Inc., 691 F.2d 134, 135-37 (3d Cir. 1982); In
re Interco, Inc., 137 B.R. 993, 995 (Bankr. E.D. Mo. 1992). Section 502(c) of the Bankruptcy
Code is designed to (1) avoid the need to await resolution of pending lawsuits to determine
issues of liability or the amount owed by means of anticipating and estimating the likely
outcomes of these actions, and (2) promote fair distribution to creditors through the realistic
assessment of uncertain claims. See In re S. Cinemas, Inc., 256 B.R. 520, 533 (Bankr. M.D. Fla.
2000) (citing In re Ford, 967 F.2d 1047, 1053 (5th Cir.), reh’g denied, 974 F.2d 1337 (5th Cir.
1992)).

78. Bankruptcy Code section 502(c), thus, contains two requirements before a
bankruptcy court must proceed to estimate a claim: (1) the court must determine that the claim is
either contingent or unliquidated, and (2) the court must determine that the time necessary to fix
or liquidate the claim would unduly delay administration of the case. In re Apex Qil Co., 107
B.R. 189, 193 (Bankr. E.D. Mo. 1989). Section 502(c)(1) is drafted in the disjunctive. See 11

U.S.C. 8 502(c) (“There shall be estimated for purposes of allowance under this section — (1) any
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contingent or unliquidated claim...”) (emphasis added).” “‘Liquidated’ denotes the ability to
readily and precisely compute the amount due; the test is whether the amount ‘is capable of
ascertainment by ... a simple computation.”” Id. Congress deliberately included unliquidated
claims in the Bankruptcy Code’s definition of a claim and made provision for their estimation to
permit the broadest possible relief in the bankruptcy court and to ensure that virtually all
obligations to pay money would be amenable to treatment in bankruptcy. See In re CD Realty
Partners, 205 B.R. 651, 655-56 (Bankr. D. Mass. 1997).

79.  Some courts simply assume that a trial will unduly delay administration of
the case and proceed to estimate the creditors’ unliquidated claims. See, e.g., In re Poole
Funeral Chapel, Inc., 63 B.R. 527, 528-32 (Bankr. N.D. Ala. 1986). Other courts examine the
size and magnitude of a debtor’s contingent and unliquidated claims to determine if a full trial on
the claims would unduly delay the chapter 11 cases. See, e.g., In re Johns-Manville Corp., 45
B.R. 823, 826 (S.D.N.Y. 1984). Other factors considered by courts include whether discovery in
the underlying matter had commenced and the anticipated length of a trial process, including
appeals. See In re Baldwin-United Corp., 55 B.R. 885, 888 (Bankr. S.D. Ohio 1985).

80. A court may authorize the estimation and approximation of the allowed
amount of a contingent or unliquidated claim using “whatever method is best suited to the
circumstances” at issue and recognizing that absolute certainty is not possible. In re Thomson,
143 B.R. at 619; In re Brints Cotton Mktg., 737 F.2d at 1341. Additionally, Section 105 of the
Bankruptcy Code provides that a bankruptcy court “may issue any order, process, or judgment

that is necessary or appropriate to carry out the provisions of [the Bankruptcy Code].” See 11

15 Courts have defined contingent claims as claims where liability attaches and is dependent upon the happening of
some future event. See, e.g., In re Mazzeo, 131 F.3d 295, 300 (2d Cir. 1997) (“A claim is not contingent if it has
come into existence and is capable of being enforced at the time the petition is filed.”).
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U.S.C. § 105. Although a court is bound by the legal rules that govern the ultimate value of the
claim, it has wide discretion in establishing the method to be used to arrive at an estimate of the
value of a claim or claims.*® Whatever procedure the Court chooses to estimate a claim, it must
be consistent with the policy underlying chapter 11 that the process be “accomplished quickly
and efficiently.” See Bittner, 691 F.2d at 137 (citing 124 Cong. Rec. H. 11101- H. 11102 (daily
ed. Sept. 28, 1978)).

B. The Putative Class Claim Must Be Estimated If the Claim Is Not Expunged

81.  The Putative Class Claim is contingent and unliquidated because its value
is not a matter of a simple computation. As filed, the Putative Classes seek damages of an
“unknown” amount, (see Putative Class Claim (Ex. A)), and the Debtors dispute the validity of
the Putative Class Claim.” Due to the potential magnitude of the Putative Class Claim, the Plan
cannot be confirmed until the Putative Class Claim is liquidated. Liquidating the Putative Class
Claim by methods other than estimation proceedings pursuant to section 502(c) of the
Bankruptcy Code would undoubtedly severely delay administration of the Debtors’ cases.

82.  Thus, unless the Putative Class Claim is disallowed in its entirety,
estimation is mandatory. Further, given the large number of potential members of the Putative

Classes, Plaintiffs should be required to monetize their claims.

18 In re Brints Cotton Mktg., 737 F.2d at 1341; see, e.g., In re Windsor Plumbing Supply Co., 170 B.R. 503 (Bankr.
E.D.N.Y. 1994) (claim estimated based on review of the documents submitted); In re Nova Real Estate Inv. Trust,
23 B.R. 62 (Bankr. E.D. Va. 1982) (claim estimated based on review of pleadings, briefs, and a one-day hearing); In
re Baldwin-United Corp., 55 B.R. at 885 (approximate $300 million claim estimated at zero in the context of
summary trial); In re Lane, 68 B.R. 609, 612 (Bankr. D. Ha. 1986) ($5 million claim estimated at $550,000 solely
on pleadings and briefs); In re Seaman Furniture Co. of Union Square, Inc., 160 B.R. 40, 42 (S.D.N.Y. 1993) ($50
million claim estimated at $749.07 based on non-binding prepetition arbitration decision); In re White Farm Equip.
Co., 38 B.R. 718 (N.D. Ohio 1984) (products liability claim estimated by special master rather than jury).

7 The Debtors reserve all rights to object to the Putatove Class Claim on substantive and procedural grounds,
including, but not limited to, their failure to state a claim for relief.
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Notice

83. Notice of this Motion has been provided to counsel for Plaintiffs and to
the parties in interest in accordance with the Fourth Amended Order Pursuant to 11 U.S.C. §
105(a) and Fed. R. Bankr. P. 1015(c) and 9007 Establishing Notice and Case Management
Procedures, dated August 24, 2010 [ECF No. 6750]. The Debtors submit that such notice is
sufficient and no other or further notice need be provided.

84. No previous request for the relief sought herein has been made by the
Debtors to this or any other Court.

85.  WHEREFORE the Debtors respectfully request entry of an order granting
the relief requested herein and such other and further relief as is just.’®

Dated: New York, New York
December 17, 2010

[s/ Joseph H. Smolinsky
Harvey R. Miller
Stephen Karotkin
Joseph H. Smolinsky

WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP
767 Fifth Avenue

New York, New York 10153
Telephone: (212) 310-8000
Facsimile: (212) 310-8007

Attorneys for Debtors
and Debtors in Possession

18 Should the Court find it appropriate to permit the Putative Class Claim to proceed as a class claim in whole or in
part, the Debtors reserve their rights to request that an expedited procedure be established in this Court to quickly
liquidate such claims and an expedited hearing to estimate the Putative Class Claim pursuant to section 502(c) of the
Bankruptcy Code. See 11 U.S.C. § 502(c) (“There shall be estimated for purposes of allowance under this section—
(1) any contingent or unliquidated claim, the fixing or liquidation of which, as the case may be, would unduly delay
the administration of the case...”) (emphasis added); see also In re Chateaugay Corp., 10 F.3d at 957; In re
Thomson McKinnon Sec., Inc., 143 B.R. at 619. Further, should an estimation proceeding go forward, Plaintiffs
should be required to provide substantial documentation to support the alleged nature of their claim.
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Exhibit A
Proof of Claim No. 19633
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CASE NO. BC 324 622

CLASS ACTION

[Assigoed to the Hon. Carl J. West, Dept 311]
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I.
INTRODUCTION ,
1 . Defendant General Motors Corporation {(“GM™) admuts that 1t designed, manufactured,

marketed, advertised, dlsmbuted, sold and delivered certain vehicles that are defective Specifically, GM

|

“ vehicles (“SUV’s”) manufactured, marketed and sold by 1t are defective:

admuts that all the PBR and TRW parking brake systems tmn 1999 - 2005 model year trucks and sport utihity

““General Motors has decided that a defect, which relates to motor vehicle safety, exists

in certain 1999-2002 C/K 1500 Series (PBR parking brake system) and 2001-2005 C/K

25006 and 3500 Series (TRW parking brake system) picklips with manual

transmissions ” | | |

2 These parking brake systems are not only defective, théy present an unreasonable pubhc risk
of motor vehicle accidents resulting m serious bodily injﬁry and/or death By way of one example among
many, it was reported by NHTS A, the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, that 1n June 2004,
a Califorma resxdent and mother of two P,XIIT.Cd her vehicle {one of the Subject Vehicles) after engaging the
parking brake and placing the automatic transmssion in Park  The vehicle began to roll and 1n attempting
to save her two children trapped in the run away vehicle, she was run over by her own vehicle She
sustained severe bodily myury and her vehicle violently struck a tree, injuring her two children, and causing
extensive damage to.the vehlclé and property |

3 Despite this admission, and its knowledge, awareness and responsibibity for the defect, GM
made false, misleading, unfair, deceptive, unlawful and frandulent representations to consumers, including
Plamnffs Ms Hunter, Ms Pulganin, and Ms Gonzales, about the quality, safety and braking systems of 1ts
defective vehicles For example, GM madé the following represeniatlons. among others, to Ms Hunter,
Ms. Pulgarin, Ms Gonzales, and others similarly situated, that the Subject Vehicles (as defined below)

« had a “TECHNICALLY ADVANCED BRAKING SYSTEM?”,
*  “new braking sysiems that increase brake pad hie by up to four times that of current
models”and “the brake pad hfe can last up to four times longer than the previons design”

« brake systems meeting regional legal requirements”

. -2-
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“vehicles [] engineered for excellent durability  [and] Perhaps most noteworthy, redesigned

braking [] systems ”

were “ENGINEER[ED] [ ] TO THE HIGHEST STANDARD",

were “CERTIFIED” to comply with “ALL APPLICABLE U.S FEDERAL MOTOR
VEHICLE SAFETY STANDARDS”

“WAS DESIGNED AND TESTED WITH TOP-QUALITY GM BRAKE PARTS”

“At GMC we believe that safe dniving begins by avoiding collistons, and the Yukon and
Yukon XL are engineered to help you do exactly that ”

“engmeered to meet our toughest standards”

“the most dependable, longest-lasting trucks on the road ™

were equipped with “PROFESSIONAL BRAKE ENGINEERING. ~

were equipped with a “COMPLEX” . “braking system”

were “PRECISION-ENGINEERED AND BUILT TO {GM’S] HIGH QUALITY
STANDARDS” _

“tough technology, designed to bring you a more dependable, longer-lasting truck
excellent breaking power and minimal brake fade ™ |

“the most dependable, Iongest lasting trucks on the road * * Dependability based on
longevity ”

“Repairs made to correct any vehicle defect”

“brake systems requmes meeting regional legal requirements”
“an even higher level of safety and security features than the previous generation And it does

your safety and security are always a top prionty — even 1n the things you may not readily

notice  Your safety and secunty In the all-new Tahoe, it’s what really matters to us
*“we began redesigning the full-size SUVs by extensively researching the needs of our

customers  establishing new benchmarks in Yukon’s performance ™

Each of these representations (and other representations) made by GM to Ms Hunter, Ms Pulgann, and Ms
Gonzales, and others stmularly situated were false and GM knew they were false when they made them GM

knew these representations were fatse because at the time they were made to Plamntiffs, GM knew that the
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Subject Vehicles had defective brake systems, were of wferior quality, and are unsafe

4 This action 1s brought under the Consumer Legal Remedies Act, Civil Code §§ 1750 et seq
and Business & Professions Code §§ 17200 ef seq , Civil Code section 1795 90 et seq (“Cahforma's Secret
Warranty Law”) and other laws and seeks to hold GM hableto Ms Hunter, Ms Pulgarin, Ms Gonzales and
others simlarly situated for, among other things, GM’s unlawful, unfair, fraudulent and deceptive business
acts and practices GM made false, fraudulcnt; unfair, deceptrve and unlawful representations to Ms. Hunter,
Ms Pulgarn, Ms Gonzales, and others simularly situated about the quality, safety and functionality of the
parking brake systems on certain of its trucks and SUVs — trucks and SUVs that 1t knew were of mfenor
quahty, unsafe and equipped with defective parking brake systems when it made the false, frandulent, vafair,
deceptive and unlawful representations 7

5 Plantiffs bring this class action on behalf of themselves and all others simlarly situated for
damages, restitution, and other relief against GM for, among other things, designing, manufacturing,
certifying, distnbuting and selling vehicles with a defective parking brake system The models of trucks
with a defective parking brake System include at léast the following 2002-2003 Cadillac Escalade, Escalade
EXIST, 2003 Cadillac Escalade ESV, 1998-2003 Chevrolet Blazer, 1999-2003 Chevrolet Silverado 1500
Series (trucks), 2000-2003 Chevrolet Suburban, Tahoe (1500 Senes), 2002-2003 Chevrolet TrailBlazer,
Trailblazer EXIST, 1998-2003 GMC Jimmy, 1999-2003 GMC Sierra 1500 Senes, 2000-2003 GMC Yukon
1500 Senes, 2002-2003 GMC Envoy, Envoy XL, 2002-2003 ChevroletAﬁa}anche 1500 Series Models, and
1998-2003 Oldsmobile Bravada (the “SubjectVVehlclcs”)- Each of these vehicle mo&eis have the parking
brake systems 1dentified and admutted by GM to be defective

| o
d UkISDICTION AND VENUE

6 This action asserts claims under the Califorma Consumers Legal Remedses Act, Civil Code
§8 1750 et seq , the Califorma Unfair Competifion Law, Business & Professions Code §§ 17200 el seq , and
similar coxﬂmon énd statutory law 1n effect nationwide This Court has junsdiction over this action under
Article 6 of the Calhiforrua Constitution and Code of Civil Procedure § 410 10

7 Venue 1s proper m this county, because acts, conduct, and events alleged herein occurred in

Los Angeles County Venue 1s proper in this county because the transactions in which the named plamntiffs
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bought their vehicles occurred 1n Los Angeles Counfy The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury
undcf the laws of the State of Cahforma that the preceding Scntence 1s frue and correct and was execuied
at Los Angeles, on the date set forth at his signature
| | IIL
PARTIES

8. Plammtiff La Ronda Hunter 1s a Los Angeles County, Califoria resident Ms. Hunter
purchased and owns one of the Subject Vehicles, a 2001 GMC Yukon 1500 Senes Model, which was
designed, manufactured, tested, evaluated, inspected, certified, marketed, advertised, dlstnbuted, sold and
delivered to her with a defective parking brake system Ms Hunter’s vehicle has the PBR parking brake
system that GM admits 1s defecive Ms Hunter made efforts to have GM correct, repair, replace or
otherwise fect:fy the unsafe and defective parking brake system on her 2001 GMC Yukon, which GM
refused to do Ms Hunter expended her own funds, approximately $260 00 1n parts and labor, to have the
defective brakes replaced Additionally, Ms. Hunter has suffered damages and lost money in an amount
equal to the dlfferenée between what was represented, a vehicle with a parking brake system that would
Work as an immobihzation dév:ce, and what she received, a vehicle with a defective parking brake system
that would not immobihze the vehicle whén required

9 Ms Hunter appears 1n this action on behaif of herself and on behalf of all others simularly

situated pursuant to Business and Professions Code §§17200 et seg Ms Hunter also appears on behalf of

the General Public in her capacity as a private attorney general _
10 Plaint:ff Rosana N Pulgarin 1s a Los Angeles County, California resident Ms Pulgann
purchased and owns one of the Sﬁbject Vehicles, a 2001 Chevrolet Tahoe, which was designed,
manufactured, tested, evaluated, inspected, certified, marketed, advertised, distributed, sold and delivered
to her with adefective parking brake system Ms Pul ga:nﬁ’s vehicle also has the PBR parking brake system
that GM adtnits 1s defective. Ms Pulgarnn made efforts to have GM correct, repair, replace or otherwise
rectify the unsafe and defective parking brake system on her 2001 Chevrolet Tahoe wiich GM refused to
do In particular, in response to GM’s representations as alleged herein, Ms Pulgann has at all times
maintained her customer loyalty with the same GM dealership where she purchased her Subject Vehicle,

new Ms Pulgann has fasthfully returned to that same GM dealership cvery- 3,000 nules for routine

. -5
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maintenance, 01l changes and mspections, and taken her vehicle to that GM dealcrshlp for GM’s “Scheduled
Maintenance™ at “7,500 Miles (12 500 kin),” “15,000 Miles (25 000 km),” *22,500 Miles (37 500 km),” and
30,000 Miles (50 000 km)” as mstructed by her GM “Owner’s Manual ” To date, Ms Pulgarin has spent
hundreds of dollars on GM ’s clarmed “Qur;lhty Servmé,” yet at no time, during any of these penodic and/or
GM “Scheduled Mamtenance” visits has GM informed her that her parking brake system on the Subject
Vehicle 1s defective aﬁd/or reﬁaued the defects as alleged heremn  As a result, Ms Pulgann has conferred
an economuc benefit on GM, by returning to the Dealership where she purchased her vehicle and at al} times
relevant, GM has failed to live up to their end of the bargain and performed the “repairs made to correct any
vehicle defect” as represented and as warranted by GM  As a direct and proximate result, Ms Pulgann has
suffered damages and lost money in an amount equal to .thc difference between what was represented, a
vehicle with a p_arkmg brake system that would work as an immobilization device, and what she recerved,
a vehicle with a defective parking brake system that would not immobilize the vehicle when required and
conferred a monetary benefit to GM which 1s unjust for GM to retain all or a portion of those monies
Plaintiff has paid GM  The defective parking brake system on Ms Pulgann’s vehicle mamfested itself by
showmg abnormal and premature wear on the hnmgs of the rear parking brake requiring repair  Therefore,
the defective parking brakes on her vehicle are malfunctioning and/or are fatling before the end of their
expected useful life

11 Ms Pulgarin appears 1n thes action on behalf of heréelf and on bebalf of all others sumnilarly
situated pursuant to Business and Professions Code §§17200 e seqg Ms Pulgann also appears on behalf
of the General Public in her capacity as a private attorney general '

12 Plamtiff Robin Gonzales 1s a Los Angeles County, Califorma resident Ms Gonzales

purchased and owns one of the Subject Vehicles, a 2001 Chevrolet Silverado, which was demgned,

“ manufactured, fested, evaluated, inspected, certified, marketed, advertised, distributed, sold and delivered

to her with a defective parking brake system Ms Gonzales’ vehicle has the PBR parking brake system that

GM admuts 15 defecive Ms Gonzales made numerous efforts to have GM correct, reparr, replace or

!
otherwise rectify the unsafe and defective parking brake system on her 2001 Chevrolet Stlverado which GM

refused to do  Specifically, Ms Gonzales presented her Subject Vehicle to an authorized GM service and

repair center for penodic service and repair and for GM’s “Scheduled Maintenance™ at “7,500 Miles (12 500
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km),” “15,000 Miles (25 000 km),” 22,500 Miles (37 500 km),” and “30,000 Miles (50 000 km)” as |
instructed by her GM “Owner’s Manual ” In particular, within GM’s warranty period, at approximately
26,000 miles, Ms Gonzales took her 2001 Chevrolet Silverado to an authorized GM Dealer for service and
repair of a number of defects and/or problems, which mclude a defect and/or problem with her parking
brakes not working and/or otherwise being inoperable  Upon return of the Subject Vehicle to Ms Gonzales,
the authorized GM Dealer provided a written summary of repairs, and buried within that summary was the
following notation “COMMENTS . PARKING BRAKE INOP ™ Shortly thereafter, Ms Gonzales
confronted GM’s authornized service and/or repair representatives and requested that GM repair and/or make
the parking brake operable. Inresponse toMs Gonzales’ requests, GM represented thatMs Gonzales does
not need parking brakes and has refused to repair the defective parking brakes and/or otherwise make them
operable as warranted and as represented To this day, GM has never warned or advised Ms Gonzales and
others simtlarly situated of the safety related design defect that has at all times relevant existed m the parking
brake system on her velicle To date, Ms. Gonzales has spent hundreds of dollars on GM’s claimed
“Quality Service,” yet at no time, duning any of Ms Gonzales’ numerous periodic and/or GM “Scheduled
Mamten_ance’.’ visits has GM ever notified her that the defect(s) m her parking brake system on the Subject
Vehicle present an unreasonable public nsk of motor vehicle accidents rcsu-ltlng 11t serious bodily njury
and/or death nor has GM at any time offered to or corrected the defective parking brake system on the
Subject Vehicle free of charge, as warranted and as rcpresented As a result, Ms Gonzales has conferred
an economuc benefit on GM by returming to the GM authorized Dealerships and service centers for service |
and repair of her vehicle and GM has failed to live up to their end of the bargain and has.not performed the
“repairs made to correct any vehicle defect” and/or as represented and as warranted by GM

13 Ms Gonzales expended her own funds, approxamately $417 00 1n parts and labor, to have
the defective brakes on her 2001 Chevrolet Silverado replaced Further, as a direct and proxnﬁate result of
GM’s nusconduct alleged herein. Ms Gonzales has also been myured and lost money n an amount equal
to the difference between what was represented, a vehicle with a parking brake system that would work as

an 1immobilization device, and what she received, a velicle with a defective parking brake system that would

not immobihze the vehicle when required and conferred a monetary benefit to GM which 1s unjust for GM

to retamn all or a portion of those monies Plasnuff gave GM
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i4 Ms Gonzales appears 1n this action on behalf of herself and on behalf of all others similarly
situated pursuant to Business and Professions Code §§17200 ét seq Ms Gonzales also appears on behalf
of the General Pubhic i her capécny as a private attorney general.

15 GM 15 a Delaware corporation doing business in California and throughout the United States
GM does business in Los Angeles County, Califorma and at all relevant imes designed, manufactured,
promoted, marketed, distributed, and/or sold the Subject Vehicles throughout California and the rest of the
United States GM has sigmificant contacts with Los Angeles County and the activities complamed of herein
occurred 1 whole or n part, in Los Angeles County

16 Plamtiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that Defendants Does 1 through 100
are corporations, or are other business entiies or organizations of a nature unknown to Plamfiff

17  Plamuffs are unawére of the true names of Defendants Does 1 through 100 Plaintuffs sue
said defendants by said fictiious names, and will amend this complamnt when the true names and capacities
are ascaﬁamed or when such facts pertaining to liabihity are ascertained, or as permitted by law or by the
Court P]am.tlffs are informed and behieve that each of the fictitiously named-defendants 18 10 SONie manner
responsible for the events énd allegations set forth 1n this complant _

18 . Plamntffs are mforméd, believe, and thereon allege that at all relev_ant times, each defendant
wasa develdper, designer, manufacturer, distributor and/or seller of trucks, was the prnincipal. agent, partner,
joint venturer, officer, director, controlling shareholder, subsidiary, affihate, parent corporation, successor
innterest and/or predecessor in mterest of some or all of the other Defendants, and was engaged with some

or all of the other defendants n a joint enterprise for profit, and bore such other relationships to some or all

of the other defendants so as to be hable for their conduct with respect to the matters alleged 1n this:

complamt Plantiffs are further 1ﬁformed and believe and thereon allege that each defendant acted pursuant
to and withun the scope of the relationships alleged above, and that at all rélevant times, each defendant knew
or should have known aboﬁt, authorized, ratified, adopted, approved, controlled, aided and abetted the
conduct of al! other defendants As used n this complaint, “Defendants™ means “Defendants and each of
them,” and refers to the Defendants named 1n the particular cause of action 1n \&hnch the Word appears and
includes GM and Does | through 100

19 At all imes mentioned herein, each Defendant was the co-conspirator, agent, servant,
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employee, and/or joint venturer of each of the other defendants and was acting within the course and scope
of said conspiracy, agency, employment, and/or joint venture and with the permission and consent of each
of the other Defendants

20 Plamtiffs make the allegations 1n this complamt without any admisston that, as to any
particular allegation, plaintiffs bear the burden of pleading, brovmg, or persuading, and plamtiffs reserve
all of plaintaffs nghts to plead n the alternative

Iv.
FACTS COMMON TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION

A. General Motors Corporaﬁun — The World's Largest Automaker

21 GM s the world’s largest automaker and has been the global 1hdustry salés leader since 1931
Founded in 1908, GM has manufacfurmg operations in 32 countries and 1its vehicles are sold in 200
countnies In 2004, GM sold nearly 9 mullion cars and trucks globally, the second-highest total 1n the
company’s history GM's automotive brands include Buick, Cadillac, Chevrolet, GMC, Holden, HUMMER,
Opel, Pontiac, Saab, Satrn and Vauxhall GM Parts and accessories are s;old under the GM, GM
Goodwrench and ACDelco brands thfough GM Service and Parts Operations, which supplies GM
dealerships and distributors worldwide
B. GM’s Defective Parking Brake System

22 In 1998, GM mtroduced several models of trucks and SUVs based on ther GMT800
platform The GMT800 platform vehicles were equlppéd witha newly designed parking brake system called
a drum-in-hat or Banksia Style parking brake system This parking brake system 1s identified by GM as the
PBR parking brake system and as the TRW parking brake system It 1s referred to herein as the “PBR/TRW
parking brake system ” The PBR and TRW pérkmg brake systems are subs_tanually wdentical, the difference
being that the PBR parking brake system was instalied on 1500 Series vehicles and the TRW parking brake
system was installedon 25 06/3 500 Senes vehicles Both the PBR and the TRW parking brake systems were
designed, mtended and described by GM to be a “life of the vehicle part” with an expected life span of well
over 200,000 mles

23 The PBR/TRW parking brake system on each of the vehicles 1s identical and consists of a

small cable-actuated non-service drum brake contained withun the "hat" portion of the rear disc brake rotors

0.
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Thus drum-1n-hat or Banksia-style parking brake system contains 2 single brake shoe inside each of the rear
wheel drums (2 per vehicle) and does not contain any provision or mechanism for actively self-centering
the brake shoe within the “hat” portion of the brake drum This drum-in-hat parking brake system was
originally designed, manufactured and sold with a single hold down clip to maintain the concentric location
of the parking brake shoe vﬁthm the parking brake drum However, due to the excessive hold down force
of the smgle retamer clip mcchamsm as ongmally designed, the parking brake shoe, upon 1ts first
engagement allowed the parking brake shoe to rotate out of ahignment and remain in contact with the parking
brake drum Due to the fact that this parking brake system contaned no pfowsnon for self centering the
brake shoe within the “hat” portion of the drum, causing the parking brake shoes fo sustam prolonged
contact with the brake drum while driving, causing and/or cqntrlbutmg to the parking brake hmngs to fail
and/or wearing out falling prematurely wlﬁch GM has estimated at an average of 24 months 1n service
However, 1 a substantial number of these velucles, the parking brakes never worked at all upon delivery
and/or sale to the consumer _

24 At all times relevant, GM ntended and reaéonably expected the parking brakes on these
vehicles to last the life of the vehicle and not wear out and fail before the end of the useful life absent a
defect as alleged herein which causes the parking brake shoe or liming to move off center and contact the.
rear brake drum while the velicles are being driven  Thus contact between the parking brake linings and the
rear brake drums while the %rehlclc 15 moving 1s direct]y and proximately caused by the defect as alleged
herein _

25 These vehicles manufactured and/or equipped with the "drum-in-hat" parking brake system
or Banksta-style parking brake system were defective at the time of delivery and soon after these vehucles
were sold to the public, GM recerved complaint and warranty information that the parking brake linings were
wearing out very early in the hife of the velncles (at an average 0f 24 months 1n service), reducing the parking
brakes effectiveness to immobihze the vehicles, the intended purpose for which the parking brake system
was designed todo

26 In October 02002, GM described the defect in a Techmical Service Bulletin (“TSB”™) wherein
1t acknow]cdged‘the defect and alerted 1ts dealers that the defect was applicable to all of the vehicles wath |

the PBR and TRW parking brake systems GM described the defective condition as “‘the parking brake shoe

.'
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contactl.ng the drum 1n hat rotor without the parking brake being applied, causing premature wear on the |
shoe hmng ” What GM failed to also disclose mn 1ts TSB was that the defective desngn not only caused
premature parking brake failure, but that 1t also caused certamn of the affected vehicles parking brakes to fail
aliogether and/or not work from the minute the affected vehicles rolled off the assembly line

27 It1s now known that all of the following vehicles have the defective PBR/TRW parking brake
system* 2002-2003 Cadillac Escﬁlade, Escalade EXIST, 2003 Cadillac Escalade ESV, 1998-2003 Chevrolet
Blazer, 1999-2003 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 Series (trucks); 2000-2003 Chevrolet Suburban, Tahoe (1500
Sertes), 2002-2003 Chevrolet TratlBlazer, Trailblazer EXIST, 1998-2003 GMC Jimmy, 1999-2003 GMC
Slerra 1500 Sertes, 2000-2003 GMC Yukon 1500 Senies, 2002-2003 GMC Envoy, Envoy X1, 2002-2003
Chevrolet Avalanche 1500 Series Models, and 1998-2003 Oldsmobile Bravada (defined supra as the
“Subject Vehicles™)

28 The PBR/TRW parking brake system on the Subject Vehicles are, remain, and have always
been defective The defect causes the Subject Vehicles’ parking brake systems not to work, fail, and/or are
substantially certain to fail prematurely, which 1s exactly the case with Ms Hunter, Ms Pulgarin, Ms
Gonzales, and millions of other owners and lessees of the Subject Vehicles A PBR/TRW parking brake
system engieerning report from GM to NHTSA discusses the consequences of GM’s defechive PBR/TRW
barkmg brake system - IT DOES NOT HOLD THE VEHICLE The report states that PBR/TRW parking
brake system vehicles “the parking brake friction hnings may wear to an extent where the parking brake can
become meffective 1n immobtlizing a parked vehicle ™ The report goes on to emphasize this point

“Cdnsequence: IF THE PARKING BRAKE DOES NOT HOLD, UNATTENDED

VEHICLE MOVEMENT COULD OCCUR, WHICH COULD RESULT IN A

CRASH.” : |

29 Accordingly, it1s without question that the PBR/TRW parking brake systems are, remain and
have always been defective and 1t 15 unquestionable that as a result of the defect, the parking brake systems
on the Subject Vehicles do not hold or stop the vehicles, which 1s the only purpose for parking brakes Not
only does this defect cause the Subject Vehicles to be unsuitable and unsafe for therr mtende_d use, 1t has and
will continue to create serious dangers for drivers, passengers and pedestrians This fact 1s ﬁnderscored by

the hundreds of complaints lodged with NHTSA and the scores of injuries as well as deaths described in the
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NHTSA database as being caused by the defective PBR/TRW parking brake systems.
C. GM’s Knowledge of the Defect that Existed in the Subject Vehicleé

30 Almost immedately afier the launch of the trucks and SUVs equipped with the defective
PBR/TRW parking brake systems, GM became aware and knew that these parking brake systems were
defective, would not work as intended, and would definitely not last the life of the vehicle, 1 e, over 200,000
miles

31 It 1s also now known from GM documents disclosed to NHTSA as a part of 1t's mvestigation
that GM knew by September 18, 2000, and Iikely much earher, that the parking brake systems on the Subject
Vehicles were defective

On Monday, September 18, 2000, Steve Love, Brand Quality Manager for the GMT800

Pickups, Sierra and Silverado trucks and SUVs sent a letter to GM’s dealer partners stating

that the drum-in-hat parking brake system found on these vehicles “is not self-adjusting

.. requirfing] frequent adjustments[.|” |
And, that around this same time 1n 2000, GM was recerving numerous reports of parking brake farlures -
prompting NHTSA to imtiate an investigation in 2001 ' |

32 According to.the GM documcﬁts preduced 1n response to NHTSA's _mvestxgaﬁon of the
defective parking brake system on the Subject Vehicles, 1t was not until late 2001 that GM first began
mvestigating solutions to fix the defect, and did so without (1) providing any notice or disclosure of the
known defect, or the inherent dangers caﬁsed by if, to the current or would-be owners- and lessees of the
Subject Vehicles, and without (11) curtailing or modifying the express representations 1t was making to the
pubiic about the quality, safety and functionality of the parking brake systems on the Sub]_ect Vehicles

33 The GM documents disclosed to NHTSA also reveal that GM secretly mitiated 1ts first step
towards addressing the defect in October 2001 by 1ssuing “[ajn Engineening Work Order (EWO) to release
a spring chp retamner with lower retaiming force™ for the defective brake systems These GM records also
reveal that after imtiating the EWO, GM then watted two years before it began implementing this -EWO m
the 2003 model year Subject Vehicles In the intenim, however, ﬁpon information and belef, not wanting
to Jet its own engineering incompetence get m the way of profits, GM ssued a Technical Service Bulletin

(“TSB”) offering dealers and repair centers a Brake Kit which they 1n turn could sell to unwitting {and
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umpformed) consumers to allegedly fix the defect However, this only compounded the inferior quéllty of
the PBR/TRW parking brake system, because neither the Brake Kat nor the EWO fixed the defect, which
GM later acknowledged in a letter forwarded to NHTSA GM, therefore, not only sold Plalhtlffs and others
similarly situated a defective and maIfuﬁctxomng parking brake system in the Subject Vehicles, but profited
from doing so via the sale of an neffective aftermarket Brake Kit, which did not even fix the problem.

34 The GM documents disclosed to NHTSA also siggest that GM waited until October of 2004

before 1t conducted any durability testing on the PBR/TRW parking brake system GM waited four years

despite becoming aware as early as 2000, as evidenced by these GM records, that (1) there was an
extraordinarily significant number of reports of brake failures, (n) there was an nnpendlng NH TSA
nvestigation, (1) crashes and wrecks were caused by the defect, and (1v) GM’s own internal engineering
reports chronicled the faliures Upon information and belief, 1t was only as result of the GM's own
durabihity test data that #t realized 1t could no longer continue to 1gnore the PBR/TRW parking brake
s}fstem defect _

35 In 2005 (more than 4 years after GM first became aware of the defect), GM actually corrected
the defect GM did so by redesigming the parking brake system for new vehicles sold beginning sometime
n 2005, “to accommodate two low-force spring clip retainers,” replacing, among other things, the onginal
and infenior one spring clip design  This correction on new.vehicles, however, obviously did not help the
current owners and lessees of the Subject Vehicles previously manufactured |

36 It was also wmn 2005, in conjunctzon.with its parking brake system redesign, and, upon
information and belief, n response 1o a mounting outery of consumer complamts, numerous Injuries,
pressure from NHTSA, and the nitial filing of this lawsuit, when GM finally announced a safety recall
{albeit 3t hmited and incomplete), providing free braking system repair and replacement of the defective
PBR/TRW parking brake systems only for those vehicles with manual tfansmlssmns_ Without explanation
or rational justification, GM hmnted its recall to only a small percentage of the 4.1 million defective
PBR/TRW parking brake systems sold, and only provided notice, recall, and free repair and replacement for
vehicles with manual transmissions At no point during any of this time leading up to the recall did GM ever
nottfy the existing or would-be Subject Vehicle owners and lessees about the defect or that the

representations it had made regarding the quality, safety and functionality of the parking brake systems on
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the Subject Vehicles was false, | Again, after countless opportunifies to cure the defect(s} by prondmg
owners and lessees with a repair and replacement remedy, GM 1nstead chose to remain silent, conceahing
the true facts concermng these defects, and knowingly and willfully continued to certify the Subject
Vehicles, partially disclosing some mformation touting the quality, safety, functionality and/or reliabihity
of the parking brakes, but at all relevant times fatling to disclose other relevant matenal facts concerming the
defect(s) 1n the parking brakes all the while knowing that Plaintiffs and others similarly situation had no
knowledge of the senous safety related defect m these parking brake systems 1n order to continue to sell
these vehicles and maximize therr profits

37 At all relevant imes, GM has been aware of the PBR/TRW parkang brake system defect on

the Subject Vehicles, and has consciously disregarded the rights and safety of Plamtiffs, members of the

Class and the General Public, in that numerous complaints about the defective parking brake systém n the

.Sub_]cct Vehicles have been lodged with GM, including mnyury incidents and deaths caused by the defective

parking brake systems failure to immobihize these vehicles The misconduct of GM as alleged n this
complaint has resulted mn injury to Plamtiffs, members of the Class and the General Public, was done with
maI-lcc_, fraud, and oppression and in willful and conscious disregard of the rights and safety of Plaint:ffs and
others Specifically, GM and Defendants DOES 1 through 100, through their officers, directors and/or
managing agents, authonzed, d1_rccted, conducted, or ratified each of the foilqwmg acts and engaged i the
following conduct |

(@)  Before marketing the Subject Vehicles, GM knew, based on 1ts own expenence and
testing, that many cotsumers would be myjured and/or killed if the vehicles were markeied with ineffective
and/or moperable parking brakes Neverfhclcss, GM chose to market the Subject Vehcles with defectrve
and/or inoperable parking brakes, substantially likely to result, and has resulted in severe and/or substantial
mjuries to CONSUMErs, “

(b) Based on information and belief, GM failed to perform adequat-e tests and studies,
ahd/or performed such tests and studies and knew, by 2000, and very likely much earlier, that the parking
brake system on the Subject Vehicles was defective and as a result, would require frequent adjustments aﬂd
were substannaliy certain to fail, become inoperable and/or ineffective as an immobilization device, and thus

were extremely dangerous and potentiaily deadly Further, no later than 2002, GM had designed and
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manufactured a replacement “low-force spring clip retainer” to cure the defect(s) and released these iaroducts
for sale to the pubhic for approximately $165 00 per vehicle However, 1t was not until 2005 that all of the
| Subject Vehicles were dest gned, manufactured and bult with the necessary modifications for an effective
(operable) parking brake system on these vehicles To this day, GM has not instatled the replacement
| parking brake parts on the Subject Vehicles, -nor has GM wamed its consumers of the necessity for the
replacement parking brake kit

(c)  GMmntentionally did not mstall the replacement parking brake kit or redesigned hold
down clip 1n order to save money, knowing 1t was putting Amercan consumers at great nsk GM knew
stattstically that a number of these velucles would be involved 1 colhisions and crashes that would result
1n people being maimed or killed as a result -of the failure of the defectrve parking brakes failure to properly
function and operate an 1mmobihization device With that knowledge, Plaintiffs are informed and believe
that GM calculated that 1t would be less costly to pay for wrongful death and imnjury claims that might result
than to mstall the replacement barking brake kit and/or redesigned hold down clips

(d) Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and based on that information and behef allege,
that GM has engaged m other acts and conduct, mcluding attempted "cover-ups” of 1ts knowledge and
activities regarding the lack of effective and operable parking brakes on the Subject Vehlcles; a_nd has
engaged in willful suppression of that evidence  Plamntiffs will seek leave to amend this complaint to allege
such further acts and conduct undertaken in willful and conscious disregard of the nghts and safety of
Plaintiffs and others at such time as they become known, or at the time of trial

(e) In engaging in the conduct descnbed 1n this complamt, Défendants. and each of them,
acted m willful and conscious disregard of the nghts and safety of Plamnt1ffs and others, thereby committing
acts of malice or oppression so as to entitle Plaintiffs to punitive damages in an amount sufficient to punish
or make an example of these defendants |

§3)] As a directresult of GM’s willful and malicious conduct, Plamtiffs and the Class have
suffered substantial damages and mjuries 1n an amount to be determined by proof at.the time of tnal

38 GM failed to provide adequate warnings and use instructions with the Subject Vehicles and

component parts, because of their desire to place profits over safety At all times relevant, GM valued its

company profits over the personal safety of the owners and lessees of the Subject Vehicles and others |
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sumlarly situated and the General Pubhic

39 Based on information and belief, Plalﬁtlffs allege that GM failed to perform adequate tests
and studies, and/or performed such fests and studies and fraudulently concealed those results from
consumers, mcludimg but not hmited to Plaintiffs, and fraudulently concealed the unreasonabie nisk of injury
occurnng as a result of the defective design of the PBR/TRW parkang brake system On. information and
behef, this was because Defendants believed that 1f such tests and studies were conducted, or the results of
them, 1f conducted, became known, they would be used aganst Defendants 1n subsequent lawswits by
persons harmed by the Subject Vehicles

40 Defendants’ placing of their corporate and/or individual profits over the safety of others 15

particularly vile, base, contemptible, and wretched and saxd acts and/or omissions were performed on the

|| partofofficers, directors, and/or managing agents of each corporate defendant and/or taken with the advance

knowledge of the officers, directors, and/or managing agents who authonized and/or ratified said acts and/or
omussions Defendants thereby acted with malice and complete indifference to and/or conscious disregard
for the safety of others, including Plaintiffs and the General Public |

41,  Atall times heremn mentioned, Defendants knew, or in the exercise of reasonable care, should
have known, that the PBR/TRW patking brake systems were of such a nature that if they were not properly
designed, manufactured, examined, tested, inspected, labeled, marketed, distributed and sold they were él ther
not gomgrto work or otherwise fail or malfunction prematurely

42 The PBR/TRW parking brake systems on the Subject Vehicles with automatic transmissions
are 1dentical to those installed on vehicles with manual transmusstons for which GM has planed to offer some
prospective repair and replacement, free of charge GM’s own October 2002 TSB confirms that the defect
and the associated problems caused by 1t applies to all of the parking brakes that are at risk (not just those
with manual transrmissions), and directs 1ts dealers to treat the problém the same regardless of whether they
have 2 manual fransmssion or not  Inexphcably and unfairly, only those owners and lessees of the Subject
Vehicles with manual transmussions will recerve notice that they have defective parking brakes Ownersand
lessees with automanc transmussions will still be left in the dark about their defective brakes

43 To this day, GM .qontlnues to withhold important safety, quality, and performance related |

mformation concerning the PBR/TRW parking brake systems from owners and lessees of the Subject
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Vehicles Additionally, GM has failed and continues to fail to offer resmbursement to Subject Vehicle
owners and lessees who have already expended money purchasnig the GM replacement kats, or paid to have
these kats installed at authonized GM dealerships, or paid for replacement, repair or other expenses caused
by the PBR/TRW parking brake system
D. GM’s Misrepresentations and Omissions to Plaintiffs and the General Public about the Safety,
Quality and Function of the Parking Brake System on the Subject Vehicles
44 GM made false, misleading, unfair, deceptive, unlawful and fraudulent representations to
consumers, including Plamntiffs Ms Hunter, Ms Pulgann, and Ms Gonzales, about the quality, safety and
Brakmg systems of its defective vehicles Those false, nisleading, unfair, deceptive, unlawful and fraudulent
Tepresentations are as follows, among others | _ |
(1) Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Act (“EMVSA?) Certification
45 Each of the Subject Vehicies manufactured and sold during the Class pertod came equipped
with an identical defectlv.e parking brake system and GM knowingly and itentionally permanently affixed
on each of the Subject Vehicles, in a prominent location, the Certification label or tag representing thét
This Vehicle Conforms to All Applicable U.S. Rederal Motor Vehicle
Safety Standards in Effect on the Date of Manufacture Show above
46 This representation made by GM to consumers, mcl_udmg Plaintiffs Ms Hunter, Ms Pulgarin

and Ms Gonzales, was false and GM knew it was false when 1t was made

(2) GM’s Pre-Delivery Inspecfion ahd Certification Procedure

47 Atall times relevant, GM maimntained a Pre-Delivery Inspection Procedure for Passenger Cars
and Light Duty Trucks, such as the Subject Vehicles at 1ssue  GM’s Pre-Delivery Inspection Procedure
requires 1ts authorized dealers to thoroughly test and inspect each of the Subject Velucles before they were
dehveréd to Plainuffs and others similarly situated Afier fhe vehicle 1s tested and inspected accordmg to
GM’s protocol and procedure, a GM authonzed “Pre-Delivery Inspection” form 1s filled out, affirmatively
checking each box that the vehicle has been tested, mspected and 1s 1n working order The GM “Pre-
Delivery Inspection” form affirmatively states that a certified GM service representative has conducted a

“Road Test” of the vehicle and affirmatively represents that the vehacle, and 1ts component parts, mcluding
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the parking brake system 1s 1n working order The GM “Pre-Dehivery Inspection Procedure” form states,
m pertment part
“Deficiencies must be called to Service 'Managemeﬁt’s attention”
“INSPECT, PERFORM, VERIFY PROPER OPERATION, ASSEMBLY
AND ROUTING OF THE FOLLOWING-
O ROAD TEST
Drive on a legal roadway with road conditions permitting evaluation for
squeaks, rattles and wind noise Before, during and after this test, check
all standard equipment, options and accessories for proper operation, as
applicable:
Before
Durnng
After
» Parking Brake
[0 UNDER VEHICLE
» Fuel System, brake system and o1l cooler lines for leaks”

48 | The GM “Pre-Delivery Inspection Procedure” then requires the GM authorized representzinve '
to sign, date and “certify” that the GM “Pre-Delivery Inspection has been completed ” This written
representation of GM’s certification of compliance was given to all purchasers of the Subject Vehicles at
1ssue - (

49 This written representation of certification given by GM tdconsumer‘s, mcluding Plamtiffs

Ms Hunter, Ms Pulgann, and Ms Gonzales, was false and GM knew 1t was false when it was made

(3) GM’s “Completely Satisfied - New Vehicle Delivery System” Procedure

50 Inaccordance with GM’s “Completely Satisfied - New Vehicle Delivery System” procedure,
each of the Subject Vehicles that were purchased new from one the Dealers within GM’é authorized dealer
network were required to be “inspected, explained, and demonstrated ”

51 The GM “New Vehicle Delivery System” procedure requires that the GM authorized sales

representative complete a GM authorized form. The form 1s filled out by the GM authorized representative

.18-
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in three stages (1) “Pre-Delivery Check (Sales consultant performs these checks prior to delwery date),”

(2} “Conpsultation at Delivery,” and (3) “Vehicle Presentation with Customer (Utilizing owner s manual and

appl}cable reference guides.”

52 The GM mandated “Completely Satisfied - New Vehicle Delivery System” states mn pertinent
part;

‘Pre-Delivery Check (Sales consultant performs these checks prior to delivery date)
I Review completed GM Pre-Delivery Inspection Form

O Vehicle Presentation with Customer (Utilizing owner’s manual and
apphcable reference guides ™
[J Review and demonstrate all vehicle features and controls
= Safety features ™ ( under the section “Vehicle Presentation with Customer )
See also GM's specific reference to "parking brakes" n the related "GM Pre-Delivery Inspection
Procedure" form stated above n paragraph no ’s 44 and 45 above -
53 These representations made by GM to consumers, including Plaintiffs Ms Hunter, Ms

Pulgarin, and Ms Gonzales, were false and GM knew they were false when they were made

(4) The GM Owner’s Manual That Went along with the Sale of Each of the Subject Vehicles

54 The GM Owner’s manual that was specifically mentioned in GM's Pre-Delivery Inspection

Procedure and that came with each of the Subject Vehicles at 1ssue makes the following representations

“This manual includes the latest information at the time it was printed

. Please keep this manual in your vehicle, 5o 1t will be there 1f you ever need
1t when you're onthe road 1f you sell your vehicle, please leave this manual
i 1t so that the new owner can use it ”

“Parking Brake
To set the parking brake, hold the regular brake pedal down with your
right foot ” : .

“To release the parking brake, hold the regular brake pedal down Puli the
bottom edge of the lever, located above the parking brake pedal, marked
BRAKE RELEASE, to release the parking brake ”

“It can be dangerous to get out of your vehicle if the shift lever is not
fully in PARK (P) with the parking brake firmly set Your vehicle can
roll You or others could be injured To be sure your vehicle won’t move,
even when you’re on fairly level ground, use the steps that follow ” '

.10
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“Leaving Your Vehicle With the Engine Running

CAUTION: _ :

It can be dangerous to leave your vehicle with the engine running. Your
vehicle can move suddenly if the shift lever is not fully in PARK (P) with
the parking brake firmly set If you have four-wheel drnive and your
transfer case 1s n NEUTRAL, your vehicle will be free to roll, even 1f your
shift lever1s in PARK (P) So, be sure the transfer case 1s 1n a drive gear — not
1 NEUTRAL And, 1f you leave the vehicle with the engine runming, 1t could
overheat and even catch fire  You or others could be mjured Don’t leave
your vehicle with the engine running unless you have to

If you have to leave your vehicle with the engine running, be sure your
vehicle is in PARK (P) and the parking brake is firmly set before you
leave it. After you move the shift lever into PARK (P), hold the regular
brake pedal down Then, see 1f you can move the shuft lever away from

PARK(P) without first pulling 1t toward you. If you can, if means the shuft

lever wasn’t fully locked mto PARK (P)”

“To prevent torque lock, set the parking brake and then shift info PARK
(P) properly before you leave the driver’s seat.”

“It can be dangerous fo get out of your vehicle if the shift lever is not
fully in PARK (P) with the parking brake fully set. Your vehicle can roll
Don’t leave your vehicle with the engine 1s runmng unless you have to  If
you’ve left the engine runmng, the vehicle can move suddenly. You or others
could be injured To be sure your vehicle won’t move, even when you're on
fairly level ground, always set your parking brake and move the shift lever
to PARK (P)”

“Four-wheel drive vehicles with the transfer case in NEUTRAL will allow
the vehicle to roll, even 1f your shift lever 1s in PARK(P) So, be sure the
transfer case 1s 1n a dnve gear — not m NEUTRAL Always set your
parking brake ”

“The Instrument Panel - Your Information System

The main components of the i.n_strument panel are the following

b Parking Brake Release

Brake System Warning Light

With the 1gnition on, the brake system waming hght will flash when you set
the parking brake The light wil] flash 1f the parking brake doesn’t release
fully If you try to dnve with the parking brake engaged, a chime wall sound
when the vehicle is greater that 3 mph (5 kea/h)”

“Section 4 Your Driving and the Road

Q: Suppose, after stalling, 1 try to back down the hill and decide I just
can’t do it. What should ¥ do? :

A: Set the parking brake, put your transrmussion in PARK () and turn the
engine off Leave the vehicle and go get some help Exit on the uphull side

.20-
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and stay clear of the path of the vehicle would take 1if rolled downhill Do not
shift the transfer case to NEUTRAL when you leave the vehicle Leave 1t
some gear ”

“Four-Wheel-Drive Vehicles
CAUTION:

Shifting the transfer case into NEUTRAL can cause your vehicle to roll even
1f the transmission 18 in PARK (P), for an automatic transmission  You and
others could be injured Make sure the parking brake is firmly set before
you shaft the transfer case mto NEUTRAL.”

“Use the following procedure to tow your vehicle
1 Firmly set the parking brake

5 Relcézse the parking brake only after the vehicle being towed 1s firmly
attached to the towing vehicle ”

“Parking on Hills
CAUTION:
Always put the shift lever fully m PARK (P} with the parking brake firmly

, set »r

“When You Are Ready to Leave After Parking on a Hill
Release the parking brake ”

“Changing a Flat Tire

CAUTION ,

Changing a tire can cause an injury. The vehicle can slip off the jack
and roll over you or other people. 'You and they could be badly injured.
To help prevent the vehicle from moving:

1. Set the parking brake firmly ”
“Replacing Brake System Parts |
The braking system on a vehicle1s cdmplcx Its many parts have to be of top

quality and work well fogether 1f the velicle 15 to have really good braking
Your vehicle was designed and tested with top-quality GM brake parts.

- When you replace parts of your braking system — for example, when your

brake linings wear down and you have to have new ones put in — be sure you
get new approved GM replacement parts If you don’t, your brakes may no
longer work property For example, 1f someone puts in brake linings that are
wrong for your vehicle, the balance between your front and rear brakes can
change — for the worse The braking performance you’ve come o expect can
change 1n many other ways ”

“Starter Switch Check

CAUTION ,

When you are doing this check, the vehicle could move suddenly 1f 1t does,
you or others could be injured Follow the steps below

2 Fimily apply both the parking brake and the regular brake. See
“Parikang Brake” in the Index 1f necessary

21-
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and 1ts Owner’s Manual to consumers, including Plaintiffs Ms Hunter, Ms Pﬁlgarm, and Ms Gonzales,

“Automatc Transmssion Shift Lock Control System Check

CAUTION

When you are doing this check, the vehicle could move suddenly If 1t does,
you or others could be imjured Follow the steps below

2 Firx;niy apply both the parking brake and the regular brake See
“Parking Brake” in the Index 1f necessary »

“Parking Brake and Automatic Transmission PARK (P) Mechanism Check
CAUTION

When you are doing this check, your vehicle could begin to move. You or
others could be injured and property could be damaged Make sure there 1s
room 11t front of your vehicle 1n case 1t begins to roll Be ready to apply the
regular brake at once should the vehicle begin to maove.”

“Park on a fairly steep hill, with the vehicle facing downhill Keep your foot
on the regular brake, set the parking brake ”

“s To check the parking brake’s holding abihity With the engine running and
transmission in NEUTRAL (N), slowly remove foot pressure from the regular
brake pedal Do this until the vehicle is held by the parking brake only.”

“s To check the PARK (P) mechamsm’s holding ability: With the engine
runmng, shift to PARK (P). Then release the parking brake followed by
the regular brake ” '

The representations made by GM 1n connection with 1ts Pre-Delivery Inspection Procedure

were false, and GM knew they were false when they were made

(5) GM’s Brochures that Were Provided to Each of the New Car Purchasers

- 56

GM distributed throughout 1ts authonzed dealer network and provided to all new and would

be new car purchasers product brochures contaimng the following representations

» ‘“designed and engineered to mect the toughest standards in the world — yours and ours ”

* “The brake pad life can last up to four trmes longer than the previous design”
»  “WE'RE WITH YOU, EVERY MILE OF THE WAY
WHAT IS COVERED FOR 3 YEARS OR 36,000 MILES

Repairs made to correct any vehicle defect™

+ “the most dependable, longest-lasting [truck]”

*  “Sure, being counted on by so many 1s an incredible responsibiity But as long as there’s a job

to do, as long as there are people dependmng on us, we'll be there

+ “engineered to meet our toughest standards”

-22-
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“exceeds your expectations  designed  with the features you really need”

“features which add up o one well-equipped [truck}”

All of us at Chevrolet know that we must eamn your trust every day, year after year, one vehicle
atatime That’s why we provide you with Genuine Customer Care This comprehensive owner
Protection plan means that we’ll be there, with the largest dealer network in the U.S., whenever
you need us, no matter where your travels take you. That’s a promise ™

“brake systems  meeting regional legal requirements”

“the most dependable, longest-lasting trucks on the road.* Built rugged to take what the
world can dish out Bwlt dependable, because we know that people are counting on us
*Dependability based on longevity . ™

“strength you need to getthe jobdone  Strength you can count on . Bult 1o handie the toughest
_] Obsﬂ

“Base model  has a lot of standard features that let you handle a tough job or a fun family
adventure” '

“brake systems . Easy and safe trailening requires a properly equipped vehicle . requires
meeting regional legal requirements” '

“advanced technology  built to meet our tough standards

“Repairs made to correct any vehicle defect  We have tried to make this brochure
comprehensive and factual”

“Underneath the exteror of Chevy Tahoe there are literally dozens of impressive engineermg
features . No matter where you’re headed, you can feel confident in the knowledge Tahoe 15

from the family of Chevy Trucks - the most dependable, longest lasting trucks on the road * *

Dependability based on longevity ”
“TAHOE SAFETY MATTERS By Glen Zuchmewicz, GM Safety Engineer
At General Motors, 1t wasn’t enough to design Tahoe as a tough durable sport utithty vehicle It also

had to have an even higher level of safety and security features than the previous generation.
And it does As our engineers continue to develop new and exciting features for the Chevy Truck

Lineup, your safety and security are always a top priority — even in the things you may not

readily-notice  Your safety and secunity In the all-new Tahoe, 1t’s what really matters to us
See the Owner’s Manual for more safety information” :

“Based on 98 years of professional grade expenence, GMC knows & lot about what drivers want
in a full-size SUV. We also know that if we listen, we can always learn more. That’s why we
began redesigning the full-size SUVs by extensively researching the needs of our customers
Your answers — your needs — determined what the all-new Yukon and Yukon XL would be
establishing new benchmarks in Yukon’s performance — all the while remaiming frue to the
century-long GMC hentage of focusing exclusively on designing professional grade trucks to
meet the needs of the most demanding drivers” S

“vehicles {] engineered for excellent durability {and] Perhaps most noteworthy, redesigned
braking [] systems '

“TECHNOLOGY DEDICATED TO CONTROL new braking systems that increase brake
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pad life by up to four fimes that of current models, to their wealth of advanced- performance
features, they are designed and engineered ... to Keep you in control in a variety of road and
whether conditions™
+ “STAYING SAFE BEGINS BY STAYING IN CONTROL

At GMC we believe that safe driving begins by avoiding collisions, and the Yukon and Yukon
XL are engineered to help you do exacily that A vanety of advanced features — . anti-Jock
brakes  help you keep your famuly safe Onr commitment even extends to the time before and
after your driving ”

+  “Yukon safety features to keep you and your family safe in a variety of road conditions
. See the Owner’s manual for more safety information ”

. “excellent breaking power and mummal brake fade ”
» “STANDARD SAFETY EQUIPMENT - BRAKES”

* “Yukon Has Many Standard Safety and Security Features  See Owner’s Manual for more  safety
information™

> “A Word About this Brochure We have tried to make this brochure comprehenstve and facrual”

« “DPO ONE THING. DO IT WELL - Over the course of nearly a century, GMC trucks have earned
a reputation as professional-grade vehicles that serious truck owners recognize as, quite simply,
the right tools for the job.”

+  “Professional grade vehicles With more features and more mnovations than you'd expect ”

57 These representations made by GM to consumers, including Plaintiffs Ms Hunter, Ms
Pulgarin, and Ms Gonzales, were false, and GM knew they were false when they were made
(6) GM’s Advertising, TV, Radio and Print Ads
58 At all times relevant, and for many years prior, GM widely disseminated, 1n its national
advertising campaigns numerous and repeated representations stressing the quality, safety and performance
of their products, including the Subject Velucles During the Class period, GM made the followng
representations m its advertising, by television, radio, print and Infernet
» “Professional Brake Engineering ”
+ “WE ARE PROFESSIONAL GRADE - IT°S NOT A PROMOTION. IT’S A PROMISE.”
« “SAFETY - DESIGNED TO PROTECT”
+ “RECENTLY OUR ACHIEVEMENTS IN SAFETY WERE RECOGNIZED BY A
LEADINGMAGAZINE, A LEADING INSURANCE COMPANY AND A ONE-YEAR OLD
FROM SOUTH CAROLINA”

+ “EFFECTIVE SAFETY INNOVATIONS”

24-
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*» “TRUSTED - CHEVY - WE'LL BE THERE”

+ “A hittle secunity in an 1nsecure world BLAZER - LIKE A ROCK”

*  “tough technology, designed to bring you a more dependable, longer-lasting truck ”
. “precision-engineered and built to our high quality standards®

«  “Commutment 1s anything but a.short program Chcvy - We'll be there”

» “AS DEPENDABLE AS THANKSGIVING FALLING ON A THURSDAY - WE ARE
PROFESSIONAL GRADE”

+  “WEREDESIGNED THE GMC SUBURBAN SO COMPLETELY, EVERYTHING WORKED”

* “DESIGNED TOMEET EXPECTATIONS YOU DON’T EVEN HAVE - GMC Do one thing
Do it well T™” ' ‘

*  “we specialize in trucks GMC Do one thing Do 1t well ” _

*  “These vehicles met GM’s tough standards when they were first buil. Now they have to
again, or they won’t be certified Everything from the exhaust system to the cup holders is
inspected and repaired, if necessary If the vehicle doesn’t pass, it will not be certified

Following 1s the 1nspection checklist 8 Braking. 31 Parking Brake. 38 Brake System

47 Brake Pads, Shoes 60 Parking Brake Cables” _

59 Atall times relevant, as a part of GM's national advertising campaigns, through 1ts nationally
controlied dealership network, GM widely dissermnated and/or distributed to the Class members numerous
pamphlets, brochures and specification sheets which emphasized or focused on the quahty, safety and
functionality of the Subject Vehicles here at 1ssue

60 The wntten matenals distnibuted and widely disseminated by GM m their numerous |
advertising campaigns represented that the Subject Vehicles are rehable, safe and are free from inherent risk
of failure, particularly with regard to safety In particular, GM made numerous representations 1n 1ts print

ads and media that 1f a defect existed in one of its vehicles, mcludmg the Subject Vehicles, GM would repair

the defect

“WE'RE WITH YOU, EVERY MILE OF THE WAY
Repairs made to correct any vehicle defect”
61 In 1ts marketing and promotional matenal, product brochures, pamphlets, media and through

public statements, GM widely disserminated the following representations, that the Subject Vehicles are “the

most dependable, longest-lastmg trucks on the road,” “GM Tough,” "Best 1n Class,” "Best m the World,"

4L

“Professional Grade,” “the ultimate expression of professional grade engineering” and GM’s express
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“commitment to a higher standard of innovative engineenng, design, and performance” and were made in
conjunction with statements such as
« “FECHNICALLY ADVANCED BRAKING SYSTEM”

* “new braking systems that increase brake pad life by up to four times that of current models, the
brake pad hife can last up to four times longer than the previous design” -

« “brake systems meeting regional legal requirements”

« “vehicles ] engmeered for excellent durabihty . . [and] Perhaps most noteworthy, redesigned
braking ] systems ™

»  “were “ENGINEER[ED] [...] TO THE HIGHEST STANDARD”

» were “CERTIFIED” to comply with “ALL APPLICABLE US FEDERAL MOTOR VEHICLE
SAFETY STANDARDS”

»  “WAS DESIGNED AND TESTED WITH TOP-QUALITY GM BRAKE PARTS”

+  “engineered to meet our toughest standards™

+  “the most dependable, longest-lasting trucks on the road ”

+ equipped with “PROFESSIONAL BRAKE ENGINEERING. ”

+  were “PRECISION-ENGINEERED AND BUILT TO [GM’S] HIGH QUALITY STANDARDS"
» “tough technology, designed to bring you a more dependable, longer-lasting truck

»  “excellent breaking power and minmal brake fade ”

+ “the most dependable, longest lasting trucks on the road * * Dependability based on
longevity ~

+  “your safety and security are always z top priority”

62 These widely disseminated advertisements, due to the national scope and extent of GM's

21 l multi-media campaign, were umformly made to all members of the class Class members' acts of
| :

purchasing the Subject Vehicles were consistent with basing such purchasing decisions upon such
adVeftlsements, and thus formed part of the basis for the transactions at 1ssue
63 The representations made by GM 1n 1ts advertisements to consumers, 1n;lu&1ng Plamtiffs Ms
Hunter, Msr Pulgarin, and Ms Gonzales, were false, and GM knew they were false when they were made
64 At all relevant times, GM has not fully disclosed to purchasers or lessees of the Subject
Vehicles, information regarding the lugh incidence of premature failures of the parking brakes on the Subject

Vehicles as detailed herein, nor has 1t disclosed the true facts that (1) GM either knew or recklessly or

: .26~
FOURTH AMENDED COMPLAINT




[y

y | T e T T T R
BN ERRLEONENEEBEZ O GE e 6 = S

O 0 Nt b W N

negligently dlsregarded the existence and reasons for the defect(s) for years; and (2) startmg with model year

u 2004, GM made design changes and manufactured a newer reduced force hold-down chp to facilitate brake

shoe disengagement from the drum surface which has caused and/or coniributed to the premature parking
brake hner failures

65 Plamtiffs are further informed and believe and thereon allege that in not correcting or warning
of this defect, GM has violated its own internal procedures as specified in GM's Automotive Defect Analysis
Procedure manuals, which requires prompt 1nvestigation and thorough analysis of all potential inherent
safety defects and notification to vehicle owners and lessees descnibing the defect and a statement of the
safety risks involved, as well as nstructions relating to the correction of the defect 1fa defect 15 determined
to exist |

66 Atall times relevant, GM possessed full mformétlon and knowledge concerning the true facts
concerming the defects in the parking brake system on the Subject Vehicles, GM had full and exclusive
access to product testing, test results, files and documents concerming the design, manufacture, and expected
m-use performance, and lack of durability and failure to function and perform as intended, a hfe of the
vehicle part with an expected hife span of over 2'00,000 miles

67 GM 1ssued numerous internal nﬁemora_ndums concermng the defective parking brakes, the
existence of a replacement parking brake kit to repair the defect, yet mstructed its dealer network and
authorized service centers not to perform the repairs and/or replacement of parts unless the consumer paxd
for such replacement parts and service thus presenting a total inabtlity to reparr the defective safety related
defect, free of charge, and without notice to consumers Said nusconduct created a situation where the a
safety related design defect existed, Yet the consumer was at all times unaware of the defect because of GM'’s
failure to disclose and éoncealrﬁeﬁt of its exclusive knowledge of the defect(s) to Plamntiffs and others
simtlarly situated |

68 Yet, desblte GM’s knowledge, awareness and responsibility for the defect, GM took steps,
implemented policies and procedures, and made affirmative repres'entatlons fo actrvely mislead consumers,
including Plaintiffs Ms Hunter, Ms Pulgann, and Ms Gonzales, about the quality, safety and functionality
of the braking systems of the Subject Vehicles Addmonélly, GM failed, reﬁJSed and continues to refuse

to notify the owners and lessees of the Subject Vehicles of the defects or the false information it previously
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knowingly disseminated GM refuses to notify owners and lessees of the Subject Vehucles despite having
obligated itself and assumed the duty to notify 1ts customers of important safety related defects, as set forth
m 1ts Warranty and Owner’s Manual
E. GM’s Violation of the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS)

- 69 The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration has a legislative mandate under Title
49 of the Umted States Code, Chapter 301, Motor Vehicle Safety, to 1ssue Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards (FMVSS) and Regulations to which manufacturers of -motor vehicle and equipment stems must
conform and certify comphiance The Federal safety standards are regulations written 1n terms of mimmum
safety performance requirements for motor vehicles or stems of motor vehicle equipment The requements
are specified n such a manner "that the public 1s protected against unreasonable risk of crashes occuming
as a result of the design, construction, er performance of motor velicles and 1s also protected against
unreasonable sk of death or mjury i the event crashes do oceur ”

70 GM had a duty to properly design, manufacture, test, inspect, and certify each of the Subject
Vehicles prior o placing them into the stream of commerce 1n the Umtéd States Federal Motor Vehicle
Safety Standard 105 and/or 135 requures that all passenger vehicles (and trucks) sold in the United States
are equipped with a parking brake syétem to ensure safe braking performance under normal conditions and
emergency conditions Automobile manufacturers are required to certify that the vehicle complies with all
Federal Motor Vehicle Standards, mcluding Standard 105 and/or 135 The Manufacturer’s Certificate
of Compliance “must be shown by a label or tag permanently fixed to the vehicle” and an automobile
manufacturer may not issue the certificate if, in exercising reasonable care, the manufacturer has
reason to know the certificate is falsé or misleading in a material respect'

71 At all hmes relevant, GM made a wnitten representétlon that cach of the Subject Vehicles
complied with Federal Motor Vehicle Standard 105 and/or 135 by permanently affixing a comphance label
ortag on each ye}ncle pnor to thewr delivery and sale to Plamntiffs and the Class GM’s written representation
certified that each of the Subject Vehicles were equipped with a parking brake system to ensure safe braking
performance so that consumers, such as Plaintiffs and the General Public would be protected against
unreasonable nsk of crashes occurring as a result of the defective design, construction, or performance of

motor vehicles and to protect against unreasonable nsk of death or imjury 1n the event of a crash
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72 The Subject Vehicles manufactured and/or equipped with the PBR/TRW parking brake

systems were defective at the time of delivery And, at all imes relevant, GM knew that the parking brake

‘systems on the Subject Vehicles would not work, fail or wear-out prematurely (at an average of 24 months

1n service), ehminating the parking brake’s effectiveness to immobilize the vehicle, the intended purpose
for which the parking brake system was designed to do |
73 The failure of the PBR/TRW parking brake systems on the Subject Vehlclgs 15 directly and
proximately caused by, mzer alia, the parking brake systems’ failure to recenter the brake liming within the
brake drum or "hat " The defective design causes the parking brakes to ether aliogether fail to work or
results m contact between the brake lining and drum during normal foreseeable use, causing the brake hnings
on the Subject Vehicles to fail, malfunction and/or wear-out and become meffective as an immobilization
device for the vehicle thereby unnecessanly subjecting Plaintiffs, members of the class and the general
public to the serious nisk of bodily mjyury and/or death
- 74 GM’s placing the wntten Comphance Certification label 1t permanént}y affixed to each of
thé Subject Vehcles at 1ssue that the vehicle comphed with Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard 105 was
knowingly false, or in the exercise of reasonable care, GM should have known that said Certifications were
false and/or misleading 1n that defendants were aware, or 1n the exercise of reasonable éare, should have
been aware that (1) the parking brakes on the Subject Vehicles were defective 1n that they did not work,

would fail, and/or were substantially certain to fail well before the end of the expected life of the vehicle (at

an average of 24 months of service), (2) that the parking brakes on the Subject Vehcles did not meet the

mummunm safety performance requirements for motor vehicles or items of motor vehicle equipment (failed
1ts essential function as an immobihization device), and (3) that the presence of the defect as alleged herein
created an unreasonable risk of crashes occurring as a result of this dess gn‘defect and/or failed to protect the
public agamnst the unreasonable nisk of death or injury as a result of an likely unattended vehicle would roll
and cause a crash

75 Plaintiffs clawums herein are based solely on the laws of the State of Califorma and it1s averred
that any allegations 1n this Complaint referring to any failure to comply with the laws of the Umited States

of America, including any comphance and certification requirements of the Umted States Department of

_ Transpo.rtatlon, National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, and/or Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
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Standards and Regulations, are solely apphicable msofar as they give nse to violations of the laws of the

State of California

F. GM'’s Violation of California’s Secret Warranty Law

76 GM’s conduct v_lolates Califorma Civil Code § 1795 90 et seq (Cahforma’s Secret Warranty
Law) which was enacted to abohsh “secret” warranties and practices as alleged herein  The term “secret
warranty” 1s used herein to describe the practice by which an automaker, such as GM, establishes a policy
to pﬁy for the repair of that defect without making the defect or the policy known to the public at large A
secret warranty 1s usually created when the automaker, such as GM, realizes that a large number of 1ts

customers are experiencing a defect not otherwise covered by a factory warranty, and decides to offer

‘warranty coverage to mdividual customers oﬁly if the customer complans about the problem first The

warranty 15 therefore considered “secret” because all owners and lessees are not nottfied of it Instead, the
automaker usually 1ssues a service bulletin to its regional offices and/or dealers on how to deal with the
defect Because owners and lessees are kept 1n the dark about the cost-free repair, the automaker only has

to retmburse those customers who complain loudly enough, the quiet consumer pays to fix the defect us or

herself,

77 Section 1795 92 of the Califorma Secret Warranty Law imposes several duties on.
automakers, ncluding GM, each of which 1s designed to do away with secret warranties

78 Specifically, the Califorma Secret Warranty law requires automakers to notify all eligible
owners and lessees (""consumers") by first-class mail, within 90 days of adoption, whenever they enact "any
program or policy that expands or extends the consumer's warranty beyond 1ts stated limat or under which
[the] manufacturer offers .to pay for all or any part of the cost of repairing, or to rexmburse consumers for
all or any part of the cost of repainng, any condition that may substantially affect vehicle durability,
rehabihity, or performancef 1" |

79 The California Secret Warranty Law also requires automakers, includig GM, to provide the

‘New Motor Vehicle Board with a copy of the notice described in the preceding paragraph, so the public can

view, inspect, or copy that nolice
80 Additionally, the California Secret Warranty Law requires automakers, mncluding GM. to

advise their dealers, in wnting, of the terms and conditions of any warranty extenston, adjustment, or
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retmbursement program

81 The Cahforma Secret Warranty Law also requires an automaker, such as GM, to "implement

3 {| procedures to assure reimbursement of each consumer eligible under an adjustment program who incurs
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expenses for repair of a condition subject to the program prior fo acquinng knowfedge of the program ”

82 As stated above, on or about October 2002, GM 1sstied a service bulletin that describes a

| problem with the drum-in-hat parking brake system nstalled on the Subject Vehicles In that bulletin, GM

descnibes the problem or defect as being “  due to the pafking brake shoe contacting the drum mn hat rotor
without the parking brake bemng applied, causing premature wear on the shoe hining ™ Tius GM service
bulletin also explamns that the problem or defect may be corrected by installing the GM Parking Brake Kt
which contains a re-designed spring éllp retatner and describes, 1in detail how to 1nstall these corrective
replacement parts |

83 At ail relevant times, GM has taken the position that repair and replacement of the parking
brake componénts are a part of a consumer's "duty" to mamntain s o‘r her vehicle Asaresult, GM does not
typically pay for the replacement and installation of thé Parking Brake Kut or its re-designed spring clip
retainer under 1ts new car warranty (or any other warranty)

84 Plamt:ffs are informed and behieve and thereon allege that GM has, when the customers have
complamed loudly enough, offered to pay for all or any part of the cost of repainng the problem 1n the
Subject Vehicles and therefore, GM 1s obligated to comply with the provisions of tﬁe Caltfornia Secret
Warranty Law, but has not done so  Moreover, by extending 1ts new car warranty to cover réplacement and
installation of the Parking Brake Kit and/or the re-designed spring chp retainer to sdme customers and not
others, GM has expanded or extended the consumer's express warranty beyond 1ts stated hmat

85 Specifically, GM did not notify Plaintiff, or any of the other owners or lessees of the Subject
Vehicles of their right to seek a free repanr, rep]aéement or retrofit of the Parking Brake Kut orits re-designed
spring cl:i:) retainer, or to be reimbursed for the cost of repainng the parking brakes installed in these
vehicles

86  Atall imesrelevant, plamntiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege.that GM has not,
and did not comply with the dealer-notfication prov1sions of the Califorma Secret Warranty Law nor has

GM sent a copy of 1ts Service Bulletin to the New Motor Vehicle Board
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87 At all imes relevant, Plainuffs are informed and behieve, and thereon allege that GM has
refused to provide the free reﬁalr, replacement or retrofitting of the GM Parking Brake Kit or is re-designed
spring clip retainer to owners and lessees of the affected velicles who have specifically requested 1t and has
refused to reimburse consumers who have paid to have the Parking Brake Kit and/or the re-designed spring
clip retainer installed in their vehicles except for some who complained enough

88 Knowing the truth and mottvated by profit and market share, GM has knowingly and wil}ully
engaged 1n the acts and/or omissions to mislead and/or decerve Plaintiffs and others simitarly situated

89 The defective rear brake system on the Subject Vehicles has resulted and will continue to
result 1n sigmficant loss and damage to the class members, including but not lumited to reduced fair market
value

90  The claims of the named Plamtiffs are for damages less than $75,000 each, including ali

restitution, punitive, compensatory or statutory damages, interest, attorneys’ fees and costs

V.
TOLLING OF STATUTE OF LiMITATIONS AND ESTOPPEL

91.  Any apphcable statutes of hmitation have been equitably tolled by GM's affirmative acts of
fraud, fraudulent concealment, suppression and demsal of the true facts regarding the existence of the defect
braking systems 1n the Subject Velicles GM knew of the defects However, rather than disclosing the
defects, GM rﬁade affirmative representations, discussed s&pm , to Plamtiffs aﬁd others symilarly situated
about the quality, safety and parking brake systems of the Subject Vehicles that 1t knew were false when
made In addition to making affirmative representations that were false, GM also fraudulently concealed
matenal facts about the defective parking brake systems on the Subject Vehicles from Plamntiffs and others
simtlarty siuated GM’s acts of fraudulent concealment include, but are not imited to mtentional ly covering
up and refusing to publically disclose cntical internal memoranda, design plans, studies, Notices of Action,
Problem Detaill Reports and other reports of failure and imjury  Through such acts of frandulent
concealment, GM was able to acuvely conceal from the public for years the truth about the defective design
and manufacture of the parking brake systems on the Subject Vehicles otherwise known as the drum-in-hat

or Banksia-style of parking brake system, thereby toliing the mnming of any apphicable statute of hmitations
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92 GM 15 estopped from relying on any statutes of himitation because of their musrepresentations
and fraudulent concealment of the true facts concerming the defective parking brake system on the Subject
Vehicles Defendants were, at all imes relcvant,_ aware of the nature and existence of the defects in the
parking brakes on the Subject Vehicles as alleged herein but at all ames have continued to manufacturé,
certify, market, advertise, distnbute, and sell the Subject Vehicles without revealing the true facts concerning
these defects n order to sell their products despite thus knowledge The true facts about the Subject Vehicles
continues {o be concealed from the public, including Plaintiffs, the General Pubhe, and those simalarly
situated to this day

93" Through suchacts of fraudulent concealment, Defendants hévc successfully concealed from
the public facts necessary to support the claims heremn Plamntiff, the Géncral Pubhc and others similarly
situated, were and are prevented from knowing and having knowledge of such unlawful, unfair, fraudulent,
untrue and/or deceptive conduct or of facts that might have led to the discovery thereof Plamuffexercised
due diligence to learn of their legal nghts and despite such diligence, fatled to uncover the existence of the
violations alleged herein unti} within (3) years of the filing this complaint

04 At all times relevant, GM possessed a far greater degree of commercial understanding and

substantially more economic muscle than Plamntiffs and others sumilarly situated GM’s disclaimer and

hmtation of hability 1s and was oppressive (inequality in bargaming power which resulted in no real -

negotiation and “an absence of meanmngful choice) and as a result of surprise (the extent to which the
supposedly agreed-upon terms of the bargain are lndden 1n a prolix printed form drafted by the party seeking

to enforce the disputed terms)

. VI‘
CLASS DEFINITIONS AND CLASS ALLEGATIONS

95 Plaintiffs bring this action on behalf of themselves, on behalf of all others symilarly situated, -

and on behaif of the General Public, and as members of the classes or subclasses (collectively referred to

as “the Class™) defined as follows
(1) Califormia Class. The Califorma Class that Plalntlffs seek to represent {the “Califorma
Class”) consists of all persons and entities who purchased or leased, or will purchase or lease,
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a Subject Vehicle in Cahforma. The class specifically does not mnclude any claims seeking
damages for personal injuries or property damage resulting from defects as alleged herein
Excluded from the Class are Defendants, any parent, subsidiary, affiliate, or controlled
person of Defendants, as well as the officers, directors, agents, servants, or employees of
Defendants, and the immediate farmly member of any such person Also excluded 1s any
judge n this case who may preside over this case

(2)  National Class' The National Class that Plaintiffs seek to represent (the “National Class™)
1s defined to include all persons and entities who purchased or leased, or wall purchase or
lease, a Subject Veﬁicie 1n the United States The class specifically does not include any
claims seeking damages for personal mjuries or property damage resulting from defects as
alleged heremn  Excluded from the National Class are Defendants, any parent, subsidiary,
affibate, or controlled person of Defendants, as well as the officers, directors, agents,
servants, or employees of Defendants, and the immediate farmiy member of any such person
Also excluded 1s any judge in ttus case who may preside over this case

96 Thus action has been brought and may be properly maintamed as a class action pursuant'to

1 the provis;ons of Cahforma Code of Civil Procedure § 382, Cahiforma Civil Code § 1781, and other

applicable law
97 Numerosity of the Class - Code of Civ Proc § 382, Civ Code § 1781(b)2) Members of
the class or classes are so numerous that their individual joinder 1s impracticable  Plamnitffs estimate that
there are hundreds of thousands 1f hot milhions of class members The precise number of class members and
their addresses are unknown to Plaintiffs, but can be obtained from the Defendants’ records Class mctﬁbcrs
-may be notified of the pendency of this action by electromc mail, the Internet, other mail, or pubhshéd
notice |

98 Existence of Predominance of Commen Questions of Fact and Law - Code of Civ Proc
| § 382, Caiv Code § 1781(b)(2) Common questions of law and facl exist as to all members of the Class

These questions predominate over any questions affecting only individual class members These common
i legal and factual questions mclude

(1) Whether the parking brake system on the Subject Vehicles are defective,
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(12)

(13)

(14)

Whether the parking brake system on the Subject Vehicles have a safety-related defect,
Whether the parking brake system on the Subject Vehicles contamn any means for actively
self-centening the brake shoe within the brake drom dunng use,

Whether the defect 1n the parking brake sysiem on the Subject Vehicles caused and/or

contributed to the brake limng(s) to sustamn prolonged contact with the brake drum(s),

- Whether the defect in the parking brake system on the Subject Vehicles caused the parking

brakes not to work at all, not to work properly, and/or to wear-out or fail prematurely,
Whether Defendants knew or should have known or was reckless 1n not knowing that
parking brakes on the Subject Vehicles are defective,

Whether Defendants knew or should have known or was reckless m not knowing that the
parking brake systems on the Subject Vehicles would prematurely wear out and fail before
the end of the expected usefuni hife of the vehicles,

When Defendants became aware of the defect(s) m the parking brake system on the Subject
Vehicles as a]léged herein,

Whether Defendants had a duty to Plaintiffs and the Class to chsclose the defective nature of |
the parking brake system on the Subject Vehicles, |

Whether Defendants concealed and/or failed to disclosed matenal facts concerming the nature
and existence of the defect(s) to Plaintiffs and the Class

Whether the representations made by Defendants were and are false and/or had and have had

a tendency to deceive, by erther failing to disclose the existence of the defect known to GM,

aﬁd known to Plainnffs and others simmlarly situated or by musrepresenting that the Subject

Vehcles contained no safety-related defects,

‘Whether GM had exclusive knowledge of material facts concermng the defect(s) alleged

herern, not known to Plaintiffs and others similarly sttuated,

Whether GM made partial representations concermn g the quality, safety and/or functionality
of the'parkmg brake systems on the Subject Vehucles, all the while concealing matenal facts
concerning the nature and existence of the defect(s) as alleged herein,

Whether Defendants failed to adequately warn and/or notify class members and the General
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(16)

(7

(18)

(19)

- (20)

@1)

(22)

(23)

Public regarding the hazards of the parking brakes on the Subject Vehicles weanng out

and/or fathing prematurely due to their safety related design defect,

Whether Defendants continued to sell the Subject Vehicles with the defective parking brake
system as alleged herein despite its knowledge and/or reckless or neghgent disregard of the
defect(s) a]leged hérem,

Whether Defendants violated California consumer protection statutes, mcluding but not

hmited to Califormia Consumers Legal Remedies Act Civil Code §§ 1750 et seq , and

| California Business and Professions Code 8§ 17200 et seq and California Civil Code §§

1795 90 et seq ,

Whether Defendants have failed to noﬁfy Subject Vehicle owners or lessees of the defect(s)
here at 1ssue and repair or correct (or offer to repair or correct) defective parking brake
systems on the Subject Vehicles at no cost to the owners or lessees;

Whether Defendants are obh gated to inform the Class of their right to obtain, free of charge,
repatr and replacement of the defective components to the defective parking brake system
on the Subject Vehicles, |

Whether Defendants adequately mformed Dealers of the Parking Brake Shoe Kit (and re-
designed spring clip retainer replacement) and secret warranty as required by the California
Secret Warranty Law, |

Whether Defendants were required to provide the New Motor Velcle Board with a copy of
GM’s Service Bulletin(s) concernng the Rep]acemént Parkmg Brake Shoe Kut (or the
nformation contained 1n the bu]letln(s)) so that the public could have access tO-It,
Whether Defendants commutted an unlawful, unfarr and/or “fraudulent” business act or
practice within the meaning of the Business and Professrons Code §§ 17200 et seq ,

Whether the class members are entitled to damages, for the cost of repair and other attendant

costs and/or the difference between what was i'epresented, avehicle equipped with a parking

brake that would work as an immobilization device, and what they received, a velicle with

- a parking brake that would not inmobihize the vehicle when required,

Whether the class members are entitled fo restifution,
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(24)  Whether the class members are entiiled to disgorgement of ﬁroﬁts wrongfully obtained as
a result of the mlséonduct as alleged herein, and - _

"~ (25) Whether, as a result of Defendants’ misconduct, Plazﬁt:f’fs and the ciasses are entitled to
damages, restitution, equitable relief and other rehef, and the nature and ambunt of such
relief _ |

99 Typicality Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class because
Plantiffs each purchased and owned one of the Subject Vehicles containmg the defective parking brakes
alleged herein  Plaintiffs and the members of the Class sustamed the same types of damages and losses

100 Adeguécx Plaintiffs are adequate representatives of the Class because their interests do not
conflict with the interests of the members of the Class Plainttffs seek to represent Plaintiffs have retaned
counsel competent and experienced 1n complex class action litigation and Plamntiffs intend to prosecute this
action vigorously  The interests of members of the Class will be fanrly and adequately protected by
Plamntiffs and their counsel | _

101  Superiority ami Substantial Benefit The class action 1s superior to other available means
for the fair and efficient adjudication of PIamtlffs and fhe Class members’ claims The damages suffered
by each individual Class mémber may be mited Damages of such magnitude are small given the burden
and expense of individual prosecution of the complex and extensive hifigation necessttated by defendants’
conduct Further, it would be v1rtuaily mmpossible for the Class members to individually to redress the
wrongs done to them Even i1f members of the Class themselves could afford such mdividual hitigation, the
court system could not Individualized hitigation increases the delay and expense to all parties and the court |
system, due to the complex legal and factual 1ssues of the case By contrast, the class action device presents
far fewer management' difficulties, and provides the benefits of Sm’gle adjudication, economy of scale, and
comprehensive supervision by a single court | _

102 In the alternative, the Class should be certified because

- (a)  theprosecution of separate actions by individual members of the Class would
create a risk of inconsistent or varving adjudications with respect to individual Class members which would
estabhish incompatible standards of . conduct for defendants,

(b) the pro'secuuon of separate actions by mdividual members of the Class would
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create a nisk of adjudications with respect to them, which would, as a practical matter, be disposiive of the
interests of the other Class members not parties to the adyudications, or substantially impair or impede their
ability to protect their interests, and

(c) Defendants have acted of refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the
Class, and/or the General Public, thereby making appropnate final and imunctive relief with respect to the

classes as a whole

VIL
PRIVATE ATTORNEY GENERAL ALLEGATIONS
103  In addinhon to asserting class action claims n this action, Plaintiffs assert claims as privale
attorney generals on behalf of the members of the General Public pursuant to Business and Professions Code

section 17204 The purpose of such claims 1s to require Defendants to disgorge and restore all monies

wrongfully obtained by Defendants through their unfair business acts and practices A private aftorney

general action 1s necessary and appropriate because Def endams have engaged i the wrongful acts and false

advertising described herein as a general business practice

VIIIL.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of California’s Consumer Legal Remedies Act, Civil Code § 1750 et. seq.
' (Against All Defendants)

104  Plamuff incorporates all preceding paragraphs as if fully set forth herein

105  Defendants are “persons” as defined by Civil Code § 1761(¢c) _

106  Plamntffs and each member of the Class are "consumers" within the meamng of Civil Cddc
§ 1761(d)

107 The Consumef Legal Remedies Act ("CLRA"™), Califormia Cival Code § 1750 ef seg apphes
to Defendants’ actions and conduct described herein because it extends to transactions that are intended to

result, or which have resulted, in the sale or lease of goods or services to consumers

Iy
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108  GM and Defendants DOES 1 through 100 have violated the CLRA m at least the following

respects

(a)

®)

(¢)

(@)

In viotation of Section 1770(a)(3), Defendants have musrepresented that the Subject

- Vehicles are Certified that they Conform to All Applicable US Federal Motor

Vehicle Séfety Standards when they do not conform to Standard 105 and/or 135 as
set forth above 1n paragraph no 44, and paragraph no ’s 60-66, |

In violation of Section 1770(a)(S), Defendants have represented that the Subject
Vehicles have characteristics and benefits that they do not have, as alleged herein and
as set forth 1n § 105(d) below,

In violation of Section 1770(a)(7), Defendants have represented that the Subjeci

Vehicles are of a particular standard, quality, or grade when they are not. as alleged.

herein and as set forth in § 105(d) below,

- Inviolation of Section 1770(a)(9), Defendants have advertised the Subject Vehicles

“with an mtent not to sell them as advertised, As siated abovc m greater detail in

i)aragraphs No ’s 1-5, 19-65, 71, and 73-85, GM widely disseminated, broadcasted
and represented throughout the Class period, and for many years prior, that the
parking Brake system 6n the Subject Vehicles “Conforms to All Appheable U S
Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Sténdérds . including Standard 105 and/or 135, that

the Subject Vehicles would have “brake systems meeting reglondl legal

requirements,” and were “designed and tested with top-quality GM brake parts,” have

a “Technically Advanced Breaking System,” and were “engméered for excellent
durability [with] redesigned braking [] systems In addition, GM made numerous
references to the function, purpose and mtended use of the parking brakes on the
Trucks 1n the Owner’s manuals that accompanied the sale of each of these vehicle for
owners and lessees to use the parking brakes 1n a wide vanety of situations, such as

using the parking brake when “Parking on HlllS,.” or when “Changing a Flat Tire”

and to “Set the parking brake firmly” each of which either expressly or by

mplication affirmatively represented that Plaintiffs would have a fully functional
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parking brake system and that 1f a defect extsted, GM would perform “Repairs made
to correct any defect”  These representations were false, deceptive and/or
musleading because the parking brake system on the Subject Vehicles were in fact
defectrve at the time of manufacture, delivery and szle, and have substantially failed
to perform their intended function as an mmmobihzation device for the Subject
Vehicles as alleged in paragraphs 1-5, 19-65, 71, and 73-85 As a result, Plamntffs
and others stmilarly situated did not recerve a vehicle with the characteristics and
benefits of having a properly functioning immobilization device on these vehicles,
were not “top-quality,” “Professional Grade,” and were 1n fact of poor, substandard
qualify, and at all times relevant, GM advertised the Subject Vehicles wath mtent not
to sell the Subject Vehicles as advertised thus violating Section 1 770(5)(5), (a)}(7)and
(a9 | o

In -violation of Section 1770(a)(14), Defendants have musrepresented that a
transaction confers or mvolves legal nghts, obhigations, or remedes of plamtiffs and
other members of the Class concerning the Subject Vehicles when they were not As
statéd above n greater detall mn paragraphs no’s 3, 42-61, 66-72, at all times
relevant, GM’s standard, written Warranty and Owner’s Manual accompamed the

sale of each of the Subject Vehicles at 1ssue representing that GM would provide a

' legai ﬁght for consumers to have the defective parking brakes repaired, free of

charge, “Repairs made to correct any defect” and “See Owner’s Manual”, that GM

was obligated and assumed the duty to notfy consumers of the important safety

related defects, such as the defects in the parking brake system at 1ssue, and that the

- remedies and reparrs promised 1n GM’s Warranty and Owner’s Manual would be

honored, when they were not, and at all times relevant, GM failed to provide
adequate notice and repair of the defects and the remedies provided under its
watranty as alleged 1n paragrai)hs 3,42-61, 66-72,

In violation of Section 1770(2)(16}, Defendants have represented that the Subject

Vehicles were supplied in accordance with previous representations when they were
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not As stated above 1n greater detail in paragraphs no ’s 3, 42-61, 66-72, at all times
relevant, GM represented that the Subject Velucles were supphed, dehivered and
Certified to comply with the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards, Standard 105
and/or 135 and/or otherwise free of any “defect 1 performance, construction, a
component, or matenal of a motor vehicle or motor vehicle equipment” and/or
otherwise meet the “minimum standard for motor vehicle or motor vehicle equipment
performance,” “in a way that protects the public aganst unreasonable risk of
accidents oceurring because of the design ™ 1n accordance with49 U S C § 30102
and GM’s own mternal “Pre-Delivery Inspection” and/or “Completely Satisfied -
New Vehicle Dehivery Systém” and/or other similar GM policies and procedures As-
alleged hefem, at all tumes relevant, GM knew, or in the exercise of reasonable care
should have know of the defects alleged herein, concealed and falled to disclose the
existence of these defects and/or pattially disclosed information concerming the
parklhg brake system on the Subject Vehicles but failed to disclose important, safety
related wnformation concerming the defect(s) that existed in the parking brakes, and
thus, the Subject Vehicles were n_oi supphedr i accordance with GM’s
representations and Certrfication of the Subject Vehicles m violation éf Section
1770(a)(16), and

In violatron of Section 1770(a)(19), m that GM has nserted an unconscionable

provision 1n the contract/warranty that was provided along wath the sale of each of

-the Subject Vehicles at 1ssue At all relevant tumes, GM has explamed, interpreted,

represented and/or attempted to insert an unconscionable provision 1n its clarmed,
Limited Warranty, a clause, the object of which 1s to directly or indirectly. exempt
GM from 1ts responsibility for its fraudulent, deceptive and/or misleading acts and
practices as alleged herein and/or seeks to limt its liabality for its willful mjury to
Plamtiffs and others similarly situated, or for 1ts violations of the laws, including
Califorma’s conswmer protection statutes as alleged herein, regardless of whether its

mmsconduct 1s deemed willful or neghgent, and 1s therefore against the policy of the
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laws of the State of Cahiforma, are void and 1n violation of Section 1770(a)(10), To
the extent that GM disclaims any responsibility or hiability for the misconduct as

alleged heremn, either i 1ts alleged “Limited Warranty,” 1t’s Owner’s Manual, a_nd or

- any other writing created and prepared by GM or otherwise GM required consumers

to sign, such disclaimers are mnvalid a violates the CLRA 1n that said limitations of
liability were not conspicuous, are ambiguous, unclear, indefinite, lacks specificity,
and are unconscionable, both procedurally and substantively, and that said warranty
and/or warranties to which GM has made have failed their essential purpose to

provide repair and replacement, free ,_of charge, and/or otherwise contradict 1ts

- affirmative representations in its Owner’s Manual, that “Repairs {would] be made to

correct any vehicle defect” within the warranty period” when at all times relevant,
GM demied all such claims during its claimed warranty period as alleged herein

Further, at all times relevant, GM has unreasonably delayed and/or their existed a

 total inability of GM 1o repair the known defects as alleged herein  Accordingly,

GM’s demals and disclaiming of said warranty and/or warranties and/or 11s tnsertion
of any such unconscionable clause(s) are mvalid and, 1n and of themselves. a
violation of Section 1770(a)(10), Further, at all imes rele\_fant, GM’s standardized

“Limited Warranty” that was provided along with the sale of each of the Subject

Vehicles unlawfuily, unfairly and unconscionably seeks to limit its responsibility, by

virtue of its superior posihon as the world’s largest autorhaker resulting 1n a gross
1ﬁequahty’1n bargaining power and whléh resulted m no real negotiation and absence
of meaningful choice for consﬁmcrs and therefore 15, and was, at all times relevant,
oppressive  Moreover, any such clauses GM may assert have been buned m 1ts
prolix pre-printed form warranty drafted and prepared by GM, also in violation of

Section 1770(a)(10)

109. At all tmes relevant, GM failed to diligently make the repairs to the parking brake systems
on the Subject Vehicles when owners and lessees presented the velucles for repairs and/or service, that such

repairs and replacement of the defective components on the parking brake systems would have cured the
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defects, in that GM knew, and had researched and re-designed replacement components, and that losses and
mjuries to Plaintiffs, others sumilarly situated and the General Public would be substantial, including but not
lirmited to serious bodily mjury and/or death

110 GM's misconduct and/or deceptive acts alleged herein occurred 1n the course of selling a
consumer product and Defendant has done so continuously through the filing of this complaint

111 As a direct and proximate result of GM's violation of Civil Code Section 1770, ef seq,
Plaintsffs and other Class members have suffered irreparable harm and monetary damages entithing them to
both mnjunctive relief and restitution  Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and on behalf of the Class, seek
damages and all other relief allowable under the CLRA

112 Atall umes relevent, GM knew, or in the exercise of réasonablc care, should have knbwn,
that the parking brake systems on the Subject Vehicles were, and rematn defective, and GM concealed these
matenal facts from Plamtiffs and others similarly and/or failed to disclose (omissions) of material facts,
when GM had exclusive knoWledge ofthe matenal facts concerning the existence of the extremely important
safety related 1ssue, that at all times relevant, where not known by Plamtiffs and others similarly situated,
and/or by virtue of GM’s partial representations concernmg the quality, safety and performance of the
parking brakes, as atleged herein, and at all time relevant concealing the true nature of the defects at 1ssue

| 1. 13 Asalleged herem, soon after the Subject Vehicles were placed mnto the stream of commercé,
GM’s received numérous complaints, incliding coinplamts of sertous personal myures and deaths directly
and proximately caused by defective parking brakes on th_e Subject Vehicles, and at all relevant tumes, GM
remaned silent, fatled and refused to warn consumers about these defects 1n the ‘parking brakes on these
vehicles and to this day, GM continues to conceal this rﬁatenal, important safety related information from
consumers, that (a) the parking brakes on the Subject Vehicles do not work, fail or malfunction without
excepnion, (b) the parking brakes on the Subject Vehicles are defective and the defects are substantially
certain to cause the parking brakes on the Subject Vehicles not to work and/or malfunction well before the
end of the useful life of the vehicles (over 200,000 miles), and (c) that each of the parking brakes on the
Subject Vehicles have either falled and/or are substantally certamn to fail and cease to function as an
1mmobllliatlon device, long before the end of the expected hfe of the vehicles (over 200 000 miles)

114 - Atall imes relevant, GM has also actively misrepresented the cause of the malfunctions and
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premature faitures of the parkimg brakes on the Subject Vehicles, blaming the cause of the defects onalleged
normal wear and tear, or on the users and/or consumers of the Subject Vehicles when GM knew that these
malfunctions and failures were caused by the design defects as alleged herein To this day, GM has nether
provided proper notice of these defects nor offered fo provide repair or replacement of the defective parking
brakes at no cost to Plaintiffs and others simlarly situated |

115  Asaresult of the msconduct as alleged herein, Plaintiffs and each Class member have been
damaged — damages betng the difference between the value of what was represented a Subject Vehicle with
a parking brake system that would ﬁnctlon and operate as animmobilization device, and what theyreceived,
a Subject Vehicle that would not immebihize the vehicle when required |

116  Knowingthe truth and motivated by profit and market share, GM has knowmgly and willfully
engaged m the acts and/or omussions to mislead and/or deceive Plamtiffs and others similarly situated

GM’s wrongful conduct, as alleged herein, was willful, oppressive, immoral, unethical. unscrupulous,

substantially injurious and mahcious Accordingly, Plaintiffs, and others similarly situwated, seek pumtive

damages aganst defendants 1n an amount to deter defendants from similar conduct 1n the future, pursuant
to C1v1l Code § 1780 (a)(4) |

117 The facts which GM has musrepresented and concealed as alleged 1ﬁ the preceding
paragraphs, were matenal to the decisions about whether to purchase the Subject Vehicles n that Plaintiffs
and others simlarly situated would not have purchased these defective and unsafe vehicles but for
Defendants’ misrepresentations and concealment of material facts and/or paid more for the vehicles as
represented, mstead of as delivered - As a direct and pfoxnnate result of the misconduct alleged heremn,
Plaintiffs and all others similarly situated pard hundred, 1f not thousands of dollars more for these vehicles
than they were worth at the time of delvery and/or sale

118  Pursuant to Civil Code Section 1782, Plamntiffs provided notice to Defendants at least tharty
days prior to amending this action to mclude a prayer for damages |

119 This amendment to the complaint was made because the Defendants failed to make the
showing required by Civil Code Section 1782(c)

120 As a result, Plamntiffs seek actual andr punitive damages for violation of the CLRA In

addition, pursuant to Civil Code Section 1782(a)2), Plaintiffs and members of the class are entitled to an
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order emjoining the above-described wrongful acts énd practices of defendants, providing restitution to
Plaintiffs and the class, ordering payment of costs and attorneys' fees, and any other relief deemed
appropriate and proper by the Court under Civil Code Section 1780 |

121 'WHEREFORE, pursuant to the provisions of Califorma Civil Code § 1780, Ple_untiffs are
entitled to actual and punitive damages plus interest thereon, restitution and other appropnate equitable
relief, an order enjoining defendants from the unlawful practices described heren, as well as recovery of

attorneys’ fees and costs of litigation

IX.
SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of California’s Unfair Competition Law, Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 eﬁ seq.
(Against All Defendants)

122 Plainhff mcorporates by reference all preceding paragraphs as 1f fully set forth herein

123 Plainnffs bring this claim on behalf of themselves and others sumilarly situated i their
representative capacify as a private attorney general agamst Defendant GM and Does 1 throﬁgh 100, for therr
unlawful, anfair, frandulent, untrue and/or deceptive business acts and/or practices pursuant to California
Busimess & Professions Code sechion ]7200 et seq (*“UCL") which prohibits all vnlawful, unfair and/or
fraudulent business acts and/or practices

124 Plaintiffs assert these claims as they are representatives of an aggrieved group and as a pnivate
attorney genéral on behalf of the general pub_hc and other persons who have expended funds that the
Defendants should be required to pay or reymburse under thé restituionary remedy provided by Califormia
Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, ef seg _

125  Defendant’s acts, ormssions, misrepresentations, practices and non-disclosures of as alleged
heretn constituie unlawful, unfalf and/or fraudulent business acts and/or practices within the meaning of
Califorma Busmess & Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq

126  Defendant’s unlawful business acts and/or practice as alleged herein have violated numerous
laws and/or regulations - federal and/or state, statutory and/or common law - and said predicate acts are

therefore per se violations of §17200, ef seq These predicate unlawful business acts and/or practices
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include, but are not himited to the following: violations of the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Act
(“FMVSA™), 40 USCA § 30101 et seq , Federal Trade Commussion Act (“FTC Act™), 15U S C §§ 41-58,
and the Lanham Trade-Mark Act (“Lanham Act™), 15U S C §§ 1051-1127, California Civil Code § 1795 90
et seq (the “Cahforma Secret Warranty Law”), Califorma Civil Code §§ 1572 (Actual Fraud), 1573
{Constructrve Fraud), 1710 (Deceit}, California Civil Code § 1668 (Contracts contrary to pohcy of law),
Cahiformia Commercial Code § 2313 (breach of express warranty), Cahfomxa Crvil Code §§ 1790, the Song-
Beverly Consumer Warranty Act (“Act”), and Civil Code § 17500, Califormia’s False Advertising Act In

addition, GM has violated, and/or caused the owners and lessees of the Subject Vehicles to violate California

O [ -3 [o S E=Y w [\

Vehicle Code §§ 26450, 26451, and/or the brake related laws of the states, which include:

Alabama Ala Admm Coder 760-X-1- 09 Defiming The Adequacy Of Brakes, And
Prescribing The Performance Standards Thereof, Of Motor Vehicles Using
The Highways Of The State Of Alabama Ala.Code 1975 § 32-5-212 Brakes

Alaska Alaska Admin Code tit. 13, § 04 205 BRAKES AND OTHER EQUIPMENT

Anzona ARS §28-952 Required brake equipment

Arkansas A CA §27-37-501 Brakes generally

| Califorma CA Veh Code § 26450 Required brake sysiem, CA Veh Code § 26451

Parking brake system

Colorado CRS.A §42-4-223 Brakes

Connecticut CGS A § 14-80h Brake equipment of motor vehicles

Delaware 21 Bel C § 4303 Brakes -- General requirements

Flonda FSA §31626] Brake equpment required

Geogra Ga Code Ann, § 40-8-52 Parking brakes

Idaho 1C §49-933 Brakes

Hhnois 625 ILCS 5/12-301 Brakes

Inchana IC 9-19-3-1 Safety requirements, means of applying brakes

fowa ICA § 321430 Brake, litch and control requirements

Kansas K S A §8-1734 Braking systems for motor vehicles and combinations of
véhlcles, performance requircmcnis, additional braking systems, when,
anhque vehicles exempted
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Kentucky

KRS § 189 090. Brakes

Lousiana LSA-R § 32.341 Brake equipment required

Maine 29-AMR.S.A § 1902. Brakes

Maryland MD Code, Transportation, § 22-301.Necessary brake equipment

Massachusetts M G.L A 90 § 7 Brakes, braking systems, mufilers, homns, hghts, audible
warnming systems, and other equipment, compliance with safety standards,
stickers and emblems

Michigan MCLA 257705 Brakes

Minnesota MSA § 169 67 Brakes _

Mississippl Miss Code Ann § 63-7-51 Brakes, and Miss Code Ann § 63-7-53 Brake
Standards

Missoun VAMS 307170 Other equipment of motor vehicles

Montana MCA 61-9-303 Parking brakes-—-adequacy, MCA 61-9-301 Brake equipment
required, and MCA 61-9-302 Service brakes--adequacy

Nebraska Neb R St § 60-6,244 Motor vehicles, brakes, requmrements

Nevada NRS § 484 593 Equipment required

New Hampshire NH Rev Stat § 266 27-a Parkmg'Brakes Required
N H. Rev Stat § 266 27 Brakes Required

New Jersey NIS A §393-67 Brake equipment required

New Mexico

N M S A 1978, § 66-3-840 Brakes

New York McKinney's Vehicle and Traffic Law § 375 Ecimpment

North Carolina NCGSA §20-124 Brakes

North Dakota NDCC, 39-21-32 Brake equipment requured

Ohio R C §4513 20 Brake equipment

Oklahoma 47 Okl St Ann § 12-301 Brake equipment required

Oregon ORS § 815 125 Brakes, requirements and standards
Pennsylvama 75PaCS A §4502 General requirements for braking systems
Rhode Island Gen Laws 1956, § 31-23-4 Brake equipment required

South Carolina

Code 1976 § 56-5-4850 Brake equipment

47-
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South Dakota SDCL § 32-18-14 Capability of parkimg brake-Parking brake assisted by
service brake, SDCL § 32-18-13 Parking brakes--Violation as mrédemeanor,

and SDCL § 32-18-1 Brakes required on particular vehicles--Violation as

ol oo R I Y h I (¥ (]

msdemeanor

Tennessee T C A §55-9-204 Brakes

Texas V T C.A , Transportation Code § 547 404 Parking Brakes Required, and
V T C A, Transportation Code § 547 401. Brakes Required

Utah UCA 1953 § 41-6a-1623 Braking systems required--Adoption of

. petformance requirements by department

Vermont 23V S A § 1307 Brake equpment required

Virginia Va Code Ann § 46 2-1066 Brakes, and Va Code Ann §46 2-1068
Emergency or parking brakes

Washimgton West's RCWA 46 37 340 Braking equipment required

West Virginia W Va Code, § 17C-15-31 Brakes-generally

Wisconsin W S A 347 35 Brakes

. Wyoming W 81977 § 31-5-950 General braking requirements

127 Defendant’s misconduct as alleged mn this achion constitutes neghigence and other tortious
conduct and this misconduct gave Defendant’s an unfair competitive advantage over their competitors

128  Thehammn, thensk 0f SET10US mury to persons and/or property, including senous qully mjury
and/or death resultlﬁ g from the failure and substantial ikely hood that these defective parking brakes on the
Subject Velcles will fail to function and operate as an :mmoblllzatloﬁ device, far outweighs any benefit for
allowing GM and Defendants DOES 1 through 100 to continue 1ts acts and practices of misrepresenting the
quahty, safety and functionality and/or withholding and faihing to disclose to owners and lessees of these
vehicles important safety related mforrﬁatmn concerning a defect that, at all time relevant, Defendants knew,
or 1n the exercise of reasonable care should havé known since th;a date of manufacture and sale of reach of
the Subject Vehicles at 1ssue

1 29_ Asaresult of Defendant’s acts, omissions, misrepresentations, practices and non-disclosures

as alleged herem, members of the public are likely to be deceived and/or have lead to consumer confusion
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that the Subject Vehicles contamn and/or are equipped with a fully functional and operational parking brake
system to use as an immobilization device to prevent the vehicle from unintended rolling, when- (1) parking
on a hill or inchine, (2} jacking up the vehicle to replace a wheel or tire, particularly in case of a roadside
emergency such as a tire blow out or other common event that drivers are likely to expenence, and (3) to
unmobilize the velucle when it 1s required to Jeave the vehicle unattended with the engime running  Said
acts, omussions, misrepresentations, practices and non-disclosures as alleged herein therefor constitute
frandulent business acts and/or practices within the meaning of Cahfornia Business & Professions Code §§
17200, ef seq |

130 As alleged herem, GM has for many years, conducted national advertising of 1ts various
producfs, stressing the excelience and rellaﬁlllty of 1ts products, mcludmg but not himted 1o the Subjects
Trucks, quality, safety, functionality and/or performance

131 At all relevant times, as alleged heremn, GM has aggressively promoted and advertised the
Subject Vehlcles n an unlawful, unfair, fraudulent, untrue and/or deceptive manner that 1s and was likely
to deceive the pubhc |

132 Defendant’s misconduct, as fully descnibed herein, constitutes acts of untrue and misleading
advertising and are, by definition, violations of Califorma Business & Professions Céde § 17200 et seq

133 The acts, omissions, misrepresentations, practices, non-disclosures and/or concealment of
matenal facts, and/or deception alleged 1n the preceding paragraphs occurred in connection with Defendant’s
conduct of trade and commerce 1n Califorma

134 Defendants’ misconduct as alleged 1 this action constitutes negligence and other tortious
conduct and this misconduct gave these Defendants an unfair competitive advantage over their competitors

135  As a direct and proximate result of the aforementioned acts, Defendants, and each of them,
recerved momes expended by Plamtiffs and others Simlarly Situated who purchased the Subject Vehicles

-, 136 Plaintiffs further allege that the momes paid by them for thé purchase of thewr Subject

Vehicles conferred a monetary benefit on Defendant GM, as without such purchases, GM would not have
been able to sell the Subject Vehicles through any third party distnbutors or retailers  Thus, the momes
obtained by GM through their sale of the Subject Velicles were obtained as a result of momes paid by

Plaint:ffs and the putative class, Plamntiffs have a vested interest in this money, and Plainuffs are entitled to
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restitution of such 111 gotten gains

137  Defendants’ conduct constitutes unfair acts or practices conducted in the course of defendants’
respective bustnesses, and thereby constitutes violations of Califorma Business and Professions Code
sections 17200, ef seg Such conduct offends the established public policy of the State of Cahfornia and 1s
immoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous and suBstantlally njunous

138 As a direct and proxumate result of Defendants’ unlawful, unfair and fraudulent busmess
practices as alleged herein, Defendants have. (a) sold more vehicles than it otherwise could have, (b) charged
inflated prices for the Subject Vehicles measured by the difference between what was represented a vehicle
with a parking brake system that would function and operate as an ymmobilization device, and what the
Class members received, a vehicle with a defective parking brake system that would not immobilize the |
vehicle when required, unjustly enriching 1tself thereby; and (c) charged and retained fees for providing
repair and other services that they otherwise would not have been able to charge or retain

139 The unlawful, unfar, deceptive and/or frandulent business practices and/or false and

{t misleading advertising of defendants, as fully described herein, present a continuing threat to members of

the public to be injured by the Subject Vehicles as alleged herein  Pursuant to Section 17203 of the UCL,
Plaintiffs seek an order of this Court enjoiung Defendants from continuing to engage mn unlawful, unfair
or fraudulent business practices, and any other act prohibited by the UCL Plamuffs. also seck an order
requirmg Defendants to fully disclose the frue nature of its misrepresentations and omissions, and engage
1n a correchive notice and/or advertising campaign to fully disclose true nature of the defects 1n the parking
brakes on the Subject Vehicles as allegéd herem and offer free replacement and repair of the parking brakes
on the Subject Vehicles 1n order o correct the misrepresentations and onussions made by Defendants |
140  Defendants' conduct constitutes unfar acts or practices conducted in the course of Defendants
respective busmnesses, and thereby conshitutes violations of Cahforma Business and Professions Code
séctions 17200, ef seq Defendants’ conduct and intent to widely market the Subgect Vehicles to Califorma
consumers involved false and misleading advertising Such conduct offends the established public policy
of the State of Califorma and 18 immoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous and substantially mjunous
141  Pursuant to Section 17203 of the UCL, Plamtiff seeks an order of this Court enjorming GM

from continuing to engage 1n unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business practices, and any other act prohibited
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by the UCL Plamntiff also seeks an order requuiring GM to comply with the terms of the California Secret
Warranty Law by (a) notifying Class Members of the secret parking brake warranty, (b) providing free
nstallation of the Parking Brake st (in installation of the re-designed spring chp retamel;) to Class
Members, (c) notifying dealers of the facts underlymng the parking brake problem and the terms of the secret |
parking brake warranty, (d) notifying the New Motor Vehicle Board of the secret parking brake warranty,
and (¢) identifyang and retmbursing Class Members who have paid for the Parking Brake Kit (including the
re-designed spring clip retainer) to be mstalled Plaintiff also seeks an order (1) enjoining GM from failing
and refusing to make full restitution of all moneys wrongfully obtained and (1) disgorging all 11l-gotten
revenues and/or profits earned or retaméd as a resuit of GM's violations of the California Secret Warranty
Law

142 As set forth, above, GM has violated the Califorma Secret Warranty Law, Crvii Code §8
179590 et seg  As a proximate result of GM's conduct, GM obtained secret ﬁroﬁts by which it became
unjustly enriched at Plaintiff and the Class Members' expense

143 Plamntiffs also seek an order estabhishing GM as a constructive trustee of the secret profits
that served to unjustly enrich GM, together with interest durmg the period m which GM has retamed such _
funds,. and requintng GM to disgorge those funds 1n a manner to be determined by the Court and m addition

to the relief requested 1n the Prayer below, Plaintiffs seek the imposition of a constructive trust over, and

restitution-of, the montes collected and profits realized by Defendants

144 The unlawful, unfa, deceptive an_d/ or frandulent business practices and/or false and
m1éIead1ng advertising of Defendants, as fu.lly described herein, present a continuing threat to ﬁembers of
the public to be mjured by the Subject Vehicles equipped with the defective parking brake systems as alleged
herein |

145 WHEREFORE, Plaintffs and the Class members are entitled to equitable relief, including
restitution, disgorgement of all profits accrumng to Defendant because of its unlawful, unfair, frandulent and
deceptive practices, attorney fees and costs, declaratory relief, and a2 permanent 1pjunction enjormng
Defendant from its unlawful, unfair, fraudulent and decertful activity
1
H
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X.
PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated and as to the

Fourth Cause of Action, also on behalf of the general public, pray for judgment against Defendants as

follows

A

An order certifying this case as a class actton and apponting Plaintiffs and their counsel to
represent the class;
For actnal damages for injuries suffered by Plamntiffs and the Class pursuant to Cahiforma Civil
Code § 1780(a)(1},
For an order awarding restitution and disgorgement of monies Defendants wrongfully acquired
through the sales of the Subject Vehicles as a result of Defendants unlawful, unfair, and

deceptive acts and/or practices, together with interest thereon to the date of payment to the

victims of such violations,

For statutory damages 1n an amount of not less than $1,000 per Plamt:fT or class member
puréuant to California Civil Code § 1780(a)(1),

For an order requinng Defendants to immediately cease its wrongful conduct as set forth
above, enjoining Defendants from continuing to falsely market and advertise, conceal matenal
mformation and conduct business via the unlawful and unfair business acts and practices
complamed of heremn, and ordening Defendants to engage in corrective notice,

For pumtive damages 1n an amouﬁt to deter Defendants from similar conduct 1n the future
pursuant te Califorma Civil Code § 1780(a)(4),

For reasonable attorneys' fees and the costs of thus action pursuant to Califormia Code of Civil
Procedure §§ 1021 5and 1033,5(a)}(10)(B), and attorney fees pursuant to California Civil Code
§ }TSO(d), and/or from the common fund and for all costs associated with admimstration of

the common fund and the costs of this action,

~ For pre-judgment mterest at the maximum legal rate, and

For such other relief as this Court may deem just and proper
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X1
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Plainuffs demand a trial by jury for themselves and the class on all claims so tnable

Drecemiber 9, 2005 SPIRO MOSS BARNE SON & BARGE LLP

¢ DAVIDM OGAST
Attorneys for Plainsffs La Ronda Hunter,
Rosana N Pulgarin, Robin Gonzales and all others
Smmlarly Situated
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LA RONDA HUNTER " 12/16/08
1 DK Contied 1 LA RONDA HUNTER,
5 EXHEDS 2  having been first placed under oath, was examined and
: 11)3 2001 gMNCL:gMDutmid: Waragaed - 110 3 testified as foliows: _
: " m"&m Wm 'i‘g;” 5 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: You may proceed.
. Bates Nos. P3021 - P3022 : 6 :
15 Vehicle Insoection Sheet 14 T . EXAMINATION
9 Bates No. P3020 8 BYMS. GUZMAN:
10 16 Bl;;:e;lzonr;oa‘c‘;ﬂmck. GMC invoice 142 9 Q  Good moming, Ms. Hunter. T am Kelly Guzman,
u 17 Power Pontias Buick, GMCimvsics.  * 143 -110:10 10 and ! represent General Motors.
12 BatesNo P3IS i1 Would you please state your name for the
13 18 Power Cheviolet invoics 145 12 record
g EmNePI6 13 A My name is La Ronda Hunter,
i: msn;p‘\gsnolaﬁuor_mmswm_ 14 Q And I would kike to go through a few basic
17 L] ' 15 rules for the procedure, ground rules, and then give
18 g: 121 16 yom achance to ask any questions you have about how
15 P 17  thisis going to go.
B IS is8 First of all, you understand that you're
20 8 1 19  under oath, correct?
2 o 10:11 20 A Yes.
22 ::g ;g 21 Q And that means that you must answer all of i
122 24 R 22  the questions I ask you trathfislly and bonestly and to !
2 I3 u 23 the best of your ability.
24 152 10 24 A Yes. |
25 155 20 _ 25  Q Youmust also answer the questions audibly so
Page 5 Paga 7 i
1 Los Angeles, California, Tuesday, December 16, 2008 1 that the cotirt reporter can take them down.
2 10:10am. -325pm 2 A Yes
3 : 3 Q Ifsdifficult for her to transcribe anod of
4 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Good moming, foday is 4 the head or an vh-bah, 50 anytime you can, please
5 December 16, 2008. We are on the record at 10 past 5  answer & clear yes orno.
6 10:00. We're here for the deposition of La Ronda 6 For the purposes of this deposition, when X
7  Hunter in the matter of Hunter, et 2l., versus General 7  refer to GM, T mean General Motors Corporation and all
8 Motors, Case Number BC324622, pending before Superior 8 of its divisions, affiliates, et cetera. Olmy?
.9 Court, State of California, County of Los Angeles. 9 A Okay.
10:69 10 This deposition is being taken on behalf of 10:11 10 Q Please tell me if you do notunderstanda
" 11 theDefendant. We are at the offices of Krikdand & 11 question that f ask you. Okay?
12 Ellis, located at 777 South P':gueroa Street, Los 12 A Okay.
13 Angeles, California. 13 Q If you answer, I will assume that you
14 My name is Brunc Sere, appearing on behalf of 14 understood the question. Is that fair?
15  Samoff Court Reporters and Legal Technologies located 15 A Yes.
16 inLos Angeles, Califomia, 16 Q We're going to take a break every hour and
17 Would counsel please introduce themselves and 17 for lunch Is thatall nght"
18 state their affiliation. 18 A Yes.
19 MS. GUZMAN: Kelly Guzman, counsel for GM. 18 Q And if you need a break, that's fine, just _
- J30:10 20 MS. YASHAR: Pantca Yashar counsel for GM. 10:11- 20 letmeknow. I just ask that if there is a question :
: 21 MR. SPIRO: Ira prm, S-p-i-r-0, counsel for - 21  pending, you finish answering it before we take a
22  plaintff. 22 break. Is that okay?
23 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: You may swear in the 23 A Yes.
24  witness. 24 Q Are you taking any medication or are you
.25 25 under the influence of alcohol or any drugs today?
Page & Page B
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1 MR. SPIRC: Don't answer quite yet. Any 1 A One.
2 medication, Counsel? There is a right to privacy 2 Q@ How old is your child?
3 there. 3 A 18yearsold . ...
4 Any medication that would affect her 4 Q Does anyone depend on you for support?
5  testimony would be okay. I'll let her answer that. 5 A My dauvghter.
6 BY MS. GUZMAN: ' 6 Q Anyone else?
7 Q Okay. Areyou taking any medication that 1 A No. _
B  affects your ability to testify today? 8 Q Who lives in your household now?
9 A No. ' 9 A Me and my daughter and my sister.
10:12 10 Q Areyonunder the influence of alcohol orany | 10:14 10 (Q Has anyone else lived in your household in
11 drugs today? ' 11 thepast? ’
12 A No. 12 A No. In the past, as far as the new address,
13 Q 1s there any other reason at all that your 13 mo.
14 memory might be impaired or you might be unable to 14 Q Are you currently employed?
15  understand my questioiis today? 15 A Tm retired.
16 A No. 16 Q Where did you work?
17 Q TFinally, please understand that all we are 17 A United States Postal Service.
‘18  interested in here is your truthful, honest testimony. 18 Q And how long did you work there?
18 Okay? ' 19 A 14 years. Approximately 14 years.
10:12 20 A Okay. 10:14 20 Q What was your position at the United States
21 Q Now, do you have any questions about this or 21 Postal Service? '
22  the basic format of the deposition? 22 A Equipment operator.
23 A No. . 23 Q How long did you hold that position?
24 Q Ms. Hunier, what is your age? 24 A About two years.
25 A 39 25 Q 'Who was your supervisor at that position? |
Page 9 Page 11
1 Q What is your date of birth? 1 A  FEstban Goitia.
2 A 03/26/1969. 2 Q Conld you spell that name.
3 . Q Wherewere you bomn? 3 A EstbanGoitia
3 A California. 4  Q And what were your duties and
5 Q Where in California? 5  responsibilities at that position?
6 A Los Angeles. 6 A Duties of an equipment operator is to operate
7 Q  Where do you live? 7  aforklift.
8 A InLos Angeles, California. 8 Q What did you do before you were equipment
9 Q Can you give me your address? 9. operator? :
}10:13 10 A 4125 Marine Ave. ) 10:15 10 A Mail handier.
11 Q How long bave you lived at that address? 11 Q Kow long were you at that position?
12 A Two years. 12 A Twelve
13 Q Where did you live before then? 13  Q And who was your supervisor at that position?
14 A 15014 Eastwood. 14 A Rvaried ‘
15 Q Alscin Los Angeles? 15 Q  Just to clarify, you mean 12 years?
16 A InLawndale. 16 A Uh-huh, yes.
17 Q InLawndale? 17 Q Can you remember any of your supervisor's
bk A Ub-huh, yes. 18  names af that position?
_ 19 Q How long did you live at that address? 19 A  Girtha Bollman, G-#-r-t-h-a, H-o-H-ma-n,
]10:13 20 A About 14 years, 15 - 14, 15 years, 10:15 20  Q Anyothers?
21 Q Are you maried? 21 A GiennHooks.
22 A No. 22 Q Any others?
23 Q Do you have any children? 23 A No.
24 A Yes. 24 Q What were your duties and responsibilities at
25 Q Howmany? 25  that position?

. Page 12
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1 A To process mail. 1 A Yes
2 Q How long were you at the United States Postal 2 Q Are you aware that there has already been
3  Service total? 3  discovery in this case?
4 A From 1994 to 2008. 4 A Yes.
5 Q Do you have a high school diploma? 5 Q You're aware that you have served discovery
6 A Yes. 6  requests and GM has served discovery requests?
7 3 And do you have z college degree? 7 A Yes.
8 A Yes, associate. 8 Q And are you aware that GM has served document
3 Q Is that a two-year associate's degree? 9 requests and intcrrogatorics about you?
10:16 10 A Yes 10:18 10 A Yes.
' 11 Q Whatisitin? 11 Q Whotold you this?
12 A Coinputers. 12 A Myattomey.
i3 Q Can you be any more specific than that? 13 MR. SPIRQ: Move to stiike, attomnecy-client.
14 A Information technology. 14 Soif your answers — if the question - if.
i5 Q Have you been — doyoucomdayoutselfan 1S  your answers to the question, La Ronda, would require
16 expert inanything? 16 you to say something aboit communications between you
i7 A No. 17 . and your lawyers, thenmyso,andyoudon‘thave to
18 Q Doymhavemnytrainingorexperimeein 18  answerthat.
19 engineering? : is THE WITNESS: Okay.
10:17 20 ‘MR SPIRO: Coumsel, excuse me, I should have | 10:18 20 BY MS. GUZMAN:
21 objected to the question about expert as vague, calls S 21 Q Amywawarcthatyuuhavcpmwdedwnttm
22  for alegal conclusion, soI moveto stnlu: the . 22  responses to GM's dociiment requests and
23  answer. 23  interrogatories?
24 MS. GUZMAN: Okay. Your ob_;ecuonsnoted. 24 A Yes.
25 I'm going to still ask the question. 25 Q Did you draft these responses?
Page 13 Page 15
k| Q Do you consider yourself an expert in 1 MR. SPIR(: Vague
2  anything? 2 THE WITNESS: Vague.
3 A No 3 BY MS. GUZMAN:
4 Q Doyouhaveanyuauungorexpmmm 4 Q Dxdyoudraﬁﬁaer&ponsmﬂmtyou
5 engineering? 5  submitied to GM's document requests and
6 A No. 6  interrogatories?
7 Q Do you have any training or expericnce in 7 MR, SPIROQ: Vague and compound, actually.
8 automotive repair or work? 8 BY MS. GUZMAN:
s 9 A No. 9 Q. Ms. Hunter, did you draft your responses to
130:17 106 Q Do youhave any training or experiencein | 10:19 10  GM's document requests?
11 automotive sales, leasing, rental? 11 MR. SPIRO: Vague and componnd -- yeah,
12 A No. 12 vague. :
13 Q Do you have any training or experience at all 13 BYMS. GUZMAN:
14 in the automotive industry? 1z Q Youcan answer.
15 A No. 15 MR. SPIRO: I you know.
16 Q Do you have any training or experience in 16 THE WITNESS: You said that I did what?
17 insurance? 17 BYMS. GUZMAN:
1B A No. 18 Q Did vou drafl your answers to GM's document
19 Q Doyouhaveanyuamngorexpenencem 19  request?
$10:17 20 advertising? 10:19: 20 A That's attomey-client privilege.
21 A No. 21 MR_ SPIRO: Counsel, the problem is the word
22 Q Do you have any training or expmence m 23 “draft”
23  drafting warranties? 23 BY MS. GUZMAN:
24 A No. . 24 Q Did you write the answers to GM's document
25 Q Do you know what discovery is? 25  requests?
Page 14 Page 16

4 (Pages 13 to 16)

SARNOFF COl.lRT REPORTERS AND LEGAL TECHNOLOG!ES
877.955.3855
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1 MR SPIRO: Still vague. 1 are~ actuaily are typed.
2 THE WITNESS: Privileged. 2 Q Do you know who did?
3  BY MS. GUZMAN: 3 A No, Idont. L
4 Q Did you see your responses to GM's document 4 Q Youdonothmwwhomotcthcresponseslo
5 reguests? S  GM's document requests?
6 A Yes 6 MR. SPIRO: She answeted that Don't harass
7 Q Ms. Hunter, what is your answer to my 7  the witness. She answered your question. She said
8 question, "Did you draft the written responses to GM's 8  no
9  document requests™? 9 MS. GUZMAN: Make your objection, if you
16:20 10 MR. SPIRO: Vague. 10:21 10 wonld like, but Y would still like an answer to the
11 It is asked and answered — askex and 11 question
12 responded to three times. The question is vague, it's 12 MR. SPIRO: No, she's not going to answer it
13 also compound. It's not a fair question. 13 twice. She answered.
14 BYMS. GUZMAN: 14 MS. GUZMAN: Are you instructing her not to
15 Q Do yon need me to ask the question again or 15  answer the question?
16 canyoun answer? 16 MR. SPIRO: Yes, yes —
17 A TI'mnot going to answer. 17 THE REPORTER: I can only get one person.
18 Q Whynot? 18 This won't be on the record. _
19 A  Because the same — because I've already i9 MS. GUZMAN: Are you instructing the witness
10:20 20 answered once. You asked me three times. 10:22 20 potto answer.
21 Q What is your answer? 21 MR. SPIRO: Yﬁ;,becauseyou'reharassmg.
22 MR SPIRQ: No, she's — what do youmean 22 (Instruction not to answer.)
23  what is heranswes? She's already answered three 23  BY MS. GUZMAN:
24  times. 24 Q Ms. Hunter, did you type the wsponses to
25 MS GUZMAN: Are you instructing her not to 25 GM's interrogatories?
Page 17 . Page 19
1 answer? 1 A No.
2 MR_ SPIRO: No, I'm objecting. I don't know 2 Q Doyou lmowwho did?
3 - what your question is. She's answered three times. -3 A No.
4. Which one are you talking about? 4 Q Did you see the responses to GM's document
© 5 MS. GUZMAN: I would like her clear answer as 5  requesis?
6  to whether she's drafied the written responses to GM's ] A Which document request? Are you talking
7 document request. ' 7 about the discovery? '
8 MR. SPIRO: That's impossible for — 8 Q Yes, the document requests about you.
9 MS. GUZMAN: That's a yes-0r-no answer. 9 A Yes,Isee--yes, Isawthem -
10:21 10 MR. SPIRO: No, it isn't, because I don't 10:22 10 Q Who showed those to you?
11 know what you mean by the word "draft” and neither 11 A My attomey.
12 does she. 12 Q When did yon see them?
13 BY MS. GUZMAN: 13 A When they were first produced.
14 Q  Mrs. Hunter, what do yon think I mean by the 14 Q  Did you review those written responses and
15 word "draft"? 15 checkto see that they were accurate?
16 A Youhaveto explain it i6 A Yes.
17 Q By"dmaft," I mean write. Did yon write the 17 Q Did you edit or correct anything in them?
18 zesponses — 18 A I-
18 MR. SPIRO: It is still unclear. You mean _ 19 MR. SPIRO: Vague - vague and compound.
10:21 20 with her own hand or what? 10:23 20 THE WITNESS: How could I edit and correct
21 BY MS. GUZMAN: ' 21  something when they were typed?
22 Q Yes, I mean with your own hand. Did you 22 BY MS. GUZMAN:
23 write with your own hand the responses to GM's 23 Q Dldyouaskymn'attomeytochangemyﬂimg
24  document requesis? 24 in those responses before they were submitted?
25 A 1did not write any answers. The answers 25

Page 18
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6 (Pages 21 to 24)

1 Don't answer. 1 MR. SPIRO: Vague.
2 {Instruction not fo answer.) 2  BYMS. GUZMAN: '
3 BY MS. GUZMAN: 3 Q Have you seen it before?
4 Q Did you see the responses to GM's 4 A Yes. '
5  interrogatories? 5 Q What is this?
6 A Tome, yes. 6 A Plaintiff La Ronda Hunter Responses to Form
7 Q When did you see those? 7  Interrogatories Set One.
8 A When they were first produced, 8 Q Did you review this form interrogatory
9 Q Did you review the responses to GM's 9  response completely before you authorized your
10:23 10 interrogatories and check to see that they were 10:26 10 atiorney to submit it?
11  accurate? i1 A Yes.
12 A Yes. 12 Q And can you verify that the answers i this
13 '@ Did you authorize your attorney to file those 13  form interrogatory are complete and correct?
14  responses to interrogatories? 14 MR. SPIRO: Compound, vague as to the word
15 MR. SPIRO: Attomey-client. 15 “verify." And it is grossly corapound.
16 Don't answer, 16 Go ahead. You can answer, if you can. -
‘17  (Instruction not to answer.) 17 BYMS.GUZMAN:
18 BY MS. GUZMAN: 18 Q Ms. Hunter, can you turn to the third-fo-the-
19 Q Do you think that — I'm sorry, strike that. 19 lastpage of this document. Is this your signature
10:24 20 As a class representative, do you think that 10:26 20 that appears on this page ~ oh, Fm sorry, you're not
21  you have an obligation to review interrogatory 21  thereyet .
22 responses to make sure they are accurate before they 22 Is this your signature that appears on this
23 gare filed with the court? : ' 23  page?
24 MR. SPIRO: Compound, calls for alegal 24 A Yes.
25 conclusion 25 Q Did you sign the statement verifying that
Page 21 Page 23
1 Go ahead. 1 your answers are true and correct?
2 They are not filed with the court, Counsel. 2 A Yos.
3  That's misieading the witness. 3 Q And are the responses contained in your
4 MS. GUZMAN: Tl rephrase. 4  responses to GM's form interrogatories still complete
5 Q  As aclass representative, do you think that 5  and comrect?
&  you have an obligation to review interrogatory & A Yes.
7 responses to make sure that they are accurate before 7 ‘MR, SPIRO: I move to strike. It misstated
B  they are submitted in litigation? 8  the verification and her previous testimony. She
9 A Yes. 9  didn't say anything about complete, nor does the
10:24 10 MR. SPIRO: That's compound. 10:27 10 ° verification.
' 11 Go ahead — ckay. 11 BYMS. GUZMAN:
12 BY MS. GUZMAN: 1z Q Ms. Hunter, are your answers to these form
13 Q Ms. Hunter, I'm banding you your responses to 13  intemogatories complete?
14 GRMS form interrogatories, which will be marked as 14 A Yes.
15 Deposition -- somy, Defendants’ Exhibit 1. 15 MR. SPIRQ: Move to strike. The question was
16 {Deposition Exhibit 1 marked.) 16 compoumd, extremely,
17 BY MS. GUZMAN; 17 BYMS. GUZMAN:
18 Q Do you recognize this document? 18 Q Ms. Hunter, I'm going to hand you another
: 19 A Yes, Ido. 19 document marked as Deposition Exhibit 2.
{10:25 20 Q How do you recognize it? 10:28. 20 (Deposition Exhibit 2 marked )
: 21 MR. SPIRO: Vague. 21 BYMS. GUZMAN:
22 BY MS. GUZMAN: : 22 Q Do you recognize this document?
23 Q How do you recognize it, Ms. Hunter? 23 A Yes,]do
28 A Itis sitting in front of me. 24 Q Whatis it?
25 Q How do you know what it is? 25 A LaRonda Hunter responses to defendant first. -
Page 22 Page 24
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Page 26

1 setof interrogatories, set one. 1 BYMS. GUZMAN:
2 | Q Isthisatrwe and accurate copy of your 2 Q You can answer.
3 sesponses? "3 A Can I tell yon the answers acourate? They
4 MR. SPIRO: Do you want — how would she 4  arethe same answers that I gave, They arc the exact
5 know? 5 sameanswers.
6 MS. GUZMAN: Well, she can review it 6 Q So they are still true?
7 MR. SPIRO: Okay. Review it page by page, 7 A Yes.
8  then, if you need to. As much as you need to do to 8 Q- And are these responses still complete?
9  answer this question, or maybe we can stipulate to 9 A Yes.
10:28 10 that onceIlookatit, 10:32 10 MR. SPIRO: Compotmd,faclsnotmemdmce.
11 1 think these are not complete. The third- 11 BYMS. GUZMAN:
12 to-the-lnst papge, I guess, or fourth-to-the-last says 12 Q I'msorry, your answer was "Yes"?
13 pages7 of 8. Now, maybe these are configured wrong, 13 A (No audible response.)
14  Dutit gives me some reason to think they are not. I 12 Q Ms. Humier, I'm banding you a copy of your
15 conld check my own and see. 15  responses to defendants’ request for production. It
- 18 My own copy has the same, 7 of 8. 16 s being marked as Depositior Exhibit Number 3.
17 Do you want me to say anything about whether 17 {Deposition Exhibit 3 marked.)
18 they are complete? 18 PBYMS. GUZMAN:
19 MS. GUZMAN: Ordylfyouneedtoforyow 1% Q Do you recognize this docenent?
10:31 20 client to answer. 10:33 20 A Yes. ~
21 THE WITNESS: Ihopeymwoukh:‘lgtvemany 21 Q What is at?
22 incomplete documents. - 22 A Plaintiff's La Ronda Hunter's responses to
‘23  BY MS. GUZMAN: 23 defendant brst set of request of production of
24 Q l’stheteanymsonyouﬂmﬂcﬂus:sno:a 24  documents.
25 true and accurate copy of your responses 1o 25  Q Is this a true and accurate copy of your
Pagae 25 Page 27
1 defendants’ first set of interrogatories? 1  discovery responses?
2 A No. 2 A Yes.
3 Q Did you review these responses completely 3 Q Did you review these responses completely
4 before you authorized your attorney to submit them? 4 before you authorized your attorney to submit them?
5 A Yes, ] verified my responses. 5 A Yes.
6 Q [I'm sonry, Ms. Hunter, my question was 6 Q Did you sign the verification page at the
7  slightly different. 1t was did you review these 7 end? ’
8  responses before you authorized your attomey to file B A Yes.
9  them - ot, sotry, to submit them? 9 Q Did you verify that your answers are true?
10:31 10 A DidIreview them? 10:34 10 A Yes,1did. Ireviewed them, read them,
11 Q Did you review them, did you read them? 11 signed the verification and rned them over.
12 A What do you mean by ~ yes, I read them. 12 Q Are your responses still complete?
13 Q TI'm going to ask you again to turn to the 13 MR. SPIRO: Vague, comapound.
14 - third-to-the-last page. Is that your signature on’ 14 THE WITNESS: Vague, compound.
15 this page? 15 BY MS. GUZMAN:
16 A Yes. 16 Q 1need you to still answer my question,
17 Q And did you vexify that the responses are 17 Ms. Hunter.
i8 true? 18 A You said ~-
. 19 A Yes, Idid _ 19 Q Are the responses contained in this document
10:32 20 Q Are these responses stili accurate? '10:34 20 skl complete? .
' 21 MR. SPIRO: Compound. 21 A The answers are the same. 'Iheyarethesame
22 BY MS. GUZMAN: 22  as it was when I submitted them 8/27/28 — 2008.
23 Q Ms. Huater, can yon tell me whether the 23 Q When you submitted them on 8/27/2008, were
24 responses ave still accurate? 24 they complete answers to the questions? '
25 MR. SPIRO: Compound. 25 A Yes.
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1 Q And they still are? 1 Q Isthat a dealership?
2 A Yes 2 A They were working with the postal employees,
3 Q Ms. Hunter, can you tell me the make, model 3 so,no, itis not, actually, a dealership,
4  and year of your vehicle? 4 Q Did yon buy it through work?
5 A GMC Yukon, 2001. 5 A Yes.
6 Q Do you know the vehicle identification 6 Q Can you explain to me how that works?
7  mumber? 7 A They teamed up with postal credit union
8 A No. 8 and-
9 Q I'm poing to refer you to your response to 9 Q Who teamed up with —
10:35 10 inferrogatory number 1. 10:37 10 A Justice Auto.
11 MFE. SPIRC: Which set? 11 Q Justice Auto teamed up with the postal credit
12 MS. GUZMAN: The regular interrogatories, not 12  upion?
13  the form interrogatonies. 13 A Ub-huh
14 MR. SPIRO: Exhibit 27 14 Q And they make vehicles available for purchase
15 MS. GUZMAN: Yes. 15 by the eviployees ~
18 MR, SPIRO: That's 2. 16 A Yes,
17 THE WITNESS: My arm hurt. I can barely put 17 Q -of-
18 my coat on, onthe arm. 18 Do they give any special deals on the cars?
19 BYMS. GUZMAN: 19 A No, not that I know of, no.
{10:35 20 = Q Onpage5 of this document, your responseto | 10:38 26 Q Sohow did you buy the car? Didyougo toa
21  interrogatory mwnber I, you state that your vehicle 21 dealership or did you order it somehow?
22 identification nwmber is 1GKEC13T71J201855,  _ 22 A Tknew that I wanted a Yukon, a GMC Yukon, so
23 -Is that correct? 23 1 basically told them what I wanted and they went and
22 A Yes : 24  found itand they brought it back.
25 Q Are you the registered owner of your vehicle? 25 Q Who did you tell what you wanted?
Page 29 Page 31
1 A Yes. - 1 A Justice Auto.
2 Q Are you the principal driver of the 2001 GMC 2 @ And when you say they went and found it and
3 Yukon? ' 3 brought it back, what do you mean?
4 A Yes 4 A They went — I told them I wanted a white GMC
5 Q Docs anyone other than you drive the vehicle? 5  Yukon, and they went and got a white GMC Yukon and let
] A No. 6 melookatit And they said, "Is this what you
7 Q 'What purpose do you use the car for, mainly? T want? Isaid "Yes," and I purchased it.
& A Before I'retired, I was using it to go back 8 Q Where did they bring it?
2  and forth to work 9 A To Justice Auto.
10:36 10 Q Now what do you use it for? 10:38 10 Q Where is Justice Anto located?
11 A Iéssitting in the drivoway because the 11 A InCarson, Califomia.
12 . parking brake is to the floor and it's — 12 Q Tm soty, just for the sake of the court
13 Q Soyoudon't use it for anything now? 13 reporter, let me finish my question and then give your
14 A (No audible response.) 14  apswer and I'l do the same and not interrupt you so
15 Q You still own the 2001 Yukon? 15 she can take us both down separately.
16 A Yes. : 16 Where is Justice Auto located?
17 Q How did you come t& purchase your 2001 Yukon? 17 A Carson, California.
1e A How did I come to purchase it? 18 Q Thank you.
19 Q Ubhuh 19 Did you buy the car new?
110:37 20 A Ineeded a new car and I went and looked for 110:39 20 A Ttwasademo and it had 1,800 mileson it.
21 one. Iseenitand Iliked it. 21 Q What do you mean it was a demo?
22 Q Where did you see jt? 22 A Twas—it was-- oneofthosemthat
23 A Justice Auto, 23 youshow.
24 Q What'sthat? 24 Q That Justice Anio showed?
25 © A Justicc Auto. 25 A Idon'thavenoidea. Iknow it wasademo.
) Page 30 Page 32
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Page 34

1 Q How do you know it was a demo? 1 BYMS. GUZMAN:
2 A Because they told me. b Q As far as you know —
3 Q Justice Auto told you it was a demo? 3 MR. SPIRO: Objection, not a motion to
4 A Yes. 4  strike. Somry.
5 Q Did they explain what they meant by that? 5 BY MS. GUZMAN:
6 A No, they didn*t have to explain a demo. A 6 Q Do yon need me to repeat the question,
7 demo is something that a dealership demo, a floor 7  Ms. Hunter?
8 demo. 8 A Whatisit?
9 Q Ms. Hunter, when did you buy this car? 9 Q As far as you know, the price of your car was
10:40 10 . A When did I buy the car? In 2002. 10:43 10 uncomnected to the fact that it was a demo?
11 Q Do you know when in 20027 11 A Idon'tknow. Ican't— I don't know.
12 A January -- o Yanuary of 2002 or 2001. I 12 Q@ Okay. Do youknow the relationship between
13  don't know. Idon't know the exact year. 13 Justice Auto and GM?
14 Q And you bought it at Justice Auto? 14 A No
15 A Yes ’ 15 Q How did yon know that you wanted a 2001 GMC
16 Q Wasit alease or a purchase? 16 Yukon?-
17 A  Purchase. 17 A Because Iseenit and I liked it
18 Q What was the purchase price? s Q %ercdldyouﬁ:stsee:t?
19 A 33,000 19 A OnTV.
10:41 20 Q How was it financed? 10:43 20 @ When was that?
21 A Through Priority One Credit Union. 21 A When they first came out,
22 Q D1dyouhavemonthlypaymentsonthecar 22  Q Canyou giveme that date?
23 after that? 23 A’ 1don't know the exact date they first came
24 A Yes. 24 out
25 Q For how many years? 25 Q Do you know the month?
Page 33 Page 35
1 A Five 1 A Idon't --1I don't know.
2 Q Doyuummmbc;whatyourmnthlypannmts 2 Q Do you know the year?
3 were? 3 A Ttwas 2000 — 2000 when I first seen them
4 A Yes, 4 Q After you saw it on the TV advertisement,
5 Q How much was your monthly payment? 5  where did you next see it?
6 A 579, orsomething likethat 579. It might 6 A Where did I next — on the road.
7  have been six years. 7 Q What do youmean by "on theroad"? Other
B Q Whatis the car's mileage today? 8  people driving?
9 A 91,000 miles. 9 A Yes.
10:42 10. Q Havey:mbeenmauyaocldcntsmmyourzom 10:44 i0 Q D:dyoucons:deranyoﬂxerwsﬁmntbcmﬂl
11 Yukon? 11 Yukon?
12 A No. 12 A No.
13 Q Did yon get a special deal because your car 13 . Q When you wentto purchase the 2001 Yukon,
14 was a demo? 14  what did you know about it?
15 A No,Idon't know. 15 A Nothing. Ijust knew it was a car, you can
16 Q You don't know whether you got a different 16 driveit
17 price because your car was a demo? 17 Q Did you do any research or investigation on
18 MR_ SPIRQ: That's vague. 18 the 2001 Yukon before you purchased it?
i 19 THE WITNESS: They told me the price of the .19 A No.
120:42 20 car, and that's what | purchased it for. 10:45 20 Q What did you see or hear about this
' 21 BYMS. GUZMAN: 21 particular model on the TV?
22 Q Soas far as you know, the price of the car 22 A Actually, I didn't hear anything. I just -
23 was unconnected to the fact that it was a demo? : 23  seepitand I liked it
24 MR. SPIRO: Move to strike. Mischaracterized 24 Q Whaidndywlikcabout it?
25  hertestimony. It is also vagus. 25 A Spacious.
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1 Q Anything else? 1 Q When you reviewed it, did you make sure
2 A No. 2 everything in it was true and cormect?
3 Q Other than that TV advertiscment, had you 3 A Yes L
4  seen any other advertisements before buying your 2001 4 Q In pamagraph 58 you state, "At all times
5 Yukon? 5  relevant, and for many years prior, GM widely -
6 A No. 6  disseminated in its nationally advertising campaign
1 Q And the TV advertiserent you saw was for the 7  pumerous and repeated representations stressing the
8 2001 Yukon specifically? 8  quality, safety and performance of their products,
9 A No. Itwasa GMadverhsement of all the 9 including the subject vehicles. During the class
10:46 10  trucks. 10:50 10 - period GM made the following representations in its
11 Q Did you hear any statements about the car 11 advertising by television, radio, print and Internct."
12 during that advertisement? 12 MR. SPIRQO: Counsel, could you tell us what
13 A No. 13  page that's on?
14 Q What were your primary considerations in 14 MS. GUZMAN: Page 24, paragraph 58.
15 purchasing your Yokon? 15 THE WITNESS: Because I do't know what 58
16 A Primary considerations, like what? What are 16 is.
17 you talking about? What do you mean by "primary 17 MR. SPIRO: Paragraph 58, apparently it
18 considerations"? 18  starts at page 24. There it is. Page 24, starts at
; 19 Q Whatwemﬂ:emammsonsyuubmgbttbe 19 linc-— well, between lines 18 and 19.
|10:47 20 2001 Yulon? 10:51 20 THE WITNESS: I'm Iooking and going to 28.
: 21 A Spacious. ' 21 BY MS. GUZMAN:
22  Q Did the price matter to you? 3 22 Q Tl repeat the beginning of my guestion.
23 A Ofcourseitdid Ican‘tbuysomethmgl 23 In paragraph 58 you state, ™At all fimes
24 can'tafford. 24 relevant, and for many years prior, GM widely
25 Q Well, what other than it5 spaciousness and 25 disservinated in its national advertising carnpaign
Page 37 ' Page 39
1 s price mattered to you? 1  oumerous and repeated representations stressing the
2 A Tjustlike the car and I purchased i, and ¥ 2  quality, safety and performance of their products,
3  know I could afford it. 3  including the subject vehicles. During the class -
4 MS. GUZMAN: Ms. Htmter T'm handing you a 4  period GM made the following representations in its
5  copy of the fourth amended complaint. It is being S  advertising by television, radio, print and Intexnet.”
€ marked as Exhibit 4. 6 Can you tell me where you saw or heard each
7 (Deposition Exhibit 4 marked.) 7 of the statements listed after that in the bullet
8 BY MS. GUZMAN: 8  points?
3 9 Q Do you recognize this docoment? 9 MR_SPIRO: Compound. |
10:48 10 A Yes 10:52 10 BYMS. GUZMAN:
11 Q Whatisit? 11 Q Tl rephrase, Ms. Hunter. Let's take the
12 A Fourth Amended Complaint for Violation of 12 first statement by the bullet point that says -
13  Califomia's Consumer Legal Remedies Act, CLRA, and 13 “Professional Brake Engineering.”
14 Violation of California's Unfair Competition Act. 14 Do yousee where I am?
15 THE REPORTER: Make sure your coat isn't on 15 A Yezh
16 the microphone. Thank you. 16 Q Did you ever personally see or hear that
17 MR. SPIRO: Do you want to put it on, the 17 statement?
18  coat? 18 A Tmquite sure | did.
_ 19 THE WITNESS: I'mgomgtobebat. I forgot 19 Q Do you know when?
110:48 20 1o bring the sleeve thing. 10:52, 20 A IfhadtobemZ{)OOdunngtheconnnercxals
21 BY MS. GUZMAN: ' 21 Q Can yon be any more specific than 20007
22 Q Ms. Husster, did you review this fourth . 22 A No,fcan't
23  amended compiaint before you anthorized your attomney 23 Q On what occasion did you hear this staternent?
24 tofileit? 24 A Idon't know. I don't know.
25 A Yes. 25  (Q Wasitatelevision, radio, print or Internet
Page 3B Page 40
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Page 42

1 ad? 1 THE WITNESS: I'm on page 25, the last one.
2 A Istated before Iseeniton TV. 2 MR. SPIRO: You can po backwards, if you
3 Q Where were you when you saw the statement on 3 want, but — but you have to go one by one, otherwise
4 TV 4 it is unfair to vy and answer.
5 A Home. 5 ‘What I mean is —
6 Q Let's take the next statement. “"We are 6 MS. GUZMAN:; Mr. Spiro, I'm sorry, 1fyuu
7  professional grade - it's not a promotion, its a 7 bave an objection, you can make it, but I would like
8 promise.” 8  the witness to answer my question as I've asked it
9 Did you personally hear or see this 9 MR. SPIRQ: Well, then, she's not going to
10:53 10 statement? 10:56 10 answerit
11 A Asstated, the answer is the same as the 11 MS. GUZMAN: Are you instracting her pot to
12  answer I gave before. 12 answer?
13 Q Ms. Hunter, I'n going to need you to answer - i3 MR. SPIRO: Yes. She's poing to answer it
14 the questions for each statement for the record. So 14 oncbyoneornotatall
15 did you personally see or hear the statement "We are 15 MS. GUZMAN: On what basis are you
16 professional grade - it's not a promotion, it's a 16 instructing her —
17 promise"? ' 17 MR SPIRO: Compound and i¢s harassing. You
18 A Tmquitcsurel didsceitina TV 18 cn'tiry and get 2 witness to answer eight questions
19 commercial - 19 inoneanswer. Jtis more than eight, it is like 12,
10:54 20 Q How did you know you saw this statement? 10:56 20 Itisunfair, it is a trick,
: 21 A  Because they bad a commercial. 21 BY MS.GUZMAN:
22 Q Youknow the statcment was on the commercial? 22 Q Ms. Hmter, I'm asking you —
23 A TI'mnpotsure. Ican't remember xight now. 23 A Rtis135.
24 Q This is the same commercial that you were 24 MR. SPIRO: So answer — look at the next
25 talking about before? 25  one, which is this one, and then answer.
Page 41 Page 43
1 A Yes. 1 'MS. GUZMAN: Mr. Spiro, state your objection,
2 Q Is there — there's only one TV commercial 2  if necessary, otherwise, let your witness try to
3 that you saw about the 2001 Yukon? 3 - answer my question.
4 A Ye. 4 MR. SPIRO: Iam,bmlmstmc:edhermhow
5 Q 'What about the next statcrnent, "Safety - 5 toanswer, and I am entitled to do that becanse your
6  designed to protect,” did you personally see or hear 6  questionis a trick question.
7  that statenent? 7 MS. GUZMAN: You're not entitled to be able
8 A Idon't recall. 8 to mstruct her how o answer a question.
: 9  Q Whatabout the rest of these statements in 5 MR. SPIRO: In the manner — yes, I am in
110:55 10 paragraph 58, the bullet points? 10:57 10 this situation where you're asking her a trick
11 MR. SPIRO: Siill compound. 11  question. Or else not, you take your choice.
12 BY MS. GUZMAN: f 12 BY MS.GUZMAN:
13 Q Can you tell me whether you personally saw or i3 Q Ms, Hunter, amtha-eanystatmmlsm
14  heard any of these statements in paragraph 587 . 14 pamgraphSSthatyoulmow you personaily saw or
5 MR. SPIRO: Compound. Ob, gosh, there's a 15
16 dozen ofthem Compound. 16 MR.SP]RO. Go one by one, please.
17 If you are going to do that, go one by one. - 37 Look at each one and answer.
is THE WITNESS: Do what? I didn't rmake the 18 THE WITNESS: Well, I've already answered the
.' 19 commercial, so - I was only — my only thing was — 19 question basically for all of them. And, just like I
10:55 20 MR SPIRO: No, holdon: Pmnot askingyou |10:57 20  said, 'mnot trying to make the commercial with GM or
; 21 questions, so you don't answer my questions. Tmjust 21 memorize anything that they said or done. 1liked the
22 te!hngyw,ﬁyouaregomgtoanswahe:qnmuon, 22  tuckand that's why I purchased it.
23  goonebyone. 23 BY MS. GUZMAN:
24 So you left off at page 24, the previous, 24 Q So you don't know whether you personally saw
25 you'renotonit 25  orheard any of these specific statements listed in
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1  paragraph 58 of your complaint? 1 Q What was the answer you stated before?
2 MR SPIRO: Mischaracterizes bier testimony 2 MR. SPIRO: No, she's not poing to repeat her
3  and is extremely compound. Itlsaskmghcrabwt 3 answer. You can lookat the record if you want.
4 18- 4 MS. GUZMAN: Are you instructing hex not to
5 BYMS. GUZMAN: 5  answer?
6 Q Go zhead and answer - 6 MR. SPIRO: Yes. You're harassing her trying
7 MR. $PIRO: Hold on. Don't intetrupt my 7 to get her to answer what she answered before.
8  objection. 8 . (Instruction not to answer.)
9 MS. GUZMAN: Ifymnnkcafonnobjecnon, 9 BYMS. GUZMAN:
10:58 10 that's a fine, but speaking objections are against the 11:00 10 Q Let's go one byone. Let's Jook atthe
11 rules. 11 fourth paragraph on the list in paragraph 58. Would
1z MR, SPIRO: Yeah, and I'm making a form 12  you read that statement o me, Ms, Hunter.
13 objection, it is cornpound and asking 18 questions. i3 A What page are you on? 25 or 24?
14 MS. GUZMAN: "Compound” will be sufficient, 14 Q 2 It:stheoncﬂmtbegmsmth
15 thankyou ' ' 15 "Recently."
16 MR. SPIRO: No, it is not sufficient. Iam 16 Wouldyoureadthestatemmt.
17 entitled to do more than say one word, Counsel. 17 A I'vealready readit.
18 BY MS. GUZMAN: 18 Q Youreright Ididn't specify. Thank you.
19 Q Ms. Hmter, do you need me to repeat the 19 SeIllread it out loud. _ '
10:58 20 question? 11:00 20 "Recently our achievements in safety were
21 ' A Yes, goahead. 21  recognized by a leading magazine, a leading insurance
22 Q Do you personally know whetheryousawor. 22 company and a one-year-old from South Carolina.”
23 heard any of the statements listed in paragraph 58 of 23 Did you personally see or hear this
" 24 your complaint? " 24 statement?
25 MR. SPIRO: All right. Compound, harassing 25 A [—1—1don't know. I don't know.
Page 45 Page 47
1  the witness because she's already answered it and - 1 . Q Doyou contend that it is false?
2 MS. GUZMAN: T will ask this question as many 2 MR. SPIRO: Don't answer that. She's not
3 times as I need to to get an answer. 3 required to answer about her contentions.
4 MR. SPIRO: Go ahead. You got an answer, 4  MS. GUZMAN: Are you instrocting her not to
5 Counsel. You gotan answer. She already answered 5 answer?
& your question. You're trying to get another answer, 6 MR. SPIRO: Yes.
7 so 'l keep objecting, and I'm not yet having her 7 (Instruction not to answez.)
8 stop —refuse to answer. So Tl complebe my 8 MS. GUZMAN: On what basis?
. 9 objection. 9 MR. SPIRO: Based on the Rifkind case and
110:59 10 It's compound, it's asked and answered, it's 11:01 10 other cases that followit
11 ‘harassing. She's already answered. And there are 18 11 BY MS. GUZMAN:
12 questions, and she's also answered specifically on 12 Q Ms. Hunter, I'd like fo move to the next
13  ihree of them, 13  statemnent, "Effective Safety Innovations” -
14 BYMS. GUZMAN: 14 MR. SPIRQ: Ttis harassing, I'msony, I
15 Q Do you need me to repeat the question, 15 need to explain that forther. It is harassing, it is
16 Ms. Huntet? 16 anunfair question.
17 MR. SPIRO: For the record, my objections 17 BY MS. GUZMAN:
18  will be the same. 18 Q Ms. Humter, is your answer going to be the
. 19 Go ahead, Counsel. 19  same for every statemnent in this Hst?
§10:59 20 BY MS. GUZMAN: 11:01. 20 A Yes
; 21 = Q Do youknow whether you personally saw or 21 Q Okay.
22 heard any of the statements listed in paragraph 58 of 22 MR. SPIRO: No — okay.
23  your complaint? 23 MS. GUZMAN: Take a break We're going to
‘24 A As]previousty stated before, the answer is 24 takea 10-minute break and then — and go off the
25 the same, and if is not going to change. 25 record.
Page 46 Page 48
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Page 50

1 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're going off the record i A No.
2 at 11:02. We arc off the record. 2 Q Knowing what you know now, would you have
3 {Recess.) 3  purchased any other vehicle than the Yukon you did
4 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are back on the record 4  purchase? -
5 atl1:29. 5 MR. SPIRO: Vapue, confusing,
6 BY MS. GUZMAN: 6 THE WITNESS: Explain it.
7 Q Ms. Hunter, how many different dealers did 7 BY MS. GUZMAN:
8 you visit before you purchased your Yukon? 8 Q Did you ask me to explain it?
9 A Tonly went 1o the credit union. 9 A  Ub-huh
i1:29 10 Q Did you go to Justice Auto? 11:31 10 Q Okay. Would you have purchased any other
11 A Yeslidd 11 wvehicle than the Yukon you bought, knowing what you
12 Q How many times did you visit Justice Auto? 12 imow now?
13 A Once 13. A In 2000 — you're asking me in 2001 wounld I
14 Q Did you speak with anyone there about 14  would kave purchased it if I knew what I knew now?
15 purchasing this car? 15 Q Yes.
16- A DidIspeak to anyone? Where? 16 A No
17 Q At Justice Auto. 17 Q Why not?
is A Yes. i8 A Whynot? Because their parking brake is
19 Q Do you recall any of your conversations? 19 unsafe.
11:29 20 A No. 11:31 20 Q Auny other reasons?
21 Q Do you know who you spoke with? 21 A No. .
22 A No,Ican't emember his name. . 22 Q What do you mean by "unsafe"?
23 Q Did you ask him any questions about the ' 23 A  What do I mean by "unsafe"?
24 parking brake? 24 Q Yes _
25 A Ne. 25 A The parking brakes are defective.
Page 49 Page 51
1 Q Doyoumnmlberanyoftheotlmquesuons 1 Q 'What do you mean by "defective”?
2 that you asked? 2 A They have to be replaced.
3 A No 3 Q Do you recall seeing amy documents before you
4 Q Do you remember if it was a male or female? 4  purchased your Yukon?
5 A Hhwasamale. 5 A No.
6 Q Did you ever talk to any other Yukon owner 6 Q Doyouremllsecmganydocmtswhﬂeyou
7  about the car? 7  purchased your Yukon?
8 A No. 8 A Any docoments of — what are you talking
9 Q Did you compare the Yukon with other vehicles 9 about? .
111:30 10 before buying it? 11:32 20 Q Did you have to sign any documents?
11 A No " 11 A Sign what kind of documnents?
12 Q Did you have a sense of GM's reputation 32 Q Any documents at all in order to purchase
13  before you bought your Yukon? : 13  your Yuken.
14 A Did I have a sense of reputation? 14 A Yes, Ihad to sign the loan documents.
15 MR. SPIRQ: Vague. 15 Q What are the law documents?
16 THE WITNESS: You want me ta answer? 16 A The loan documents.
17 BY MS.GUZMAN: 17 Q Oh, somry.
18 Q Ubhhuh 18 What are the lIoan documents?
: 19 A Did Ihave a sense of reputation? [knew 19 A They are documents agreeing to pay back the
411:3C 20 that they built good cars. : 111:33 20 moneyIborrowed - :
21 Q Did you have any prior experience with GM? 21 Q Did you sign any other documents?
22 A No. 22 A No. :
23 Q Have yon ever owned a GM car before? 23 Q Did you receive any other documents?
24 A No. 24 A Did I receive any documents from who?
25 Q Did you know the reputation of Justice Auto? 25 Q From the sales representative you spoke with
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1 at Justice Auto. 1 A No,Idon't.
2 A No. 2 Could you explain it?
3 Q Ms. Hunter, wouldyoutln'ntopage--lm 3 Q Did-
4  somry., ltis in the fourth amended complaint. 4 A Explain what GM's predclwexy inspection
5 MR. SPIRO: That's what's in front of you. 5  procedure — after they dida't deliver it.
© 6 BYMS. GUZMAN: 6 Q That's something you'l! probably have to talk
7 Q' On page 22, paragraph 56. Let me know when 7  to your counsel abont, Ms. Hunter. That was my
8 you're there 8 question for you. But since you don't kmow, I't move
9 A Pmhere. 9 ° oniomynext question.
11:34 10 Q At line 18 and contirming, you state, "GM 11:37 10 Can you please turmn to paragraph 50 of the
11 distributed thronghout its authorized dealer network 11  complaint.
12  and provided to all new and would-be new car 12 A What page?
13 purchasers product brochures mntmnmg the following 13 MR. SPIRO: What page is that?
14 representations.” 14 BY MS.GUZMAN:
15 Did you receive any product brochures? 15 Q Page 18, about line 23.
16 A I received the owner's manual with the car. 16 A Youmean between 23 and 24?
17 Q Aunything else? 17 Q Yes
18 A No. 18 A Number 50.
_ 13 Q Youneverrecmvedorsawanybmchmm 19 Q Yes
11:34 20 containing the representations ccntamedmparagraph 11:37 20 A “Inaccordmce with GM's 'Completely
21 567 21 Satisfied - New Vehicle Delivery Systen’ procedure,
22 A No. 22  each of the subject vehicles that were purchased new
23 Q Now if you could tumn to pa:agraph 47. Tris 23 ' from one dealer within GM's authorized dealer network
24 onpage 17atline21. 24  were required to be 'inspected, explained and
25 Let me know when you're there, please. 25 demonstra
Page 53 ) Page 55
1 A Tmhere 1 Q Onwhat do you base this allegation in
2 Q And paragraph 47 —~ 2  paragraph 507
3 MR_SPIRO: Oh, Pm sorry, 1 tumed to.the 3 MR. SPIRQ: You don't have to answer that.
4  wrong page: Excuse me. Okay. Thaok you. 4 Don‘t answer.
5 BYMS. GUZMAN: ' 5 S. GUZMAN: Are you msuucungywmm
6 Q Tn paragraph 47 at the second sentence I'll 6 notto answm'?
7 ‘begin. Youstate, "GM's predelivery and inspection 7 MR. SPIRO: Let me think about that.
8  procedure requires its authorized dealers to 8 1 abject that it is compound, and the
9  thoroughly test and inspect each of the subject 9  “you" is confusing becanse she didn't write the
11:35 10 vehicles before they were delivered to plaintiffs and 11:38 10 complaint, but I'{l let her answer.
' - 11 others similarly situated. After the vehicle is 11  BY MS.GUZMAN:
12 {ested and inspected, according to GM's protocol and 12 Q Goahead.
13 procedure, a GM authorized predelivery inspection form 13 A Okay. "In accordance with GM's ‘Completely
14 s filled out affirmatively checking each box that the - 14 Satisfied - New Vehicle Delivery Systen’ procedure,
15 vehicle has been tested, inspected, and is in working 15 each of the subject vehicles that were purchased new
16 order” : ' 16 from ope dealer within GM's authorized dealer netwark
17 What document are you referring to when yon 17 were required to be inspected, explained and
18  say "predefivery inspection form"? 18 demonstrated.™
19 MR_SPIRO: 1 object, the use of the phrase 19 The dealer didn't explain, did not
{11:36 20 ‘*you," she didn't write this complaint. It misstates 11:38. 20 demonsiraie, and it is unknown if it was inspected.
21 the evidence and if's confusing. 21 Q Did oot what?
22 THE WITNESS: No, becanse I don't know. 22 A This is within GM's authorized dealer
23 BY MS. GUZMAN: 23 npetwork
24 Q You don't know what & predelivery inspection 24 Q Are you saying that the —
25 formis? 25 A Idon't know who their authorized dealer
Page 54 Page 56
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1 rwork is. 1  representations,” and then you list some
2 ) What about the dealer that you visited, did 2  representations.
3  they explain and demonstrate the features and controls 32 Do you think that any of the instructions in
4  toyou? : 4 the owner's magual are false?
5 A No, they didn't. 5 MR_SPIRO: Don't— vague, compound.
6  Q Doyouknow whether they inspected them? 6 If you're going to answer that, go one by
7 A No,Idon't. 7 . one, look at each one, give an answer to each one.
8 Q In parapgraph 51, the very next paragraph, you 8 And I mean each paragraph. Read it to
: 8  state that "The GM ‘New Delivery Vehicle System’ 9  yourself, out loud, whatever you want, and then answer
11:39 10 procedure requires that the GM authorized sales 11:43 10 thequestion.
11  representative complete a GM authorized form.” 11 This is really a harassing question. This
12 Do you know what form that refers to? 12  thing poes on for two pages.
13 A No. 13 THE WITNESS: Three — one, two, three —
14 Q Didyou receive any form from the GM 14 MR_SPIRO: You're right.
15  amthorized sales representative? is5 - THE WITNESS: - almost four,
16 A No. 16 MR. SPIRO: Wow, I think it is like three,
17 Q Ms. Hunter, I'm handing you what's been 17 but, anyway.
18 previously Bates-labeled as GM HUNTER 2998 ending at 18 So start with the first — . '
19 page GM HUNTER 3416. And I'm going to mark it as 19 THE WITNESS: I't not an auto mechanic, so I
. {11:40 20 Deposition Exhibit — what number are we at now? 11:43 20 don'tknow nothing about a brake, -
' 21 THE REPORTER: 5. : 21 MR. SPIRO: Well, there's —
22 THE WITNESS: 5. - 22 THE WITNESS: So what — what are you looking
23 MS. GUZMAN: Thank you. 23 for? What do you want me to tell you? 1 can read you
24 {Deposition Exhibit 5 marked.} 24  all of what the owner's mannal say?
25 BY MS. GUZMAN: 25 BY MS. GUZMAN:
Paga 57 ' Page 59
1 3 Do you recognize Deposition Exhibit 57 1 Q Do you need to have the question repeated?
2 A Yes ' ' 2 A Yes, go ahead.
3  Q Whatisit? 3 MS. GUZMAN: Court reporter, will you please
4 A Owner's manual. 4 read back the guestion. )
5 Q Did you receive a copy of the owner's manual? 5 - (Record read as follows:
6 A Yes : 6 "Q Do you think that any of
7 Q When did you receive this copy -- a copy of 7 the instructions in the owner's
8  the owner's mamal? 8 manval are false?)
9 A It was with the purchase of the vehicle. 9 MR_SPIRO: Well, I also object to that, but
11:41 10 Q Did you receive it before or after you §11:44 10 there's nothing to show there are any instructions in
‘ 11 purchased the car? _ 11 this. It says "representations.” Misquoting the
12 A DidIreceive it before or after? It had to 12 evidence, Counsel
13 ’beafier I gave them the check for the car that I i3 THE WITNESS: That's not, parking brake to
14 realized I had the owner's manual with the car. 14  set the parking brake — okay.
15 @ Did you read it? i5 MR. SPIRO: Lz Ronda, please, I want you to
18 A No _ 16 pgoomebyone. Maybe you are. Are you on the first
17 Q Did the owner’s manual affect your decision 17 paragraph there?
18  to purchase the car? 18 THE WFTNESS: Ub-hub.
_ 19 A No. ' .18 MR. SPIRO: All right.
]11:41 20 Q TImpoingtoaskyoutotuntopage 19of = |11:44 20 THE WITNESS: She asked me is there anything
: 21  the fourth amended complaint. In paragraph 54 between 21 false—
22 lines 17 and 18 you state, "The GM owner's manual that . 22 MR. SPIRO: Right.
23  was specifically mentioned in GM's predelivery 23 THE WITNESS: About the — in the owner's
24 inspection procedure and that came with each of the 24  maoual ~
25  subject vehicles at issue makes the following 25 MR. SPIRO: No.
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1 THE WIINESS: — or in the instructions. 1 MR SPIRO: — I'm sorry, even though she
2 MS. GUZMAN: Coumnsel, I'm gomg fo ask you 2 said that, you are asking a trick question. I want
3 again, for the record, to please state your objections 3 youwo tell her which ones you're referring to. If
4 and refrain from making any other speeches. This is 4 you don't do that, she's not answering, Counsel.
5 not an opporhuity for you to coach your witness. 5 MS. GUZMAN: Counsel, it's not a trick
6 MR. SPIRO: I'm not coaching my witness. You 6  question and she said she understands it.
7 know very well I'm not. ? MR. SPIRO: It doesn't snatter, because you
8 BY MS. GUZMAN: 8  might think instructions mean something different from
9 Q Ms. Hunter, would you please answer the 9  what she thinks, the jury might think instructions '
11:45 10 question. 11:46 10 mean something different from what she thinks, the
11 A To set the parking -- 11 judge might think it is something different.
12 MR. SPIRO: You mean the 27 questions? 12 So you're trying to trick her, you know that
13 _THE REPORTER: I can only get one personata 13  youare Iwantyou totell her which paragraphs you -
14 time. 14 want her to answer about, otherwise she's not poing to
15 MR_SPIRO: All right.- Go ahead. 15  answer.
16 THE WITNESS: Okay. This is an instruction: ~ 16 MS. GUZMAN: Are you instructing her not to’
17 "Parking Brake. To set the parking brake, hold the 17 answer fiie question as if's been stated?
18 regular brake pedal down ml.hyum'nght foot." 1B MR. SPIRO: Ifshe'll go through each
19 That's not false. 19 paragraph, then, no, F'm not instructing her then
11:45 20 MR SPIRO: Hold on, excuse me — 11:47 20 Butshe needs to go through each paragraph. I'm
21 THE WITNESS: "This manmal includes the" ~ 21  instructing her to do that Whether it is a, quote,
22 MR. SPIRO: — you skipped the first . 22  nstruction parapraph or not, because nobody knows
23 paragraph. 23  whether #t is for sure.
24 THE WITNESS: That's not an msl:mctlon, 24 BYMS. GUZMAN:
25 though 25 Q Goahead, Ms. Hunter.
Paga 61 Page 63
1 MR. SPIRO: Iknow it isn't. But that's why 1 A Okay
2 the question is vague. 2 MR. SPIRO: Please start at the first
3 Do you want her to answer on each — do you 3 parapraph.
4 wait her to skip the ones that aren't instructions, 4 THE WITNESS: "The mamual includes the latest
S Counsel, or do you want her to answer as to each of 5 information at the time it was printed. Please keep
6  those paragraphs? 6  this manual in your vehicle so it will be there if you -
7 MS. GUZMAN: 1want her to answer however she 7  everneed it when you're on the road. Ifyou sell
8 needs in order to answer — 8  your vehicle, plmscleaveﬂlismanualinitsothat
9 MR. SPIRO: No, you have to clarify your 9  the new owner can use jt.”
11:46 10 question. Do you want her to go on each paragraph 11:47 10 MR. SPIRO: What's the question, Cmmsel"
: 11 there or do you want her to skip the ones that don't 11 BY MS. GUZMAN:
12 appear to be instructions? Ineed to know that and so 12 Q Do you think that statement is false?
13 does she. And don't try and frick her — 13 MR. SPIRO: Iobject. That's vague and
14 THE WITNESS: I- - 14 ridiculous. An instruction can't be troe or false.
15 MS. GUZMAN: 1 asked her about instructions. 15 It's an instruction.
1€ She can answer about the nstructions. i6 THE WITNESS: "Parking brake. To set the
17 MR. SPIRC: Yeah, so which ones, in your 17 parking brake" —
18 view, are instructions? You have to make that clear 18 BY MS. GUZMAN:
15 toher. 19 Q TI'm sorry, Ms. Hunter, can I have the answer
|11:46 20 BYMS. GUZMAN: 11:48. 20 to the question I just asked? '
21 Q Ms. Hunter, do yon understand the question? 21 MR._SPIRO: 1t is compound, too.
22 A Yes,Ido. 22 THE WITNESS: It is instructing me to leave
23 MR SPIRO: No— . 23  the manual in if T seli the car.
24 BY MS. GUZMAN: 24 MR. SPIRO: How can that be true or false,
25 Q 'Would you please answer i. 25 Counsel?
: Page 62 Page 64
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1 BY MS GUZMAN: 1 Q What about the next one, "To release the
2 Q Isthere anything— . 2 parking brake, hold the regular brake pedal down, pufl
3 A Sothat the new owner canuse it. Itis 3 the bottom edge of the lever located above the parking
4 telling me ~ basically it is instructing me to leave 4 brake pedal marked Brake Release! to release the
5 it—isittrue or false? Ican'tsaywhetheritis 5 parking brake." Is that, in fact, how you release the
6  true or false because Edon't kmow. 6  parking brake in your Yukon?
7 BY MS. GUZMAN: 7 A Yes.
B Q ' Is there anything misleading about that 8 Q Is there anything confusing aboat that
S  statement to you? _ ' 9 instruction to you?
11-48 10 A Idon't know what "misleading” mean? 11:50 10 A No.
11 The next one, park brake — "Parking 11  Q What about the next one, "It can be dangerous
12  brake” — 12 1o pet out of your vehicle if the shift lever is not
13 Q TI'msorry, Ms. Hunter, I still need the 13 fully in park with the patking brake firmly set. Your
14  answer to the question, 14  wehicle can roll. You or others can be injured. To
15 MR. SPIRO: She answered. : 15  be sure your vehicle won't move even when you're on
16 THE WITNESS: 1 don't know what "misleading” 16 fairly level ground, use the steps that follow.™
17 mean. : - 17 Wonld you review the steps that follow that.
18 BYMS. GUZMAN: _ 18  They would be lines 1 through 18 of page 20.
19 Q Is there anything confusing about that 19 A "It can be dangerous to set your vehicle”
31:48 20 statement to you? 11:51 20 ‘“yourvehicle can roll. You or others can be injured
21 A No, but this manual — it's — I don't know 21 ' To be sure your vehicle will move when" — "use the
22  what's troe or false about leaving — it is tellingme 22  steps as follows."
23 to leave a manual i so the new owner canuse it, so I 23 MR. SPIRQ: What follows there is not the
24 don't know what's true or false about it. 24  steps that's being referred to, Counsel.
25 Q Isthat confiising? 25 Don't answer thal. It misstates what this
Page 65 Page 67
1 A No. 1 document says.
2 Q How about the next instruction, ™Yo set the 2 MS, GUZMAN: Are you instucting your witness
3 parking brake, hold the repular brake down with your 3  pottoanswer?
4 right foot," is that, in fzct, how you set the parking 4 MR. SPIRQ: What's the question again?
5  brake in your Yukon? 5  BYMS. GUZMAN:
6 A No. To set the parking brake, hold the 6 Q Are any of the instructions that follow
7 regular with your right foot? 7 confusing? :
8 Q How do you set the parking brake in your 8 MR. SPIRO: That wasn't the question — ch,
9  Yukon? 9  whatare they, Counsel? Yeah, don't answer that
11:49 10 A Tmalefly. 11:52 10 because we don't know what you're talking about.
11 Q What does that mean? 11 BY MS. GUZMAN:
12 A Evecrything is done with my left side. 12 Q Okay. Ms. Hunter, woukd you read lines 1
13 Q So youhold the regular brake pecial down with 13 through 18 and let me know if anything in there is -
14  your lcft foot? 14 confusing or misleading to you.
15 A Depends. Depends on the situation. 15 MR. SPIRO: Which one, Counsef? That's
18 Q What do you mean by that? 16 compound. Confusing and misleading. Tt is compound;
17 A Well, if the right leg is broke, I have no 17 Idon't know how she can answer.
18  choice to use but the left foot. 18 THE WITNESS: "Leaving your vehicle with the
: 19  Q Butyouhold the regular brake pedal down 19 engine running” —~ _
1311:50 20 with whatever foot you use? 11:52 20 MR. SPIRO: It is multiple compound because
' 21 MR. SPIRO: Argumentative. 21 itisabout40 lines ~
22 BYMS. GUZMAN: 22 THE WITNESS: — "It can be dangerous to
23 Q Is there anything confusing about that 23  leave your vehicle” —
24 instruction to you? 24 THE REPORTER: 1 can only get one person ata
25 A No. 25"

time.
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1 MR. SPIRO: It is about 30 lines of typing 1 MS. GUZMAN: Court reporter, would you mind
2 and there's two questions 2s to each line — as to 2  reading back the question.
3  each siatement, or whatever, 3 THE WITNESS: Reading line 1 through 18 —
4 BYMS. GUZMAN: 4 MR. SPIRO: Yezh, she wanted you to do that
5 Q Have you reviewed lines 1 through 187 - 5 but she had a question. Counsel bad a question which
6 A No. : 6 I think was confusing and misleading, but the coust
7 Q Can you answer my question? 7 reporter will read it baclc
8 A, What's the question? 8 {Record read as follows:
9 MR. SPIRO: How can she do that without 9 "Q Okay. Ms. Hunter, would
11:53 10 reading it, Counsel? ' 11:56 10 you read lines 1 through 18 and let
i1 Don't answer the question without reading it. 11 me know if anything in there is
12 What kind of thing is that? 12 confusing or misleading to yon.”
i3 MS. GUZMAN: 1 asked if she could. 13 THE WITNESS: Yes, it is. What should I do?
14 Q Can you answer it — 14 BY MS. GUZMAN:
i5 MR. SPIRQ: She said she hasn't read it. She 15 Q What line is that at?
16 obviously can't answer it without reading it. 16 A 1guess number 26. My carisnota
17 Don't answer without reading it. 17 four-wheel drive — my car is aot a four-wheel drive,
18 BY MS. GUZMAN: 18 jtis a two-wheel drive.
19 Q  Go ahead and read it. 19 - @ Butinlines 1 through 18, was there anything
f11:53 20 MR, SPIRO: Sfop trying to hamss my client. | 11:57 20  that was confusing to you?
' 21  This is prepostercus. 22X A 20— '
22 THE WITNESS: Repeat the question so I can, 22 MR. SPIRO: Don't answer that without going
23 readit Repeat the question so I can read it. 23 . through each sentence and giving a separate answer for
24 MS. GUZMAN: Couwt reporter, can you please 24  each sentence, please.
25  read the question back. 25 THE WITNESS: Well, that was line 26.
Page 69 Page 71
1 (Record read as follows: 1 MR. SPIRO: You're going below where she
2 "Q Okay. Ms. Hunter, would 2  wanted you to.
3 you read lines 1 through 18 and let 3 THE WITNESS: Oh, I through 18.
4 me know if anything in there is 4 - MR. SPIRO: Startat1—
5 confising or misicading to yon.") 5 THE WITNESS: Okay. I've already said
6 MR. SPIRO: You asked her to read it, & leaving your vehicle with the engine rupning, that's
7 Counsel; she's entitled to read it. 7 confusing, :
8 La Ronda, before you answer, I want you to go 8 Why would I want to leave my vehicle with the
- 9  through each one and give a seperate answer to each . 9  engine nnning? Welivein 1. A They are going to
11:55 10 paragraph — or, actually, those paragraphs are rather 11:57 10 stealit
11 long Try each sentence. 11 - BY MS. GUZMAN:
12 THE WITNESS: The cne says suppose after 12 Q Arc you saying that that line is confissing to
13 stalling I try to back down the hill and decide I just 13 you?
14  can't do it, what shall I do. 14 MR. SPIRO: She just said it, yes.
15 MR. SPIRO: Start from the top and — 15 _THE WTINESS: "Caution, it can be dangerous
18 THE WITNESS: Fm not going to answer that 16 to leave your vehicle with the engine nmning. Your
17 one 17 vehicle can move suddenty if the shift Jever is not
18 MR. SPIRO: All right. 18 put in park with the parking brake firmly set.”
19 THE WITNESS: Use common sense for that one. 19 ¥ you have four-wheel drive — like I stated
111:56 20 MR. SPIRO: The question is confusing or 11:58 20 before, I don't have a four-wheel drive, [ have a
21  misleading? ' 21 two-wheel drive, and this refers to a four-wheel
22 BY MS. GUZMAN: 22 drive
23 Q . Ms. Hunter, do you need me to read back the 23 MR. SPIRO: Stop and answer what you've read
24 question? " 24 so far in that paragraph is confusing or misleading to
25 A Yes, goahead 25 you _
Page 70 Page 72
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1 THE WITNESS: Yeah, it is confusing and 1 A It doeso't say that. "If you continue to
2  misleading because I don't have a four-wheel drive, I 2 leave your vehicle running, if the shift lever is not
3 bavea two-wheel drive, and this is what it states. 3 fully in park with the parking brake fully set" —
4 BYMS. GUZMAN: 4 Q I'msomry, Ms. Hunter, you're going to have
5 Q What's confusing about that? 5 speakup so 1 can hear what you're saying.
6 A Itis telling me if I have a four-wheel 6 A ¥ says, "Caution. Ft can be dangerous to
7 drive— 7 leave your vehicle with the cogine nmning. Your
8 © But you don't bave a four-wheel drive, do 8  wvehicle can move suddenly if the shift lever 1s not
) %  you? 9  fully in park with the parking brake fimmly set.”
11:58 10 A No. It can be dangerous leaving your vehicle 12:00 10 You asked me was that misleading and
11  with the engine ruoning. 11  confusing. As stated previously, the answer is still
12 Q Butyou don't have a four-wheel drive. 32  the same, it is not going to change. Can we move on?
13 MR. SPIRO: Arpumentative. That isn't a 13 Q Do you think that is confusing?
14 question. Don't answer it 14 A Yes, if's confusing. As [ just—1I--
is (Instruction not to answer.) 15 Q Now, Ms. Hunter, I'm going to ask you a
1s MS. GUZMAN: Are you instructing your witness 16 glightly different question. Wlmt:scmﬁ:smgtoyou
17 notto answer? 17 about that statement?
18 - MR. SPIRO: If you ask a question, then 18 A Tdon't have - I have a two-wheel drive.
19 you'll get an answer, but saying, "You don't have a 19 Q Where does that statement say anything about
11:59 20 four-wheel drive” is not a question. 12:01 20 two-whoel drive?
21 BY MS. GUZMAN: 21 A Itdon't.
22 ) Myquestionis: You don't have a four-wheel - 22 Q Then what part of that statement is
23 drive, do you? 23 confusing?
24 A No,Idon'thavea Four-wheel dnvc, Kelly. 23 A 1just told you previously.
25 Q Sothen a statement that begins, "If you have 25 Q Ms. Hunter, did you have any communication
Page 73 Page 175
1 afour-wheel drive," doesn't apply to you, does it? 1 with Geaeral Motors?
2 MR. SPIRO: Argumentative. 2 A No.
3 THE WITNESS: It says, "Cantion, it can be 3 Q Now, on April 6th, 2008 you had the parking
4  danperous to leave your vehicle with the engine 4 brake on your cat repaired; is that correct?
5 ronning. Your vehicle can move suddenly if the shift 5 A No.
6 lever is not fully parked with your parking brake 6 Q What is incorrect about that?
7 firmly set,” in bold letters first. 7 A Itis the wrong year.
8 BY MS. GUZMAN: B Q What year did you have it rqmred‘?
9 Q That didn't answer my question. My question 9 A 2005 of April.
11:59 10 was-- 112:01 10 Q How tnany miles did your car have on it when
- 11 A 1did answer your question. : 11 it wasrepaired?
12 Q I'msomy, you didn't answer exactly my 12 A Idon'tknow. I don't kmow right now.
13 guestion. _ 13 Q¢  Was it more than 20,0007
11 MR. SPIRO: Don't argue with my client, 14 A ldon'tkmow. I would have to look at the
15 please. 15 document and see. Ifs on the document.
16 BY MS. GUZMAN: 16 Q Okay. We'll get to the document later, then
17 Q My question was -- 17 Why did you have your parking brake repaired?
1a A You want to know if it is misleading or 18 A Because it went out.
19 confusing? Yes it is. 19 Q What was — when was the first time that it
111:58 20  Q And what about that is misleading or 12:02 20 wentout?
21 confosing? "~ 21 A ‘Whenis the first time it went out? April
22 A Ijuststated as previously stated. ‘22 2005.
23 Q You're confused by the semtence, "If you have 23 Q Do you know what day?
24 four-wheel drive and your transfer case is in neutral 24 A Idon't recall the exact day.
25  your vehicle will be free to roll"? 25 Q What do you mean —
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1 A Ttookit to get - it got repaired. - 1  of that document.
2 Q What do you mean by "went out"? 2 MR. SPIRC: Which exhibit mumber is it?
3 A Thelight came on. 3 MS. GUZMAN: 'I‘hefoanmtexmgatnm&ure
4 Q Diditstll hold the vehicle? 4  Exhibit Number 1.
5 A Unknown. 5 MR SPIRO: Thank you.
6 Q What was that? & ‘What's the matter?
7 A Ydon'tknow. Unkmwn,lmlmown, did it hold 7 THE WITNESS: There is a bug flying.
8  the vehicle. .8 MR. SPIRO: Abug.
. 9 Q Did the parking brake work? 9 BY MS. GUZMAN:
12:03 10 A You can push it afl the way down to the 12:06 ‘10 Q Doyourecogmze(hlsdoclmentthat'smaﬂced'
11 floor. 11  Exhibit A?
12 Q What does that mean? iz A Yes.
13 A When you push it down with your feet — when 13 Q Whatisit?
14  pushed it-down with my left foat, and it goes afl 14 A Its where I took my truck to go get repaired
15  the way to the floor. ' 15  becanse GM refused to fix it.
16 Q Did it hold the car when you did that? 16 Q I-
17 A P'm going to say yes. Yes. 17 A They fixed the ABS, but they wouldu't fix the
18 Q So youtook it to get repaired just because 18 parking brake.
19  you sawthe light po on? ‘ 18  Q Okay. And that was at Power Chevrolet that
12:03° 20 A Yahevayumahg:tcmonmmymr 1 112:06 20 theywouldn't fix the parking brake?
21 take it to be repaired. 21 A Ye. .
22 Q Where did you take it? - 22 Q Did they say anything about the power brake
23 A To Power Chevrolet, Hawthomne, Catifornia. 23  toyou?
24 Q Why did you take it there? 24 A No, everything was a secret. Evclylhmgls
25 A That's where | always take my car, 25  still a secret.
Page 77 Page 79
1 Q Whydo youalways take your car there? 1 @ Didyou ask them to fix it?
2 A Whydolalways take my car there? Becanse 2 A Yes,Idid.
3 that's where ] always take it 3 Q Did they tell you why they wouldn't?
4 Q WhmyoumokymrmtoPowm'Cbmlelm 4 A No.
5  April of 2005, did vou speak with anyone? 5 Q So you went to Dagher Antomotive?
& A To the mechanic. 6 A Ub-huh — yes.
7 Q What did you say? 7 Q Who did you speak with at Dagher Automotive?
8 A [Itold him that iy ABS and my parking light 8 A Idon't know his name.
9 wason. 9 Q Just one person?
12:04 10 Q What did he say? 12:07 10 A Yes. :
o1 A He would do 2 diagnosis on it. 11 Q What did you say to him?
12 Q Did he do that diagnosis? 12 A That my parking brake light was on.
13 A Yes i3 Q And what did he say to you?
14 Q Andwhat were the results of that diagnosis? 14 A Okay. He'll fixit
15 A Idontknow. Ihavenoidea Idon'tknow. 15  Q Didhe tell you what was wrong with the
16 Tmnot a mechanic. Idon't know. He just told me 16 parking brake?
17 how much it woald cost to get it fixed and repair the 17 A No
18 vehicle. . 18 Q It says on this document, "Customer supply
15 Q Didyou speak with anyone else? .12 allthe parts.”
- |12:05 20 A No. . 12:07: 20 Did you supply the parts for that repair?
21 Q Wasanyoncelsepmsentwh:leyuuwere 21 A Yes.
22 speaking with the mechanic? 22 Q Where did you get those parts?
23 A No 23 A Across the street.
24 Q  Ms. Hunter, can you turn to your form 24 Q What is across the street?
25  interrogatories, Exhibit A that's attached at the end 25 A Alittle antomotive part place from my job.
Page 78 Page 80
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1 Thisis by myjob. 1 A Itvolled with the parking brake —
2 Q How did you know what paris to get? 2 Q What does that mean —
3 A 1requested for 2001 GM brakes. 3 A —as it vrolls now with the parking brake
4 Q Atthe place across the sireet? 4 down .
5 A Ubhhuh 5 MR. SPIRO: Hold on. Could you read me back
8 Q Do you know the name of that place? 6  the answer because I want to make sure you — it was
7 A No,Idon't , 7 accurate — I want to make sure it was accurately
8 Q Do you remember who you spoke with there? 8  taken down No offense.
_ 9 A No. Idon't even know if it stlf exists. 9 THE REPORTER: The first one or the second
12:08 10 Q Did you ask the pexson you spoke with there 10 one
11 for - somy, let me rephrase that. 11 MR. SPIRO: Both
12 ‘What did you ask the person you spoke with 12 (Record read as follows:
13  there for? 13 "Q Did your parking brake
14 A 2001 brakes. 14 ever fail to hold your car?
15 Q Thatsit? 15 "A It rolled with the parking
16 A That'sit. 16 brake — oo
17 Q Youjust said "2001 brakes"? 17 "Q What does that mean -
is A Ub-tmk. And] jeftitin the care of the is "A - as it rolls now with
18 puyat the — the one who fixed it. 19 the parking brake down.")
12:08 20 Q At Dagher Automotive? 12:10 20 BY MS.GUZMAN:
21 A Yes,and with the work. So what happered in ' 21 Q When was the first time that your car rolled
22  between, I don't know. What happened thenin 22  with the parking brake set?
23 between-—- . 23 A It's been awhile ago. I don't know.
24 MR. SFIRO: She's not asking you anything, 24 Q Do you know what year?
25  You answered the question. 25 A Tcan't recall what year, but I know now in
Page 81 Page 83
1 BYMS. GUZMAN: 1 2008 it is to the floor.
2 Q How did you know those were the right parking 2 Q How many times did your car roll with the
3 brakes for your 2001 GM Yukon? 3  parking brake set?
4 A How did I know they were the right? Common 3 A Idon't— I don't know.
5  semse, - 5 Q Was it more than one?
6 Q What do you mean by "Common sense"? 6 A Ofmy experience? Yes. My experience, yes.
7 A Ifl gota 2001 GMC Yukon, of course common 7  But, Ikel said, 1 don't kmow how many times it
8  sensc would tell me to request for 2001 brakes, right? 8  rolled. Idon'tsit m the car at 24 hours so ! don't
9 I wouldn't want 2002 brake shoes, unless it was made 9 know. .
{12:09 10 thecsame Idon'tknow. I dos't know what you're 12:11 10  Q Did it roll before the light came on?
11 tatkingabont Itis just common sense. : 11 A No.
12 Q Well, how did you know they were right for 12 Q How soon afier the light came on did you take
13  the make and model of your vehicle? 13  your car to the Power Chevrolet dealer?
1a A 1don't know if it was right. 14 A 1don't-- ] can't recall, I don't know. I
15 Q Can you identify any specific component of 15 know the light came on and I — every time the
16  your parking brake system that you believe is 156 lipht — something on — every time the light come on
17  defective? 17  inwmy car, I take it to the dealership in the morping
18 MR. SPIRO: What? " 18  before § could go to work, but I don't know.
] 19 THE WITNESS: Can | identify — : . 1% Q Did the car ~
{12:09 20 MR. SPIRO: Vague. 12:12 20 A When the light come on, it means something is
21 THE WITNESS: — any components? No, I 21  wrong with it
22  can't, I'm not a mechanic. - 22 Q Did the car roll after you had the parking
23 BY MS. GUZMAN: 23 brake replaced at Dagher Automotive?
24 Q Did your parking brake ever fail to hold your 24 A Yeah, that's why I don't drive it now.
25 cm? : 25 Q When was the last time the car rolled with

Page 84

21 (Pages 81 to 84)

' SARNOFF COURT REPORTERS AND LEGAL TECHNOLOGIES
877.955.3855



LA RONDA HUNTER

© 12 :I."G-]E'I"B

1 the parkiog brake set? 1  supposed law you just quoted me. It is not the law.
2 A Decemaber 2008, 2 BYMS. GUZMAN:
3 Q What do you mean by "roll"? 3  Q Ms. Hunter, have you made any other attempts
4 A The defnition of roll? 4 to get the parking brake repaired?
5 Q Not the definition. What do you mean by 5 A No.
6 "rolt"? 6  Q When you discovered this issne with your
7 A Itrolled 7  pasking brake, did you notify the dealer?
8 Q How far? -8 A When I discovered the issue with the parking
] A don'tknow. It wasn't no feet or nothing 9 brake - the light came on and I took it to the
12:13 10 like that, but I don't kmow how far. 1can't estimate 12:15 10 dealership. And they dida't fix it, so I took it hexe
11  how far. 11 and theyfixed it.
12 Q How fast? 12 Q Now, you said that after you fixed it, it
13 A ] can't estimate the speed of miles per hour. 13 continued to roll, correct?
14 Q I'm not asking you to estimate. Ms. Hunter, 14 A Isaid December 2000 — you asked me when the
15 Iwould like to know whether you know how far or how 15 last time, I said December 2008.
16 fastitrolled? T 1e Q So it continued fo roll?
17 MR. SPIRO: Fxmseme,wudjdaskherhow 17 A "Ifyou say so.
18 fast and she said she didn't know. : 18 Q I'masking what you're saying
19 MS. GUZMAN: Okay. 1s MR. SPIRO: She already told you, Counsel
12:14 20 MR. SPIR0Q: She also said she can't estimate. 12:16 20 twice, atleast.
K 21 BY MS. GUZMAN: 21 THE WITNESS: T've already answered the
22 (Q Wasitless than a foot? 22  question.
23 A 1alreadysaid - I already answered the 23 BYMS. GUZMAN:
24  question. 24 (Q Ms. Hunter, is it your position that the
25 . Q Youactually haven't answered the question ‘25 repair that Dagher Automotive did did not work?
Page BS Page 87
"1 "Was it less than a foot?" 1 MR. SPIRO: Don't answer that. She's askmg
2 A DidIsaythat IsaidIdon'tknow how ~ 2 you for a contention.
- 3  many— it wasn't feet and I don’t know. I mean, how 3 {Insfruction not to answer.)
" 4  many, I-dontknow. Ican't estimate how — ifIcan 4- MS. GUZMAN: Counsel, are you instructing the
5 getameasuring tape and go out there and come back 5  witness not to answer?
6 and doit, Tli tell you. 1 MR. SPIRO: That's right. You canaska
7 Q  So you don't know how far your car rolled 7  different way and get the answer.
B8 with the parking brake set? 8 MS. GUZMAN: On what basis?
- .9 ME. SPIRO: Don't answer that you. She 9 MR. SPIRO: Because it is improperto ask a
©112:14 10 already said it twice. 12:16 10 -witnesswhat her contentions are — it is improper to
11 " {Instruction not to answer.) 11  aska party what her contentions are. There is case
1z. MS. GUZMAN: Are you instaucting your witness | 12  law to that effect, and it is not fair, says the case.
13 not to answer? 13 BYMS. GUZMAN:
14 MR SPIRO: Yes. You are harassing her. 14 Q Did the repair that Dagher Automotive do on
15 MS. GUZMAN: On what basis? 15  vour car work?
16 MR. SPIRO: Becauseyou'rehamsmgha 16 A Thave no idea.
17 She answered you twice and then you ask her to say it 17  Q Youdon't know whether the repair worked?
18 agpin. What is that? 18 A Itstopped until — and now jt is to the
- 18 MS. GUZMAN: Counsel you're only eatitled to . 19 floor, so what is the problem, I dor't lcnow. I don't
112:14 20 justruct your witness not to answer on the groundsof | 12:16, 20  know what the problem is right now.
: 21 privilege. ' . - 21 Q Ms. Hunter, I'm sorry, but ¥ just don't.
22 MR. SPIRO: That's not true. 22  understand your answer.
23 MS. GUZMAN: Are you still instructing her 23 A 1just don't understand your question,
24  pot to answer? o 24  ecither, because you're asking me something — you're
25 MR. SPIRO: Yes. Itis not true, the i 25  asking me did it work, did it work or did it did not
Page B6 Page 88
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Page 90

1  work 1 MR SPIRO: Now, that's it —
2 Q DidDagher Automotive — 2 THE WITNESS: No.
3 A The brakes work but the pedal still goes down 3 MR SPIRO: — she's already apswered this
4 tothe floor. IfTtook it in for a diagnosis, no I 4  four times.
5 haven't. IfIcangoleaveandgo— 5 BYMS. GUZMAN:
6 MR. SPIRO: No, she basn't — isn't asking 6 Q Did the car roll less than 10 feet?
7  youthat Dor't answer questions that aren't asked. 7 A 10feet, I can't estimate how many —
8 THE WITNESS: But 1 don't know what's wrong 8 Q Did the car roll -
9 with it now. 9 A Ifyou can let me go and get a measuring tape
12:17 10 BY MS. GUZMAN: 12:19 10 anddoit I't come back and tell you.
11 Q Why do you think something is wrong with it 11 Q T'm asking for what you saw when you saw your
12 gpow? 12 carroll with the parking brake set.
3 A Becanse it is not supposed fo go to the i3 A Idon't know, I can't éstimate, Kelly.
1%  floor. ) 14 Q Can you recall any specific occasion where
15 Q The pedal is not supposed to go to the floor? 15  the carrolled with the parking brake set?
16 A Yes. 16 MR. SPIRO: She's answered this.
17 Q Bt docs the parking brake hold the car? 17 THE WITNESS: I answered that already.
18 A Itis supposed to. ise Could you go back and give her the answer to
19 Q Doesit? 18 ' the questions that she's giving me — Imean,thatshe
12:17 20 A irsonzevelgmmd,so- 12:19 20 keep asking me?
.21 Q Do you know whether ﬂleparkmgbrake holds 21 THE REPORTER: 1can't answer.
22 thecar? - 22 PBYMS. GUZMAN:
23 A Idontknow. Idon't know. 23 Q Ms. Hunter, I'm sorry, but you need to just
24  Q Did the parking brake ever fil to hold the 24  answermy questions.
25 car? 25 A Oh,okay.
Page 89 Page 91
1 MR. SPIRO: She just answered this — well, 1 - . Can you show me with your hands how far the
2 poahead 2 carrolled?
3 She's answered this — 3 A Tl show you, it do this like. Idid that
4 MS. GUZMAN: Counsel, I'm attempting to 4 inthebeginning It did like this. '
5  clarify her testimony. 5 MS. GUZMAN: For the record, the witness just |
6 MR. SPIRO: You are? & - moved her finger several inches across the table.
7 MS. GUZMAN: Flease allow me to do so. 7 THE WITNESS: That's not — I don't know
8 THE WITNESS: You said did the parking brake 8  because ] can't estimate how many feet or foot. She
. 9  ever fail to hold the car? Evidently it did. In the 9  asked how it rolled. 1Idon't know. '
]112:18 10 previous answer you asked me did it roll, I told you 12:20 10 BY MS. GUZMAN:
' 11 it did, but how many feet or foot or whatever, I don't 11 Q Apart from estimating —
12 know. 12 A Talready answered the question. 1 don®
13 BY MS. GUZMAN: 13 know. [don't know.
14 Q Well, you said less than a foot before; isn't 14 Q Was the car on a slope when it rolled?
15 that right? 15 A Inmy driveway, no.
16 A No, I told you I can't estirnate. 16 Q Dldyoueverseeﬂlcmrmllmﬂxaparlung
17 MR SPIRO: No, that's not right. 17 brake set anywhere other than your driveway?
18 PBY MS. GUZMAN: 18 A No.
: 18 Q Were you there when the car was rolling? 19 Q And your driveway is a flat surface?
]12:18 20 A TIguessTwas there. It lives at home with 12:21 20 A Yes.
21 me 21 Q AﬁayouwaﬂtoDaghm*AulomoﬁvconApnl
22 Q Did you ever personally observe the car roll 22 6thof 2005, did the car still rojl after that?
23  with the parking brake set? 23 A Tjusttold you it rolled December 2008.
24 A Yes 24 Q Was that the only time if rolled after the
25 Q And you can't tell e how far the car rolled? 25  repairat Dapher avtomotive?
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1 A Idon't ive in the car 24 hours, I don't "1 like?
2 Imow. 2 MR_SPIRO: Idon'tkmow.
3 Q 'Was that the only time it rolled? 3 MS. GUZMAN: Can we put on the record how
4 MR, SPIRO: She just answered you, Counsel. 4 long the break s going to be so that I know when to
"5 MS. GUZMAN: She did not, actually, answer my 5  come back to this room?
6 specific question. 6 MR_SPIRO: No. No.
7 THE WITNESS: I don't live in the car for 24 7 MS. GUZMAN: You just want an indefinite
8 hours, so I don't know. 8 break?
9 BYMS. GUZMAN: 9 MR. SPIRO: No. _
12:21 10 Q Ms. Hunter, I'm not asking whether you live 12:24 10 MS. GUZMAN: About how long would you Iike
11 inthe car, F'm only asking -- 11 the break to be?
12 MR SPIRO: She said "I don't know." 12 MR_SPIRO: It won't be more than 20 munutes,
13 BY MS. GUZMAN: ' 13  Ttmight beless.
14 Q You don't know whether Decernber 2008 was the 14 MS. GUZMAN: Okay. We'l take a 20-minute
15 only time the car rolled? 15 break and go off the recond.
1s A No, 1dont know. 16 THE VIDEQOGRAPHER: We are going off the
17 Q Can you recall any other times, other than 17 record at 12:25. This concludes media number 1.
. 18 December 2008, when the car rolled after you had it is And we are off the record. 'Ihankym.
19  repaired at Dagher Automotive? 19 (Recess.)
12:22 20 A Tcan'trecall. Not dght now, I can't 01:20 20 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are back on the record
21 recall. 21 atl:22, .
22 Q When the car rolled in December 2008, did you .| 22 This is the beginning of media number 2 in
23  notify the dealer that time? 23  the deposition of La Ronda Hunter.
24 A No, I didn't notify the dealer. Idonthow 24 BYMS. GUZMAN:
25 what's wirong with it. 25 Q Ms. Hunter, when you had the parking brake
Page 93 Page S5
1 Q Did you- 1 sysmonyomYukonrepauedmAprdonOOS did
2 A Itold you I don't know what's wrong with the 2  youdocument it in any way?
3  car. 1didn'tdo a diagnosis onit. 3 A No.
4 Q Did you notify — 4 Q Youdida't take any phoios?
5 A 1 didn't notify anyone. 5 A No,
6 Q  When you went to Dagher Automotive to have it 6 Q Youdidn't take a video of it?
7  fixed, did you get a second opimion? 7 A No, not that I know of
8 A No. 8 Q Have you taken any pictures of your parking
L Q Hasyoncevcrtoldyonwhatmwmngmm 9  brake system prior to having it repaired? -
112:23 10 yourcas? 101:21 10 A No.
’ 11 A ¥as anyone told me what was wrong with my 11 Q Didyou contact GM before you had it
12 car? 12 repaired —
13 MR. SPIRO: Don't repeat anything your 13 A No.
14 lawyers might have told you. 14 Q - so they could inspect the vehicle?
15 THE WITNESS: Somebody told me a lot of stuff 15 A No.
16 was wrong with miy car. They told me it was dirty, so 16 Q Did you keep the old parking brake system so
17 what are you asking? They told me — 17 it could be inspected later on?
18 BY MS. GUZMAN: 18 A No,Ididn't,
. 19 Q Il rephrase for you. 19 ' Q Haveyou had your car appraised since
112:23 20 MR. SPIRO: Counsel. It bas beén an bour so J01:22 20 replacing the parking system?
' 21 we should take a break. 21 A No.
22 MS. GUZMAN: Okay. We'll take a 10-minute 22 Q Did you have your car appraised before
23  break. And welll be back in 10 minutes this time. 23 replacing the parldngbmkesystm? '
28 MR. SPIRO: It might not be 10 minutes. 24 A No.
25 MS. GUZMAN: How long of a break would you 25 Q I'm going to hand you a.nd your counsel a copy
Page 94 Page 96
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1 of — a stack of photos, and it is going to be marked 1 A Tdon't know nothing about VIN, none of that.
‘2 defendants’ group Exhibit Hunter 6. 2 Q Do you see where in the middle of the fabel
.3 (Deposition Exhibit 6 marked.) 3  mnderneath the words "manufacture shown above,” there
4 MR. SPIRO: Wait a minute. These are not 4 are the letters — sorry, the mumbers and letters
5 pumbered — okay. -5 1GKEC-—
6 BY MS. GUZMAN: 6 A Okay,yes
7 Q DoyoumcogmchuntergroupExlu’bltG 7 Q That?
8 . Ms. Hunter? 8 A Yes
9 A No,ldoen't 9 Q Do you recognize that as your vehicle
01:23 10 Q Okay. You've never seen them before? 01:28 10 identification mumber?
11 A No,Ihaven's ' 11 A [ooly recognize sty VIN mmnber when T'm
12 Q Now I'm going to hand you and your counsel 12  standing right next to it and writing it down,
13 specific photos from that stack. The first will be 13 Q Do you want to refer to your response to
14 marked Hunter 7. 14 mtenogaloxynumba’l"
15 {(Deposition Exhibit 7 marked.) 15 A No.
16 BY MS. GUZMAN: 16 Q Would you, please.
17 Q Do you recognize what's depicted in that 17 A Ireally don't
18  photograph, Hunter 77 18 MR. SPIRO: Which exhibit is it?
i9 A No. 19 MS. GUZMAN: 2,1 believe,
01:24 20 Q Do you recognize that license plate? 01:28 20 THE WITNESS: Which page is that? What page
21 A No 21 isthat?
22 Q That's not your license plate? - 22 BYMS. GUZMAN:
23 A No : 23 Q 5.
24 MS. GUZMAN: Now I'm marking Hunter Exhibit 24 A Okay.
25 & 25 © Have you ever seen this label — oh, sory.
Page 97 Page 99
1 {Deposition Exhibit 8 marked.) 1 Somy.
2 BY MS. GUZMAN: 2 So dees the vehicle identification number in
3 Q Do you recognize what's depicted in that 3 yourresponse to interrogatories maich the vehicle
4  photograph, Hunter 87 4 idenfification munber in the picture I just showed
5 A A car --two cars. 5 you?
6 Q Do you recognize the car as your own? 6 A Yes. 7
7 A No. 7 Q Have you ever seen this label on your car?
8 MS. GUZMAN: And I'm handing you the Iast 8 A Tcan't recall Idon‘tlmowﬁl‘veever
8  picture that will be marked Hunter Exhibit 9. 9  secnitbefore.
101:26 10 {Deposition Exhibit 9 marked.) 01:29 10 Q Do you understand what it means?
11 BY MS.GUZMAN: 11 A No. It says, "The vehicle safety standards
12 Q Do you recognize that photogmph” 12 - ineffect on the date of manufacture shovm above.”
13 A No,1don't 13 Q Your answer is "No"™?
14 Q Do you know what it is a picture of? 14 A No, I don't know what it is. But it said —
15 A No 15 GM states right here, "This vehicle” — "applicable
16 Q Do you see in the picture where the VIN, the 16  use federal motor vebicle safety.” Whatever they say
17 wvehicle identification number appears? 17  itis, that's what it 1s.
is A No, because I don't know what 'm looking 18 Q Does it mean anything to you?
19 for. 19 A No.
{01:27 20  Q Do youseea vehicle identification number {01:30 20 Q Are you aware that there are federal safety
; 21  anywhere on that picture? 21  standards for cars and tracks?
22 A Ifit don't say VIN and then the number — I 22 A Yes.
23 don't know because I don't know nothmg about 23 Q Are you aware that the Federal Motor Vebicle
24  vehicles. 24  Safety Standards provide safety standards for brake
25 Q Okay. 25

systems, specifically, as well?

Page 100
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1 A No. 1 topurchase acar,
2 Q Do you have any information that your 2001 2 BY MS. GUZMAN:
3 Yukon brake system does not meet the Federal Motor 3 Q Ms. Hunter, 'm going to hand you a copy of
4 Vehicle Safety Standards? 4 the original complaint in this action. Itis being
5 A You asked me do I have any — do I have any 5  marked Honter Exhibit 1.
€  information that - no one provided me with any 6 {Deposition Exhibit 10 marked))
7  information. _ 7 MR. SPIRO: You handed me two, Counsel, 1
8 QDo you have any information that your 2001 B think '
9  Yukon brake system fails to conform to any other o MS. GUZMAN: Did1?
01:31 10 industry or povernmental standards? 01:33 10 THE WITNESS: Let me get some of this stuff
11 MR. SPIRO: Hold on. 11 out of the way.
iz Yezh, T'H object to that one and I'll move 12 BY MS.GUZMAN:
13 1o strike the answer to the previous one on the 13 QDo you recognize Huater Deposition
14  grounds of — on the grounds that it is asking the 14 Exhibit 107
15  witness to give facts or information to support a 15 A No. I've never seen that before.
16 contention It is an improper deposition question. ie6 Q Arc you finished answering?
17 THE WITNESS: I've already answered it. 17 A No, I don't recognize it.
18 MR_SPIRO: Yeah, you have. is Q' Okay. 'mhanding you a second amended
19 THE WITNESS: Yeah, I answered it. 19  complaint, Hunter Exhibit 11.
01:31 20 MR. SPIRO: Oh, yesh. 01:34 20 (Deposition Exhibit 11 marked.)
' 21 THE WITNESS: 1did. 21 BYMS. GUZMAN:
22 BY MS. GUZMAN: . 22  Q Do yourecognize HtmterFxhiblt 11?
23 Q You answered me the first question. My 23 A Nope.
24 second one was slightly different. 24 Q Have you looked through all the pages?
25 A I answered your second question too. You 25 A  TFmlpoking throngh them nght now.
Page 101 ' Page 103
1 asked me that and I said, "No," I don't understand - 1 Q I'msomy, now you've looked through all the -
2  ithat 2  pages?
3 Q I'mnot asking whether you understand, F'm 3 A Yes.
4 sorry. I'masking do you have any information that 4 Q  And you still don't recognize it?
5  your 2001 Yukon brake system failed to conform to any 5 A No. I'don't recognize it.
6  industry or governmental standards? 6 Q Okay. Pm handing you a third amended
7 A Nol- T  complaint that's being marked as Hunter Exhibit 12.
8 MR. SPIRO: Also compound. a {Deposition Exhibit 12 marked.}
: S BY MS. GUZMAN: 9 BY MS. GUZMAN: _ ‘
101:32 10 Q I'm somry, Ms. Hunder, you're going to have 01:36 10 Q Do you recognize Hunter Exhibit 127
11 o give your auswer again because counsel was speaking 11 A Okay. I think itis — no.
12  overyou. 12 Q Okay. We're back to the fourth amended
13 MR. SPIRO: Iwasobjecting. Givemea 13  conmplaint, which you do recognize.
14 chance 10 object before you answer. ia Canyoudm‘betomcmymruwnwordswint
15 Now you can try to answer. 15  this lawsuit is about?
16 THE WITNESS: No, Edon't. 16 A  Which one? Exhibit who?
17 BY MS. GUZMAN: 17 Q The fourth amended complaint.
18 Q Since you don't know that you've ever seen is MR. SPIRO: Exhibit 4. '
19  1his label on your car, you didn't rely on it when you 19 BYMS. GUZMAN:
01:32 20 were purchasing your car, correct?’ 01:37 20 Q Youactually don't need to refer to the
21 MR. SPIRO: What? That makes no sense. 21} document at all. 1 just asked whether you can
22  Arpumentative, confusing, unfair, 22 describe to me in your own words what this lawsuit is
23 THE WITNESS: Why would I want to rely on 23 about.
24 this to purchase a car? It is a bunch of mumbers and 24 A Class action. _
25  alphabets. 1wouldn't use alphabets and numbers just " 25° ) Can you give any more detail?
' Paga 102 Page 104
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1 A Violation of consumer legal remedy act — I 1 Q What states that?
2 have no.idea what itis. Violation of California 2 A 1can't goback and recall — T read it, but
3 Unfair Competition Act, UCL. I don't know what it is. 3  Ican't go back and recall. Iread it a while back
4 Q Ms. Himter, you don't need to explain the 4 ago, maybe eight — a long time ago.
5 California Legal Remedies Act or the Unfair 5 Q You don't know where you read it?
6 Compefifion law to me. 1 just want to know in your 6 A No. Iread so much
7  own words what you think this Iawsuit is about. 7 Q D:dyouonlymdxtmoneplaccormore
-8 A Ttisaclass action. That's my answer. 8  than one place?
9 Q Can you give me atty more detail than that? 9 A Iread it onc place.
01:38 10 A That's my answer, that's my final answer. 01:41 10 Q Did you read it before buying your vehicle?
11 Q Can you describe what claims are being made 11 A No.
12 apainst GM? 12 Q Okay. Would you please refer to the first
13 A Ihavetheshghteshdenofwhalﬂmclmm 13 set of inferrogatorics, Exhibit 2. -And it would be
14  arebeing against. I don't know. 14 - Exhibit A attached at the end of the interrogatories.
15 Q It was your lawyers who came up with the 15 A What page are you on?
16 allegations in this lawsuit, right? 16 Q Itactually doesn't have a page number. Ifs
17 MR. SPIRO: Vague, arpumentative, asks for 17  after the mterrogatories, and it is marked as
18 attomey-client. 18 "Exhibit A." That'sit
19 THE WITNESS: 1t's privileged. 19 Do you recognize Extntnt A?
©101:3% 20 BYMS.GUZMAN: 01:42 20 A Yes.
21 Q Dldywmmeupmthﬂ)eallegatlmsmﬂns 21 Q s this the document where you read that your
22 lawsuit? 22 pasking brake systern was intended to be a life-of-the-
23 MR. SPIRO: Vague, "come tep wi 23 vehicle part?
24 THE WITNESS: Did I come up with this, the 24 A Yes. .
25  allegations? 25 Q Can you tell me where you read that?
Page 105 Page 107
1 BYMS. GUZMAN: 1 A Inthe summary project wear out.
2 Q  Yes. 2 MR. SPIR(C: 1didn't hear.
3 A No 3 What was that Iast, Madam Reporter?
4 Q What do you hope to recover if you win this 4 (Record read as follows:
5 Iawsuilt? ' s "A In the summary project
6 MR. SPIRO: Vague, 6 wear out.")
7 Go abead. 7 THE WITNESS: Summary, ﬂzepro;ectcdwmr
B THE WITNESS: My losses. 8 ot
9 BYMS. GUZMAN: 9 BY MS. GUZMAN:
01:40 10 Q Do you mean moncy? 01:43 10 Q Domthcsmmmrysayme"hfeofﬂlc
11 A Yes 11 wvehicle” anywhere?
12 Q Anythingelse? 12 A No.
13 A No. 13 Q When did you first see this document?
14 Q What are your losses? 14 A [don'trecall when I first seen it
15 A The repairs for the brakes. 15 Q Who gave it to you?
16 Q How much money is that? 16 MR. SPIRC: She dido't say anybody gave it to
17 A Ttwas like 260 bucks. And the 33,000 that T 17  her
18 paid for the vehicle. 18 THE WITNESS: Who gave it to me? It was -
: 19 Q You state in the complaint that "GM intended _ 18 MR. SPIRO: In other words, assumes facts not
01:40 20 your parking brake system to beé 2 Life-of-the-vehicle | 01:44 20  in evidence; that's my objection.
' 21 pat” 21 THE WITNESS: i is a group of papers. 1
22 Did anybody ever represeat to you that the 22  seen this with some other documents.
23  parking brake was intended by GM t6 be a life-of:-the- 23 BYMS. GUZMAN:
24 vehicle part? _ 24 Q Where did you get those documents?
25 A Itstatesthat 25

A Where did ] get those documents?
: Page 108
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1 Q Where did they come from? 1 BY MS. GUZMAN:
2 A [Iscenthis in— I seen this through my 2 Q Do you recognize this document?
3 attorney. 3 A No.
4 Q Do you know who created this document? 4 Q Areyou sure?
5 A No,ldon't _ 5 A Yes -
6 Q Do you base your statement that "GM intended 6 Q Did you receive a warranty booklet like it
7  the parking brake system to be a life-of-the-vehicle 7  when you purchased your car?
8  part” on anything else other than this document? 8 . A Idod'tknow.
9 - MR.SPIRO: Now, that one, she's not 9 Q You don't know whether yon received a
01:44 10 answering. That violates the California law in what 01:48 10 wamanty booklet when you purchased your car?
11  you can ask at a deposition. In the words of the 11 A 1don't remember.
12 court of appeal, unfair. i2 Q So you haven't read the warraaty on your car?
13 Don't answer. 1 instruct. 13 A No, { haven't. 1don't even remember when
14 (Instruction not to answer.) 14  the warranty went out.
15 MS, GUZMAN: You're instructing your client 15 Q Okay. Would you turn to the page thaf's
16 notto answer? _ _ 16 arked 30589 in the very bottom right comer. It
17 MR. SPIRO: Right, because she shouldn't have 37 looks likeit is page 7 of the warranty booklet.
18" to answer an wnfair question. It is barassing the 18 A Okay. ’
19 witmess. is Q C’anymrcadtomeﬂxeseeuonthatsays
01:45 20 BY MS. GUZMAN: 01:49 20 “Bumper-to-Bumper Coverage" out lond.
' 21  Q Have you seen any other documnents that make 21 A  "The complete vehicle is covered for three
22  you think GM intended the parking brake system on your 22  years or 36,000 miles, whichever comes first, except
23  Yukon to be a life-of-the-vehicle part? 23 for other coverape listed hereunder, what is covered
24 A No. 24  and those itenos listed under what is not covered on
25 Q Hasanybadycvcrmdcanystatementstnyon 25 page9, 10and 11."
Page 109 Page 111
1  that GM intended the parking brake vehicle — the 1 Q And can you read the section called "Repairs
2 parking brake system on your vehicle to be a life-of- 2 Covered" out lond
3 the-vehicle part? 3 A "The warmranty covers repairs to comect any
4 A Havclhwdanybodymahngastatemmt‘? No. 4  wvehicle defect related to materials or workmanship
5 Q- In other words, in case that question was 5  occuring dunng the warraniy period. Needed repairs
6  unclear, has anybody ever told you that GM intended 6  will be performed using new or manufactured parts.”
7  the parking brake system to be a life-of-the-vehicle 7 Q Did anybody ever make any statement, prommise,
.8 part? B representation or warranty of any kind tcyou that's
' 9 A No 9  not in this warranty booklet?
1o1:46 10 Q Do you have any other reason to believe that 01:50 10 MR. SPIRO: Callsﬂ)ralegalconclusmn,
: 11  the parking brake system on your Yukon was intended by 11  it's compound.
12 GM 1o be a kife-of-the-vehicle part? . 12 Maylhearﬂl.atagam, or the reporter can
13 MR. SPIRO: Counsel, you don't have to saya 13 readithack
14 question I alreadyinstructed her not to answer. So 14 {Record read as follows:
15 dont Same grounds. 15 *Q Did anybody ever make any
i6 {Instruction not 1o answer.) 16 statement, promise, representation
17 MS. GUZMAN: You're instructing the witness 17 oy warranty of any kind to you
18 not to answer that question on the basis it is unfair? 18 that's not in this warranty
. 19 MR. SPIRO: According to the court of appeal, 19 booldet?™)
101:46 20 yes, which amounts to harassment. 01:51. 20 MR SFIRO: It's also vague.
' 21 BY MS. GUZMAN: ' 21 THE WITNESS: Isaid previous, ] doe't know.
22 Q Ms. Hunter, I'm handing you and your counsel 22 Ihaven't--1don't — I don't kmow if I had this
23  a2001 GM warranty booklet. It is marked Hunter 23  bookornot, so I don't know,
24 Exhbit 13. 24 BY MS.GUZMAN:
25 {Deposition Exhibit 13 marked.) . 25 Q Were you aware when you purchased your ¢ar
: Page 110 Page 112
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1 that it was warranted against defects? 1 MR SPIRO: Allright.
2 A I'would hope — I hope there is a warranty 2 BY MS.GUZMAN:
3 under defect. 3 Q Itwill be37, subsection.(d).
4 Q Did you think that yours was? 4 A Okay.
5 A That didn't even come to mind, 5 Q Subsection {(d) at about line 14, you state,
6 . Q TI'mgoing to call your attention now to 6  "Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and based on
7  paragraph 60 of the fourth amended complaint. That 7 that information and belief allege, that GM is engaged
8  happens to be on page 25 at line 18. -8 in other acts and conduct, inciuding atteropted
L A Exhibit 47 9  coverups of ifs kmowledge and activities regarding the
01:52 10  Q The fourth amended complaint. 01:56 10 lack of effective and operable parking brakes on the
11 MR SPIRO: That's not what she asked. 11 subject vehicles and has engaged m willful
12 MS. GUZMAN: Is that Exhibit 47 12  suppression of that evidence "
13 MR. SPIRO: Yeah, it is. 13 On what do you base this staternent?
14 BYMS.GUZIMAN: _ 14 " MR. SPIRO: Hold on, object, misstates the
15 Q Itis page 25. Do you see at line 20 where 15 evidence. She, the witness, Ms. Hunter, did not state
16 it says, "In particular, GM made mumerons 16 it
17 representations in its print ads and media that if a 17 BYMS. GUZMAN:
18 defect existed in one of its vehicles, including the 18 Q DoyunbeheveﬁlalGMhasmgagedmme
19  subject vehicles, GM would repair the defect,” quote, 19 willful suppression of evidence?
01:53 20 “"We're with you, every mile of the way. Repairs made [01:56 20 A Do Ibelieve?
21 o cosvect any material defect,” end quote. 21 Q Yes. -
22 Do you see that part? ' - 22 MR. SPIRO: It asks for a legal conclusion,
23 A Line 26?7 Would that be in 602 - 23 THE WITNESS: I don't know what to believe.
24 Q Yes, that's paragraph 60. 24 BYMS. GUZMAN:
25 A Yeah okay. Written materials -- okay, yes, 25  Q Do you know what willful suppression of the
Page 113 Page 115
1 Iseeit 1 evidenceis?
2 Q Canyou tell me what specific print ads or 2 A -No.
3  media you saw with this statement on t? 3 Q Do you have any idea what this paragraph is
4 MR. SPIRO: Rt is vague, the question is 4 referring to?
5  vague. - 5 A Abelief.
6 THE WITNESS: I_]ustreadxtmﬂlewmmmy 6 Q Anything more specific than that?
7  book. 7 A No.
8 BYMS. GUZMAN: 8 Q When did you first decide to sue General
‘ 9 Q Yourcad this statement in the warranty book? 9  Motors?
- }01:54 10 A Itsaid that it would fix the cars. 01:57 10 A Ithink it was 2005.
' 11 . Q Didyousee it anywhere else? 11 Q Whydid you decide to sue General Motors?
12 - A [seencommercials that — 12 A Why did I decide to sue Genera] Motors?
13 Q Do you remember any specific commercials you 13 Q Yes.
~14  saw with this statement? 14 A Because I had to replace my brakes and they
15 A IfIdid, I can't recall right now. 15 wonldn't replace them.
16 MR. SPIRO: Vague. . 16 Q 'What gave you the idea of suing General
17 BY MS. GUZMAN: 17 Motors?
18 Q Would you tum to paragraph 37. 18 MR_SPIRO: She just answered mat question.
19 MR. SPIRO: What page is it, please? 19 Asked and answesed, harassing the witness,
01:55 20 MS. GUZMAN: I'm looking. 01:58 20 arpumentative.
21 MR. SPIRO: [ thought maybe you had it open. 21 THE WITNESS: You said what?
22 I'msorry. ' 22 MS. GUZMAN: 'Ms. Bardsley, would you please
23 It's 14, page 14. 23 read back my question.
24 MS. GUZMAN: Actually 15, the part of 37 that 24 (Record read as follows:
25 I'mrefemingtoison 185, ' 25 "Q What gave you the idea of
Page 114’ Page 116
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i suing General Motors?™) 1 A Thave noidea.

V-3 THE WITNESS: What gave me the idea? I don't 2 Q You don't know the name of Adam's law firm?
3 think it was an idea. It was based on my belief. 3 A No S

4 BY MS. GUZMAN: 4 Q Did you approach Adam about suing GM?

5 Q Why did you decide to sue GM as opposed to 5 A No.

6  petting it repaired again? 6 Q Did he approach you?

7 A Theyrefused to fix the parking brake when 1 7 A No.

B tookitin. Ihad to pay for it myself. 8 @ Howdid Adam bring you to meet your attomeys
3 Q  So when you decided to sue GM, how did you go 9 in this lawsuit? '

01:59 10 about doing that? 02:01 10 A How did Adam bring me to meet —

11 MR_SPIRO: What? Vague. 11 MR. SPIRO: Adam is his (sic) aftomey in the
12 - THE WITNESS: When I decided to sue GM, how 12 lawsuit Itis vague, confusing,

13  did I go about doing it? I didn't go sbout — I 13 BY MS. GUZMAN:

14 didn't do nothing. I didn't go about nothing. 14 Q Is Adam your attoroey now?
15 BY MS. GUZMAN: ) 15 A He's involved in the lawsnit.
16 Q Well, after you decided to sue GM, what was is MR, SPIRO: He's the attomey of record,

17  the first thing you did? 17 Counsel
ie A What was the fiest thing I did? Ican't 18 BYMS.GUZMAN:
19 recall right now. 18 @ Sodid you ask Adam ahout suing GM?
01:59 20 Q. If somebody else wanted to sue someone, what 02:02 20 A No,Idido't
' 21  would you telf them to do? 21 MR. SPIRO: Don't answer that.
22 A That is their own presogative. - 22 Attorney-client.
23 Q How did you meet your attoreys in this 23 (Insimction not to answer.)
24 lawsuit? 24 BYMS GUZMAN:
25 A How did I meet them? I met Adam in Texas, 25 Q And you say you met him at a fineral?
' Page 117 Page 119

1 Adam's law firm, when I was in Texas for a funeral, 1 A No,Imethim-

2 and, actually, my manager, who I used to date. 2 Q No, through mutual conversation?

3 Q T'msorry, I just didn't hear your answer. 3 A Through Heary Stephson's house and it is a
4 MR. SPIRO: Could you repeat it, then, Madam 4  mntual conversation.

5 Reporter. 5  Q Whendidyoumeet him?

6 {Record read as foliows: -6 A 1first met him in Qctober of 2004.

7 " How did you meet your 7 Q Where did you meet him?

8 attorneys in this lawsuit? 8 A At Hemry's house.

9 *A How did I meet them? I 9 Q Where is that?

10 met Adam in Texas, Adam's law firm, 02:02 10 A Texas.

11 - when I was in Texas for a funeral, 11 Q What was the occasion?

- 12 and, actually, ry manager, who 1 12 A [ said I was out there for a fimeral. :
13 used to date ") : 13 ° Q Didyouhave any experience with Adam before
14 BY MS. GUZMAN: 14 this lawsuit?

15 Q Whois Adam? 15 A No
16 A Adam? He's a friend of my mamager. 16 Q Did you consider or meet with any other
17 Q Whois your manager? 17  attorneys with sespect to this lawsnit?
18 A Henry Stephson. 18 A Yes.
19  Q Where was Henry your manager? . 19 Q@ How many?
02:00 20. A Atthepostoffice. ’ 02:03. 20 A Two.
21 Q Soyou met Adam through Henry at a fuperal? 21 Q Who were they?
22 A Through mmytual conversation at his honse. 22 A Matter of fact, it was three. Ira, Adam and
23 Q And Adam is a jawyer? 23 David
24 A Yes 24  Q Since the fime that you filed this lawsuit,
25 Q Atwhat law firm? 25  are there any other lawyers that you have met or dealt
Page 118 Page 120

30 (Pages 117 to 120)

SARNOFF COURT REPORTERS AND LEGAL TECHNOLOGIES
. '877.955.3855 '




LA RONDA HUNTER

12/16/08

Page 122

1  with in connection with this lawsuit? 1 Q Ms. Hunter, you just told me that it was not
2 A No. 2 your idea to stazt this lawsuit?
3 MR. SPIRO: Vapue — move to strike, the term 3 MR. SPIRO: She also told you she didn't know
"4 "dealt with." 4  whose idea it was, Counsel, you know that.
5 BY MS. GUZMAN: . 5 THE WITNESS: 1 can't start a lawstit.
6 Q I, Adam and David are all aitorneys of © BYMS. GUZMAN:
7 record in this case; is that comrect? 7 Q Doyouhavemyprcwommvolvmtmtmclass
B MR. SPIRO: Legal conclusion, but it is 8 action lawsuits?
9 comrect. 9 A No.
02:03 10 THE WITNESS: Yes. 02:06 190 Q@ Have you been a party to any other lawsnit?
11 BY MS. GUZMAN: 11 A No.
12 Q Can you give me their last names? 12 Q Are you involved in any other pending
13 A 1don'tknow their Jast names. ¥know Ira's 13  litigation now? '
14 last nameis Spiro. Adam last name is — it started 14 MR. SPIRO: Vague.
15 witha"V," but 1 don't know his exact last name. 15 You mean pending lawsuits?
16 Q Did you meet with ahy other attomeys, other 16 MS. GUZMAN: Yes.
17 than Ira, Adam and David, about this case? ' 17 THE WITNESS: No.
18 A No-—yeah, yo : 18 BYMS. GUZMAN:
_ 19 Q Doyoulmowwhatac]assachoms‘? 19 Q Have you ever piven a deposition before?
02:04 20 A No- 02:06 20 A No.
21 MR. SPIRO: Legal conclusion. ' 21 Q Have you ever testified at trial before?
22 THE WITNESS: 1 just know it is a gronp of - 22 A No. .
23 people. That'sit. 23 Q You mentioned that you're personal friends
24 BY MS. GUZMAN: 24 with Adam. Are you friends with any of the other
25 Q Do youknow that this lawsuittsaclass 25  plaintiffs’ lawyers or staff?
Page 121 Page 123
1 action? 1 MR SPIRO: She didn't say that.
2 A Yes 2 THE WITNESS: I'm not personal fiiends with
3 Q Doyouimowwhythlslawsmtwasﬁledasa 3 Adm '
4  class action? 4 BYMS. GUZMAN:
5 A No. 5 Q Have you—
6 Q Was it your idea to start this lawsuit? 6 A Pmpersonal friends with Henry Stephson. I
7 A No. 7  don't live in Texas. Adam hangs at Henry's house, so
g Q Whose idea was it? 8 !don’tlmowwhattypeofrelahonshuptheyhad. 1
_ 5 A Tdon't know. 9 don't know.
102:04 10 Q Who first approached you about starting this | 02:06 10 Q How would you characterize your relationship
11  lawsuit? i1  with Adam?
12 A Noone. 12 A How would ] characterize my relationship?
13 Q Then how did you get involved? 13 Q Yes. :
14 MR. SPIRO: Don't — argumentative. It is 14 A Him being a man and me being a woman.
15 also asked and apswered. 15 Q Ishe a stranger to you?
16 You can answer, if you can. 16 A Would he be a stranger to me? He would be
17 THE WITNESS: How did I get involved? 17 Adam,aman
18 BY MS. GUZMAN: 18 Q How well do you know him?
19 Q How did you get involved? 19 A 1don't kmow him weil.
102:05 20 A Through mutual conversation. jo2:07 20 Q Do you know him through anything other than
21 Q Whose idea was it to sue GM? 21  his relationship to you as your attorney in this
22 MR. SPIRO: You asked her that. 22 lawsuit?
23 Don't answer. Counsel is harassing you. 23 A Do Iknow him— I inow of him from being
24 {Instruction not to answer. ) 24 over at Henry's house,
25 BY MS. GUZMAN: 25

Q So you socialized with him?
’ Page 124
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Page 126

1 A Thatday1did. 1  potential member of any certified class.
2 ) Have you sacialized with him on any other 2 A Why would I be obligated to pay?
3 occasions? 3. Q Pm just asking if you would be willing to
4 A No. 4  personally pay the cost of having that done?
5 Q Havcyoumbemmpasonalommnumcanon 5 A But— no, [ don't even know what you are
6  with him ontside of this lawsuit? 6 talking about. Whatever it is, no. Idon'thaveno
7 A  Onetime. 7  money to pay nobody. -
B Q When was that? - 8 Q Have your attomeys agreed to re:mbm'se you
9 A When I met him up at the office. 9 for the cost of class notice?
02:07 10 @ Canyou give mea date? 02:09 10 A No.
11 A Tdon't know the exact date. 11 MR. SPIRC: Wait a minute, she — 1 object to
12 Q What did you say? 12 that. it misstates the evidence. In fact, this
13 A ¥ can't remember what I said, too long ago. 13  deliberately misstates the evidence, Counsel.
14 MR. SPIRO: Can we stop a minute? 14 You know she just said that she's not going
15 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: On the sweater. 15 to payit. How can we reimburse her?
16 MS. GUZMAN: Do you want o take a break? 1€ BY MS, GUZMAN:
17 MR. SPIRO: No. The reporter - the 17 Q Do you have understanding of what it would
1B  videographer was telling me where to put my mike. 18  cost to prosecute this lawsnit as a class action?
i9 MS. GUZMAN: Sorty. 19 A No,Idont
02:08 20 MR. SPIRO: Sorry. 02:10 20 Q Are you aware that you might have to hire
21  BY MS. GUZMAN: 21  cxpert witnesses?
22 Q So you socialized with Adam one other time, - 22 MR. SPIRO: She doesn't have to bire expert
23  but you don't remember anything you talked about? 23  witmesses, Don't state it as a fact. This is going
24 A Lcan't recall ight now. 24 tostop.
25 Q Okay. Do you know what class notice is? 25 MS. GUZMAN: Counsel, if you have an
Page 125 Page 127
1 A No,Idoo't 1  objection, state the objection.
2 Q Did you know that you might give individual 2 MR. SPIRO: Ibave an objection and you are
3 notice to each potential member of any certified class 3  harassing the witness and you are misstating the
4 about this lawswit? _ 4 facts, you are misstating the law, and you are asking
5 MR. SPIRO: That's false. She doesn't have 5 ' the witness to answer about misstates. 'm not going
6 todosucha thing. & - to let this go on very muck more, Coumsel
7 MS. GUZMAN: She can answer my question. 7 MS. GUZMAN: Please do not raise your voice
8 MR. SPIRQ: You phrased it in terms of a 8 tome. You're doing that right now, and [ find it
9 fact Jtisnotafact 9 personally harassing.
02:09 10 THE WITNESS: Idon'tknowhowtogive [02:10 10 MR_ SPIRO: Well, I find it reallympulmve
11 anybody nothing What do I have to give them? 11 the way you're asking these questions. If's a trick,
12 MR. SPIRO: Just fo be particular about 12  it's a pimmick and it is really kind of disgusting.
13 the- 13 If you want an answer of what she knows about -
14 THE WITNESS: What I got to give them? 14 the real sinations, go ahead, but don't try and trick
15 MR SPIRO: Hold on. 15 her
16 Objection; it is assuming facts not in 16 MS. GUZMAN: Counse}, you've been doing this
17 evidence. In fact, it 1s misstating the facts. 17 all morping. I'm going to ask you one rore time, for
18 BY MS. GUZMAN: 18 the sake of the record, if you have an objection,
19 Q Are you willing to personally pay the cost of 19 pleasestate it. Don't tnake any speeches after that.
. |92:09 20 giving individual written notice to each potential 02:11. 20 Let your witness answer the question unless you're
21  member of any certified class about this lawsuit? 21 going to instruct her not to on the grounds of
22 A Am1 willing to pay? 22 privilege.
23 Q Yes. 23 MR. SPIRO: Ifyou start fooling around with
24 A Whatam I paying? What am I paying? 24 my witness like that, L will tel} you so, and you're
25 Q The cost of giving written notice to each .25 doingit
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1  BY MS. GUZMAN: 1 Q Ifyou were offered all the relief that you
2 Q Ms. Hunter, do you need me to restate the 2 arc sceking personally, would you withdraw from the
3 question? 3 lawsut?
4 A Pmonot paying - no, I'm not, the answer is 4 A 1don't know.
5 po _ 5 MR. SPIRO: Right. Vague.
6 Q If youdid have to hire expert witnesses, 6 BYMS. GUZMAN:
7 wouldyoubewilhngtopaymatamo\mtpmonailym 7 Q Inthis case if your attorneys wanted to
8 ' order to prosecute this lawsuit? 8  pusue a particular strategy or a course of conduct
[ A No. 9  with which you disagres, would you defer to them?
02:11 10 Q How much do you estimate you personatly will |02:13 10 MR. SPIRO: Vague.
11 spend in prosecuting this lawsuit? 11 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat that again?
12 A 1don't know. 12 MS. GUZMAN: Ms. Bardsley, would you mind
i3 Q Piease just fet me finish my qu&suon so the 13 reading the question back.
14  court reporter can get it down and then give your 14 (Record read as follows:
15 answer, : 15 "Q In this case if your
16 A Okay. 16 attoreys wanted to putsue a
17 Q Thank you. 17 particular strategy or a course of
18 A You're weicome. 18 conduct with which youn disagres,
: 19 Q Howxmrchdoymesmmteyoupcrsonallywdl 19 wonld you defer to them?")
102:12 20  spend in prosecuting this lawsuit? 02:14 20 THE WITNESS: I don't know nothing about
21 A Idon'tknow. 21 strategy and legal.
22 Q Howmuchumeaxeyoumllmgtospmd - 22 BYMS. GUZMAN:
23  prosecating this lawsuit? 23 Q Have you piven the attorneys complete
24 ‘MR, SPIRO: Vague. 24 discrefion and power to make decisions affecting this
25 ' THE WITNESS: 1 don't know. 25  lawsuit?
Page 129 Page 131
1 BY MS. GUZMAN: 1 MR. SPIRO: Well, vague, asks for a legal
2 Q Do know what a class representative 1s7 2 comclesion.
3 A Yes _ 3 THE WITNESS: Idon't know nothing about that
4 Q Can you tell me in your own words what is 4  stff you are talking about.
5  your understanding of what a class representative is? 5 BYMS. GUZMAN:
6 MR, SPIRO: Asks for a legal conclusion. & Q Can you define the class for me?
7 THE WIENESS: It represents a class of 7 MR. SPIRO: Vague.
B people 8 THE WITNESS: Define — define the class?
: 8 BYMS.GUZMAN: 9 No,1can't define the class.
{02:12 10 Q Anythingelse? 02:14 10 BYMS. GUZMAN:
11 A No. 11 Q Do you know how many people are in the class?
12 Q Are you seeking to be a class representative 12 A No,Idon't. 1know if's a large group of
13 i any other lawsuit? 13 people. But how many as in numbers, no, I don't.
14 A No 14 Q Do you alsa seek to represent corporations or
15 Q Have you ever been a class representative 15 other organizations that own vehicles, like rental car
16 before? 16 companies or companies with delivery vdnc]u?
17 A No. 17 A No.
18 Q Would you put your own personal inferests 18 Q Have you left the scope of the class to your
19  ahead of the interests of the class? For instance, 19 atiomeys?
§102:13 20 are you willing to settle your claims personally 102:15 20 MR. SPIRQ: Vague.
3 21 regardless of what other members of the putative class | 21 THE WITNESS: Yes.
22 may decide or desire to do? 22 BYMS. GUZMAN:
23 MR. SPIRO: Compound. 23 Q You do not know personally whether the
24 THE WITNESS: No. 24 members of the putative class you seek 1o represent
25 BY MS. GUZMAN: 25  are so numercus that joinder is impractical, right?

Page 132

33 (Pages 129 to 132)

SARNOFF COURT REPORTERS AND LEGAL TECHNOLOGIES
- 877.955.3855




LA RONDA HUNTER

' 12/1“6163

1 MR SPIRCG: Vague, calls for a legal 1 BY MS. GUZMAN:
2 conclusion. 2 Q Do you claim to represent people who do that?
3 THE WITNESS: I don't know. 3 A Nobody in the state of California wouldn't do
4  BY MS. GUZMAN: 4 iteither It would be a war.
5 Q What knowledge do you bave that cach of the -5 Q So you don't claim to represent people who
6  people in the class that you seck to represent have 6  purchased their vehicles while already knowing about
7  the same claims that you do? 7  thealleged defect?
8 MR._ SPIRO: Don't answer that. It wolates 8 MR. SPIRO: Calis for a iegal conclusion.
9  the California law against asking a party to state the 9 THE WITNESS: You said what?
02:16 10 facts that support her contentions. 02:18 10 BYMS. GUZMAN: _
11 {Instruction not to answer.) 11 Q You don't claim to represent owners who
12 MS. GUZMAN: You're instructing your witness 12 purchased their vehicles while already knowing about
13 pot to answer? 13 the alleged defect?
14 MR. SPIRO: Right, because it is unfair, 14 MR._ SPIRO: Calls for a legal conclusion and
15  according to our courts here and it is harassing, 15  itis vague.
16 BY MS. GUZMAN: 16 THE WITNESS: No.
17 Q  Ms. Hunter, you don't claim to represent 17 BY MS. GUZMAN:
18 ownersor]wsmwhoaxcnotatthesubstarmglnsk _ . 1s Q Are you relying on any family member for
19 of serious injury or death, do you? 19  advice or counsel in this lawsuit? '
"~ loz:16 20 MR. SPIRO: . Vague, confissing. 02:18 20 A No.
21 THE WITNESS: I don't plan to do what? 21 Q Does anyone besides you and your attorneys
22 BY MS. GUZMAN: 22  bave control over this lawsuit?
23 Q Clauntorq)rmentownasorlmmwhoare - 23 A !amunaware. Idon't know,
24 pot at a substantial risk of serious injury or death. 24 (Q Have you had any discussions with family
25 A 1have no idea what you are talking about. 25 members about this lawsuit?
Page 133 Page 135
1 Q Do you know whether other drivers of vehicles 1 A Tratked to my sister.
2 that you allege to be class vehiclesarc ata 2 Q When?
3  substantial risk of injury in 2 moderate rear-end 3 A When?
4  collision? : 4 (Q When did you speak to your sister about the
5 MR. SPIRO: Vague — 5  lawsuit?
6 THE WITNESS: I don't know — I don't know- . A This moming when I told her to drop my
7  what you are talking about. 7 daugister off at school because I had to come down here
8 DBYMS. GUZMAN: ‘ B forthis.
, 9 Q Tobeclear, do you not know the answer to 9. Q Any other times?
02:17 10 the question or do you not understand what I'm asking? | 02:19 10 A lcan'trecall.
' 11 A Idon'thave an answer for that question. 11 Q Whatdid you tell your sister this morning
12 Q You don't know the driving habits of the 12  about this lawsuit?
13  other members of the putative class, do you? 13 A To drop Seqouia off at school and I bad to go
14 A No,Idon't. 14  for a deposition for the GMC case. That's it ’
i5 Q You don't know their personal circumstances, is5 Q Have you had any discussions with friends
16 doyou? 16 regarding this lawsnit?
17 A No,Idon't. 17 A No.
i8 Q You don't claim fo represent people who 18 Q Who first mggmted that you get involved in
] ‘ 19 purchased their vehicles while already knowing about 19  this lawsuit?
102:17 20 the alleged defect, do you? ) Joz2:19; 20 A Myself.
21 MR SPIRQ: Vague, calls for a lepal 21 MR. SPIRO: It was asked and answered, so
22 conclusion. 22  this was the third time, ] believe,
23 THE WITNESS: No, I don't — I don't—1 23 BY MS. GUZMAN:
24 would hope that no one would purchase the car if they 24 Q Do you agree that you do not personally know
25 know that something is wrong with it. I wouldn't. 25  whether there are common issues of law and fact
Page 134 Page 136
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LA RONDA HUNTER
1  present in this hitigation? 1  methods for the fair and efficient adjudieation of
2 A 1don't know law. 2 thiscontroversy? '
3 . Q Do you agree that you do not personally know 3 A Idon't know.
4 whether your claims are typical of the claims of the 4 MR. SPIRO: Vague, lcgal conclusion.
5 class you seek to represent? 5 MS. GUZMAN: Can we take one more quick
6 A 1 don't know what "typical” means. €&  break, and I think I.can do the rest of my questions
7 Q What does "typical” mean to you? 7  afterthat
8 A Idon't know. -] MR. SPIRO: Do you need us to leave?
9 MR. SPIRO: She just said she doesn't know 9 MSB. GUZMAN: 1can, but is 10 minutes okay?
02:20 10 what it means, Counsel. 02:22 10 MR. SPIRO: Yes.
11 THE WITNESS: I don't know what "typical" 11 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are going off the
12 ' mean in 2 lawsnit. 12 record at 2:23. We arc off the record.
13 BY MS. GUZMAN: 13 {Recess.) ]
14 . Q Whataboutin cormmon sense, what does 14 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are back on the record
15 "typical” mean? 15 at2:49.
is A Typical, Typical, that's my answer. 16 BY MS.GUZMAN:
17 Q So you undesstand the word as if's coromonly 17 Q Allright, Ms Huater, I am handing you a
18  used? 18 document that's going to be marked as Hunter
19 A Yes, commonly used, but not used in lawsuits. 19 FExhibit 14, Tm handing a copy to your counsc} as
02:20 20 Idon't know what "typical” mean in lawsuits, so 02:4% 20 well _
21 don't know. 21 (Deposition Exkibit 14 marked.)
22 Q ‘Well, what about just in common - 22 BY MS.GUZMAN:
23  understandmg, do you know personally whctherymn 23 Q Once you've had achancato]ookthatowr, ‘
24 claims are typical of the claims of the class you seek 24 can you let me know whether you recognize it or not?
25 1o represent? 25 A Yes Idid.
' Page. 137 Page 139
1 MR. SPIRO: Don't answer that, That is 1 Q Canyou tell mewhatitis?
2 harassing. 2 A Areceipt.
3 (Instruction not to answer.) 3 Q@ ' A receipt for what?
4 MS. GUZMAN: Can] just finish my question 4 A For having my car serviced.
5  before you both interrupt? 5  Q Whatis the date on the receipt?
6 MR. SPIRO: I thought you were done. 6 A V06 _
7  BYMS. GUZMAN: 7 Q Did you bring your car in for service on that
8 Q So with your common understanding — 8 day? :
. 9 MR. SPIRO: ‘Wait a minute, are you starting g A Yes, I did.
02:21 10 pew question? Are you? 02:50 10 Q Andwhymdymbmlgymn'carmﬂ)atday?
' 11 MS. GUZMAN: T'm restating the question 11 - A WhydidIbringitin? It needed to be
12  becanse you interrupted me in the last one. 12 fixed
13 MR. SPIRO: Al right. 13 Q What was wrong with it?
14 BY MS. GUZMAN: 14 A Ttsays — what does the papes — “customer
15 Q With your common understanding of what 15  states idle is Jow.” ‘
16 "typical” woally means to you, you don't personally 1s Q 1s that the only reason that you brought it
17 Imow whether your clatms are typical of the claims of 17 in? _
18 the class you seek to represent, right? 18 A "Customer state exhaust rattles in gear.”
: 19 A Idon'tknow. : 19 Q Wa-eﬂmsetwuthmgswmngmﬂlyourvahmle
102:21 20 Q Have you done any investigation to find out 02:51 20 when you brought this?
: 21 whether others in this class you seek fo represent 21 A Yes
22 have claims that are similar to yours? 22 Q Was there anything else wrong with your
23 A No. 23  vehicle?
24 QDo youagree that you do not personally know 24 A ltsays that, "Service department will
25  whether a class action is superior to other available 25 perform 27 point vehicle inspection. After inspection
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1 will" — "will pro-" — wait a minute, -1 . car in that day?
2 "Customer may chose to perform repairs or 2 A No.
4 Q Did you have any repairs done on your parking 4  onyour parking brake?
5  brakes at this time? 5 A Idon't know what they did. Idon't kmow.
& A No 6 - Q Did you ask them to do any work on your
7 Q Did they make any representations $o you "7 parking brake?
B aboutymrbmkcsatPowerChevroletattlnsmle? o A Ican't recall —oo.
9 A No 8 Q Was there anything wrong with your parking
02:52 10 Q 1 am handing you and your counsel another 02:55 10 brake when you brought your car in that day?
11  document previously Bates-labeled as P3020 and now 11 MR. SPIRO: Beyond her personal — no, forget
12 marked Hanter Exhibit 15. 12
13 {Deposition Exhibit 15 marked.) 13 THE WITNESS: Idon’t know.
14 THE WITNESS: Thank you, 14 BY MS. GUZMAN:
15 MS. GUZMAN: T trying to find the other 15 Q And now Pm handing you another document
16 copy, Counsel. 16 Bates labeled 3015, P3015. It is being marked as
17 Q Ms. Hunter, when you've had a chance to look 17 Hunter Exhibit 17.
18 it over would you let me know if you recognize this 1s {Deposition Exhibit 17 marked.)
19  document? 19 BY MS, GUZMAN:
02:52 20 A Yes Ido 62:56 20 Q Do you recopnize this?
21 Q Whatisit? 21 A Uh-buh..
22 A Tt states it is a vehicle inspection sheet. - 22 Q Whatis it?
23 Q  When did you first see this document? 23 A Its-- ABS light again.
24 A After I paid for my vehicle being in setvice. 24 . Q sttanstxmateorarecexptoraumvome?
25 Q When was that? 25 A lIisan estunata
Page 141 Page 143
1 A Thaveno idea. I'm asswming it came with 1 Q What's the date?
2  this. P'massaming it carse with the 2/22/06 bill. 2 A Idontknow. Isecone date 1/5/04,1
3 Q Are you ceriain of thai? 3 think.
4 A No,Idon't know. 4 Q Isit—
5 Q T'mhanding you another document prrmuusly 5 A TIdon't know the date. ¥ don't sce it.
6  Bateslabeled P3014. I'll give a copy to your comnsel 6 Q s there also an October 25th, 2004 date on
7  aswell. Itisbeing marked Hunter Exhibit 16. 7 there?
8 (Deposition Exhibit 16 marked.} 8 A Yeah, I'see it right here. 7
9 BY MS. GUZMAN: _ 9 Q Does this refer to the same ABS light-problem
02:54 10 Q Do you recognize this docusnent? 02:57 10 tha Honter Exhibit 16 did?
11 A Yes,1do. 1 A (No audible response.}
12 Q Whatisit? 12 Q Do you know, Ms. Hunter?
13 A If'sa-—itlooks like an estimate when I 13 A Dolknow what?
14 pulled itin, I stated what was wrong with the car. 14  Q I'msomy. My question was whether this
15 Q Have you seen it before? 15 document refers to the same problem with the ABS light
16 A Yes. 16 that the previous document, Hunter Exhibit 16, did.
17 Q When? 17 MR. SPIRO: 'Vague.
18 A T'mseeing it sight now. R t: THE WITNESS: To be bonest, I really don't
; 19 Q When have you seen it before now? . . 19 know, but they both have the same date, 50 apparently
102:54 20 A Pveseen it when — the day when I wentin. | 02:58 20 _thoyare— they are together. They have the same
‘ 21 Q What day was that? 21 date onthem. Idon't kuow if the ABS light came on,
22 A Tiwas 11 ~ I mean 10/25/04. 22 Itook it in and they repaired it. '
23 Q Why did you bring your car in that day? 23 BYMS. GUZMAN:
24 A The ABS light was on, 24 Q Now I'm handing yon another document Bates
25 Q Was there any other reason you brought your 25 page numbers Bates-labeled P3016 throngh P3018. Aod,
Page 142 Page 144
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1 acmally, it should be theough F3019. Somy. There 1 Q When was that?
2 s an extra page on there. 2 A Icap't recall the exact day.
3 MS. GUZMAN: Andltmbmngmaﬂmdl—lmtu' 3 € What about the year, do you recall the year?
4  Exhibit 17. 4 A Itwas either 2004, 2005 when [ met Adam at
5 THE REPORTER: 18. 5  the office.
6 MS. GUZMAN: 18. Somry. 6 Q Do you remember what season it was?
7 {Deposition Exhibit 18 marked.) 7 A TFiook me like five hours to get there. It
8 BYMS. GUZMAN: 8  was the rainy season. It did, it took e like five
9 Q Do you recognize this docurment, Ms. Hunter? 9  hours. Iwas stuck in traffic. It was raining. I
02:59 10 A Yes. 03:03 10 know it was raining.
11 Q Whatisit? 11 Q Okay. Whatoﬂioed:dyuumecthlmat?
12 A Aninvoice, 12 A ['met him at Ira Spiro's office, their
13  Q Didyoubring your car in on July 220d, 2008? 13 office.
14 A Yes. 12 Q Did you discuss a sirategy for this
15 Q Why did you bring your car in that day? 15 - litigation at that meeting?
16 A ABS light, 16 MR. SPIRO: Hold on 2 second. You can answer
17 Q Was there any other reason? 17 that "Yes" or "No.* :
- 18 A No. _ i3 THE WITNESS: No.
19 Q Does this invoice reflect any repairs to your 19 BYMS. GUZMAN:
03:00 20 parking brake system? 03:03 20 Q Did you discuss this litigation at all at
21 A No. 21  that meeting? -
22 Q Did you ask for any repairs tobe made to - 22 MR. SPIRO: Answer that "Yes” or "No." Itis
23 your parking brake system at that time?- 23  also vague, but go ahead.
24 A No. 24 THE WITNESS: No.
25 Q Was April of 2005 the only time you asked 25 RBYMS.GUZMAN:
Page 145 Page 147
1 G—-youaskedforrepmrstobemadetoyowparhng 1 Q You did not discuss this case at all at your
2 brake system? 2  next meeting with Adam Voyles?
3 A That I can recall, yes. 3 A We discussed other things.
4 Q Ms. Hinter, do you recall what year it was 4 MR. SPIRO: Hold on — po ahead. Don'tsay
5 thatynuﬁ:stspolnethhAdamVoyl&satﬂmﬁmeml 5  whatit was. Goahead. You can answer that question
6 in Texas? 6 "Yes" ar "No,” in other words.
7 A I didn't speak to bim at a fumeral. 7 THE WITNESS: Oh, okay.
B Q You spoke to him at Henry's house? 8 Yeah, we discussed other things.
3 A Ye 8 BYMS. GUZMAN:
103:01 10 Q And that was in Texas? 03:04 10 Q Ncw.younmnmedﬂaatywwerereured.
11 A Yes : 11 What do you rely on for mcome?
1z Q And you were in Texas because of the fimeral? 12 A Disability retired,
13 A Ub-huh — yes. 13 Q Do you have any other source of income?
14 Q Do you recall what year that was? 14 A No.
15 A Itwasin 2004 15 Q Do you have a savings account?
16 Q Do you remember what month? 16 MR. SPIRO: Just answer "Yes” or "No.”
17 A Tthink it was October 2004. 17 THE WITNESS: Yes. If's perscnal.
18  Q Do you remember what part of the month? 18 MR. SPIRO: That's all right.
i%. A No - 19 BYMS. GUZMAN:
jo3:01 20 Q Afierthat first conversation with 03:05 20 Q Have you ever been divorced?
: 21  Adam Voyles, comnsel of record in this case, what was 21 A No
22  your next contact with him? 22 Q Do you file state and federal tax retums?
23 A My pext contact with Adam? It would — it's 23 A Yes.
24 beensolong ago. It was when I met him at the 24 Q Are you willing to produce them to us?
25 office. 25 MR. SPIRO: No.
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1 THE WITNESS: No. 1 gverall?
2 BYMS. GUZMAN: 2 A Asfaras the motor?
3 Q Do you know what your approximate net worth 3 Q Overall, all the parts together.
4 is? 4 A Al the parts together, giving ita 1 out of
5 MR. SPIRC: Don't answer that. | 5 10,Igiveita—Igivedas.
6 THE WITNESS: No. 6 Q Does it take you from point A to point B?
7  BY MS. GUZMAN: 7 A Yes.
8 Q Do you know the value of your home? 8 Q  Would you call it reliable?
9 MR. SPIRO: Don't answer that. 9 A Yes.
03:05 10 THE WITNESS: No. : 03:07 10 Q Would you call it dependable?
1 MR. SPIRO: Altright The objection is 11 A No.
12  privacy, right to privacy. 12 Q Whynot?
13 BY MS. GUZMAN: 13 A - Because the brakes have — the brukes have 2
14 Q Are you instructing the witness not to 14  default in them
15  answer? ' 15  Q Hasyour Yukon safely transported you so far?
16 ° MR. SPIRO: She already answered. 16 A Yes.
17 BY MS. GUZMAN: 17 Q . Have you had any other repairs made to your
18  Q Do youknow- do you have any stocks, bonds 18 Yukon apart from the ones that we've talked about
19 orIRAs? : 19 today?
03:05 20 ME. SPIRO: Don't answer. 03:08 20 A No, not - no, not that I can recall
21 MS. GUZMAN: Are you instructing her not to 21 Q Ms. Hnter, you said that your parking brake
22  answer? : - 22 bad adefect When did you first hear the term
23 MR. SPIRO: She can answer "Yes" or "No." 23  "defect"?
24 THE WITNESS: No. 24 A Whendid I first bear the term "defect™? I
25 BY MS. GUZMAN: 25  don't recall, I really don't
Page 149 Page 151
k3 Q Do you have any loans from anyone? 1 Q Doyourecall - :
2 A No. _ 2 A Tknow that is a word that I use all the
3 Q Have you made agy loans to anyone? 3  time, so if's comnon for me to use "defect.™ That'sa
4 A No. 4  word that I use for a Iot of staff.
3 Q Have you ever declared bankruptcy? 5 Q What did you do to prepare for your
6 A No. 6 deposition today?
7 Q Do you own any GM stock? 7 MR. SPIRO: Don't answer that,
8 A Iwishback then1did Butright now, no, B Yuucanaskhenfshelookedalmythmgto
9 Q Just to be clear, you've never owned GM 9 refreshher recollection.
03:06 10 stock? ' 03:10 10 (Instruction not to answer.)
11 A Tbect they made pretty good on their stocks. 11 BY MS. GUZMAN:
12 Q But you never owned any, comect? 12 Q When did you prepare for yuurdcposmon
13 A No. 13 today?
14 Q Okay. 14 A 1justwent ovamydisoovexy.
15 A  We wish we all could make money off they 15 MR. SPIRO: She said when, I thonght.
16 stocks, and anybody else’s. 16 THE WITNESS: When? .
17 Q Have you ever been audited? 17 BY MS.GUZMAN:
18 A No ig Q Tuis time 1 did.
1s Q Haveyouevabeensuedforbaddebtsor - 19 A We just did it today, sitting herein the
103:06 20 fajhore to pay debis? - 03:10° 20  deposition, but I read the discovery.
21 A No o221 @ Did you meet with amyone to prepare?
22 Q Have you ever gotten in an accident in your 22 A Did I meet with anyone?
23 vehicle? 23 Q Ye. '
24 A No. 24 A  No, no.
25 Q" How would you describe yom- vehicle functions 25 Q Did you meet with your lawyers to prepare for
- Page 150 ' Page 152
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1  the deposition? 1 A Sleep.
2 A Yeah 2 Q Did you talk to anyone else about the
3 Q When did you meet with them to prepare for 3 deposition? :
4 the deposition? 4 A No.-
[ A Todayand — 5 Q Ms. Hunter, have you ever bad your dirver's
-6 (Interruption in the prooeecﬁngs.) 6  license revoked?
7 MR. SPIRO: Hang on one second. 7 A No.
8 MS. GUZMAN: Off the record. 8 Q Have you ever been convicted of a crime,
L THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are going off the 9 other than a minor traffic offense? '
03:11 10 record at 3:12. We are off the record. 03:15 10 A No.
11 (Recess.) 11 Q Are there any documents other than the ones
12 'IHEVIDEOGRAPH.ER. We are back on the record 12  that we've talked about today that you rely on to
13 a313. 13  support the claims you make in the fourth amended
14 MS. GUZMAN: For the record, we just went off 14 complaint?
15 therecord so counsel could answer a phone call. 15 MR. SPIRO: Don't answer that.
16 MR. SPIRO: Thank you. 16 It violates the rule against for asking what
17 BY MS. GUZMAN: 17 facts and documents sapport the contention. It's
18 Q Was today the only time you met with your 18 umfair, according to our courts, and need not be
19 lawyersto prepare for this deposition? 19 answered, according to our courts.
03:13 20 A No. 03:15 20 (Instruction not to answer.)
21 Q How many times have you met with them? 21 MS. GUZMAN: You're instracting your witness
22 A Once. - 22 notto answes?
23 Q When was that? ' 23 MR. SPIRO: Comect.
24 A Ican't give you the exact date. December 24 MS. GUZMAN: Those are all the questions that
25 Ilh Jean 25 Thave, but I would like to state for the record that
Page 153 Page 155
1 Q How long did you meet for? -1 we are leaving the deposition open as to all of the
2 A I think about an hour and 30 minutes. 2  guestions that plaintiff's connsel improperly
3 Q Can you list everybody who was present at 3  iostructed Ms. Hunter not to answer, particularly the
4  that meeting? 4 - ones that were not based on privilege.
5 A Meandlra 5 MR. SPIRO: So there are no — if is not
6 Q Isthat all? 6  being beld open for anything, then.
7 A Yes. 7 THE REPORTER: Stipulation on where to send
8 Q Was anyone present by phone? 8 the original or who is keeping the original?
9 A No. : 9 {Discussion off the record ) -
03:14 10 Q Did you tell anyone about your preparation 03:17 10 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are going off the
‘ 11  session? 11 record at3:18. This concludes media nimber 2 and we
12 A No. 12  areoff the record.
i3 Q Were you shown any documents during that ‘13 {Discussion off the record )
14 deposition preparation sesston with counsel? 14 MR_ SPIRQ: 1propose that the original of
15 . MR. SPIRO: Don't answer that - well, 15 the transcript be sent to counsel for General Motors;
16 actually, youcan Go ahead. 16 and that the witness, Ms. Hunter, haveuntil a certain
17 THE WITNESS: Yes, I was. 17 amount of days, which we'll get to in a minute, to
18 BY MS. GUZMAN: 1B  sign and make any comections to the deposition
. 19 Q  What documents were those? 19 transcript and notify counsel for GM in writing of the
}03:14 20 A Justmydiscovery. 03:18 20 comections. And ifit's not signed and notified by
21 Q And by "discovery," you mean your responses? 21 that period of time, then the deposition or any copy
22 A Yes. : 22 ofit, can be used as if it were an original; that the
23 Q Anythinp else? 23 witness can sign it under penalty of pegjury as
24 A No. 24  opposed to before a notary. And 1think that's all.
25 Q What clse did you do to prepare? 25 Let's decide on how much time.
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1 {Discussion off the record.) 1 1, the undersigned, a Certified Shorthand
2 MS, GUZMAN: We've stipalated that we will — 2 Reporter of the State of California, do hereby
3 the plaintiff will have until the 31st to make :: : Mf";hauh . ocsedings were taken
correcti H tra'mscnp' . e foregoing pr were
; N&.?séail’ll‘:ls(l)'@;:ﬂmﬁngﬂ;twcgeﬂhc : 5 beforcmcatthehmcandp}acehmsetﬁmh,that
6 e - 6  any witnesses in the foregoing proceedings, prior to
deposition on the 15th, right. © 7 testifying, were duly ; that a recard of th
7 MS. GUZMAN: On the 18th. : Sveorn; B ot e
y 8  proceedings was made by me using machine shorthand
8 So stipulated. 9  which was thereafter transcribed under my direction;
8 MR. SPIRO: Yes. 10  that the foregoing franscript is a true record of the
03:26 10 (Discussion off the recond.) 11  testimony given.
11 MS. GUZMAN: I would just like to state for 12 " Further, that if the foregoing pertains to
12  the yecord that named plaintiff Robin Gonzales has 13  the original transcript of a deposition in a Federal
13  been present for the entirety of Ms. Hunter's 14  Case, before completion of the proceedings, review of
14  deposition today. That's all. 15  thetranscript [ ] was [ ] was not required.
15 '(Itwasagrwdinthe 16 I further certify I am neither financially
16 deposition of Robin Gonsales that ;; interested in the p::r;n nﬂc:'s arclative or empioyee of
. . - : any attorney or to this action.
i: ~ eorginal deposition of Ms. 15 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have this date
Hunter should go to Mr. Spiro for 20
R . subscribed my name,
1s obtaining signature of the witness 21
20 - and that the original will then be 22 Dated:
21 returmned to Kirkland & Ellis.) 23
22 Jf -
23 X ' 24 DENISE BARDSLEY
24 "‘CSR No. 11241
25 25 _
Page 157 Page 15%
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
B
9 I, LA RONDA HUNTER, do hereby declare under
10 penalty of perjury that I have read the foregoing
11  transcript; that ] have made any corrections as appear
12 noted, in ink, initialed by me, or attached hereto;
13 that my testimony as contained herein, as comrected,
14 istruc and correct. °
15 :
16 EXECUTED this day of .
17 20 ,at >
(City) {State)
18
19
20
LA RONDA HUNTER
21
22
23
24 -
25
Page 158
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